
 

 

                                                           
Notice of meeting of                                   

Cabinet 
 
To: Councillors Alexander (Chair), Crisp, Fraser, Gunnell, 

Looker, Merrett, Simpson-Laing (Vice-Chair) and 
Williams 
 

Date: Tuesday, 15 May 2012 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: Burnholme Social Club and Institute, Burnholme Drive, 
York YO31 OLL 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
 
 
Notice to Members - Calling In: 
  
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by: 
  
10:00 am on Monday 14 May 2012, if an item is called in before a 
decision is taken, or 
  
4:00 pm on Thursday 17 May 2012, if an item is called in after a 
decision has been taken. 
  
Items called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management 
Committee. 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point, Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interest they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 



 
2. Exclusion of Press and Public    
 To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the 

meeting during consideration of the following annexes to reports: 
  
Annex B to Agenda Item 7 (Implementing the Review of the City 
of York Council’s Residential Care Homes for Older People) and 
Annex 3 to Agenda Item 8 (Oliver House Elderly Persons Home - 
Options for the future use of the Property) on the grounds that 
they contain information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of particular persons. This information is classed as 
exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as revised by The Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006). 
 
 

3. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 24) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the last Cabinet meeting held 

on 3 April 2012. 
 

4. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
a matter within the Cabinet’s remit can do so.  The deadline for 
registering is 5:00 pm on Monday 14 May 2012. 
 

5. Forward Plan   (Pages 25 - 28) 
 To receive details of those items that are listed on the Forward 

Plan for the next two Cabinet meetings. 
 

6. Secondary Education Provision on the East 
side of the city and the Future of Burnholme 
Community College   

(Pages 29 - 86) 

 This report describes the future provision of secondary education 
on the east side of the city and in particular Burnholme 
Community College. Responses to public consultation regarding 
the future of the College, the arguments for and against its 
retention together with the conclusion that the educational 
interests of children and young people in the city would be best 
served by a phased closure of the College are all detailed in the 
report.  
 
 
 



 
7. Implementing the Review of the City of York 

Council’s Residential Care Homes for Older 
People   

(Pages 87 - 128) 

 This report provides financial model options following the 
decision to proceed with the development of the three sites to 
replace the council’s existing Elderly Persons’ Homes. The report 
also seeks approval in principle including borrowing requirements 
and decisions on the way forward over the next four years. 
 

8. Oliver House Elderly Persons Home - 
Options for the future use of the Property   

(Pages 129 - 152) 

 This report seeks the Cabinets decision as to the future use of 
the former Elderly Persons Home (EPH) at Oliver House, which 
is becoming available as part of the EPH review.  
 

9. Exploring Opportunities for the Future of 
the Guildhall   

(Pages 153 - 208) 

 This report provides Cabinet with a summary of the recent 
options appraisal and heritage significance / views analysis study 
undertaken for the Guildhall complex. It requests members to 
confirm their support for running a Royal Institute of British 
Architects RIBA Open Ideas Competition exercise to stimulate 
ideas to explore the opportunities afforded by this unique setting. 
 

10. Developing a Thriving Voluntary Sector in 
the City of York   

(Pages 209 - 216) 

 This report outlines progress towards the production of a 
Voluntary Sector Strategy for the City of York. The report 
summarises developments so far and details forthcoming 
consultation events leading to the development of the final 
strategy. 
 

11. Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011 - Police and Crime Commissioner - 
Update   

(Pages 217 - 240) 

 This report outlines the changes in legislation leading to policing 
and community safety being overseen by a Police and Crime 
Commissioner, supported by a Police and Crime Panel for each 
police force area. 
 

12. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 



 
Democracy Officer:  
  
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061  
• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk  

 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
Contact details are set out above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and 
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no 
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of 
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has 
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice 
on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy 
Officer. 

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s 
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York 
(01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this 
meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for 
viewing online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of 
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic 
Services.  Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact 
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a 
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda 
requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue 
with an induction hearing loop.  We can provide the agenda or 
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in 
Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take longer than others 
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for 
Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact 
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given 
on the order of business for the meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in 
another language, either by providing translated information or an 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone 
York (01904) 551550 for this service. 

 
 
Holding the Cabinet to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out 
of 47).  Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of 
business from a published Cabinet (or Cabinet Member Decision 
Session) agenda. The Cabinet will still discuss the ‘called in’ 
business on the published date and will set out its views for 
consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny Management 
Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting in the 
following week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will 
be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees 
appointed by the Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new 

ones, as necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the 
committees to which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and 
reports for the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



����������	
�����
��� ������������������

�������� ��������

����� ��������� !��

���"����
�
�
�
�
��������������

�#$�����#�"����%������&�'���()�
���"�)�*��"��)��$�����)��������)�
"���"#�+������&,���+�'���(�����
-������"�
�
�#$�����#�"������")��$�'����"#�)�
�.��#���)�*��/������0)����,��)�����)�
"�#�������-�����"�

��#�#���"� �#$�����#���##0���

�
����� ����	
	��
���
������
�����

�
���1�	��2�	����3���4����4�
�5	��5���6���7���������6��������8�5���
7�	���5���	�7	�9�4�
�5������	������6�����86��653������6��1��������
����6��58��45:�
�
�6�������2��8����1�	��4�
�5	�4�7�	���5�)����+7	�9�4�
�5��
����	��������	��7�
�����58��45��������������5	�5���6���	��5��4����
��5����8��5���	�;�

•� ���	��	��7)�5��5����1�	�����6��	���	�4���
��������$������
•� ���	�-����5��)�5��5����1�	����$������5�4�$�����
•� ���	��������)�5��5����1�	����$������
•� ���	����<5�4�	)�5��5����1�	��������
•� ���	�"��7���+�5��8)�5��5����1�	����$������
•� ���	�*	5��	�5��5����1�	�����6��	���	�4���
���������$������

5�4�$�����&��-$=���"(:�
�
����
����	���		����4�
�5	�4�5�7�	���5������7	�9�4�
�5������	�������
	��7�
������8��45������>�&-5��	���4=���������	����?��
����(�5��
5����1�	�����6����	
���
����5�75�8��5�4�'���	5	�����1�	�
����6�����:�
�
����
����	�-����5���5����4�
�5	�4�5�7�	���5������7	�9�4�
�5��
����	�������	��5���������8��45������@�&��3��2�����4��������
�		5�8�������5�4�"
6�����	53�������
���(�5��5����1�	�����6��
�5����5��"�
��5	�"�
�����26��
5�75�8��4�585�����7	�3���������
�	����	5��7�	�����5�4������5����5��15���:�
�

Agenda Item 3Page 3



����
����	�"��7���+�5��8�5����4�
�5	�4�5�7�	���5������
7	�9�4�
�5������	�������	��5���������8��45������!!�&��2����������
"�	5��8��$745��(�5���6����3�4�5495
�������	�54����
��4�4�����6��
��2���	�A�5������5�58������5	�5���������5����54:�
�

����� �������
��
���
����	�����������
�
��"#�,��;� �65���6��7	����5�4�7�1��
�1���<
��4�4��	���

�6��������8�4�	��8�
����4�	5������������<�!�
����8��45������!B�&��	
�����	5���	�9�
��
$745��(�����6��8	���4���65�����
���5����
����	�5�����	��5���8�����6�����5�
�5���	�
1��������5��5�	�����75	��
��5	�7�	����:��6���
����	�5��������
�5���4�5���<��7����4�	�
75	58	576������"
6�4����!������"�
�����!  ��
����6����
5����3�	�������
��!CD��&5��	�3���4�
1���6����
5����3�	������&�

�������
����	�5����(�&,5	�5����(�#	4�	��  >(:�

�
����� ���������

�
��"#�,��;� �65���6��������������6���5����51�����������8�

6��4����>��5	
6�� !��1��577	�3�4�5�4���8��4�
1���6���65�	�5��5�
�		�
��	�
�	4:�

�
����� ��������	
�����	��
��
���
����	��
���

�
���25��	�7�	��4��65���6�	��654�1�����6�	�����	�8���	5���������
�7�5
�5���6��������8���4�	��6������
��.����1��
��5	��
�75�����
"
6����5�4��65����3������1�	���������
���654�5����	�E�����4�
����7�5
:�
�
�6�������2��8��7�
�����	��7�
������8��45������>�F�-5��	�
��4=���������	����?��
����;�#7��������	�������5���8�5�"�75	5���
�������	���5�������6��-5��	���4��77	�5
6;�
�
,�	8���5�"652��7�
��5��5�7�45��
�
�����26��	�8��5	������4��6���
	�����7������8������65�)�7	��	�����6��5���	5�����)��6���9��
�����654�
1�����4�������4�5��5�7	��	������	�2�	
��������	���6���5��������

�
������:�"6���<7	����4�
��
�	���65���6��
������5������7������
654�������
��4�4�G��53�����7	��������	�.�5�4��6���54��5�7��5���	�
���1�	���������
�����������7	�35���5�4���53���6��9��
�����
5����:�
�

Page 4



�5���-�����+��44�)�	�7	�������8���	
�����6�����
��)�
�<7	����4���	7	����5��7	�7���4�
65�8���5���6��9��
����)�5��6��
������6����2���4���4�	������6������
��.��
	�4�1�����:����7������
����6��
������5�����2�	���6���������������
��������5���2���	�6�	�

65�8��)�75	��
��5	���5���5���5����8��6��7	�������5�����654�����
1��������	�4�5��5���7����:�����	��
��25���54������6��
���
��.��

�
���
5�75�8�������	�6�	�
65�8����1���8���
����������2��6��6��
5��6�	���.��6��	5	
6�����	�54����	�:�
�
��	����������)�	�7	�������8���
�����
��)�7�����4������65������
����6��
���
���
���7	��	������25�����7	���
��3����	51���7��7���5�4�
�65��5���
65�8������6��	�54��5�����2���4�������77�	���6��:�
��
���8�25����77�	��4���7�
�5�������������
�	���4������������
5	��
5�4���7	�3�4�
��8�������8�3��8�
�
�������6��	�86������5���
75��58�:�
�
����	�*5���7�
��5��5����	�����6��-5��	���4�	����)�1��6�5��5�

�
�����5�4�5�����	���:�'��
����	��4��65���6����2�5		5�8�������
654���
��	58�4�6������
�
���1����6��7	�7���4�
65�8������1��6�
#7������!�5�4���2���4�1��5�	��	�8	54�����7�	���3��8�7	���
�����
��	�
�
�����:�'���6�	���	��	�E�����4����1�	�������53���6��
7	������5		5�8�������5��5���
65�8��2���4���
��	58��6������
	�3�	�����
5	�������
��585��:�
�
�5���'�72�	�6��7�
��5��5�	�7	�����5��3������6������	���		��8�
����6����
	�5��4�	��
����
�
���������
65�8���2�	���54��5��-5��	�
��4:�'��	���		�4����5��5�����5�4���
5		��4�����5��5�	�4���8��4�
9��
�����������4���26�
6�654�1����4��	�85	4�4�5�4�26�
6�25��
��2���4�	���3����85�����1���6������
�������2��8�5��5

�4���:�'��
E��������4��6���6�	����	��85����5�4�
�������3��3�4����	�3����5�
8�3�	���������4�4��
6����5�4�	�E�����4����1�	�����4���	�5�
4�
������7��4��8�	�
��7�������85��543�
�:�
�
?�����	5���	��7�
�����	��5���������5������������5��5�
�
�����5�4�
�6��3�
��������2��5

�4�����5���6��������6�	��2�	����2���
	�5��4�
	��
�������	
.��	�54�:�"6��7�����4������65�)�5��5�	���4�������
��������5�4�	�8��5	����	�����6��-5��	���4�9��
����)����
���6��
	�4���8���6���������
6��5��	�5�4�	�E�����4��6���51����������53��
�6��9��
�����5����:�
�
?�����8���)��7�
�����1�65������	���4��������-���������	���54�
5�4��6���3�����7������8������65������6�	�����6��7	�7���4�
�7������7�����	25	4�����6������
�	��	�7�	��2���4�5��������
5��
	���4�����2��6��6������������	5���
�����8��6��	�	�54��5��5�	5��	������
53��4��6��9��
����:�'��	���		�4����5�	�
�����	5���
���	3���

Page 5



��4�	�5
���1��	���4�����26�
6�654��6�2��!>  �3�6�
��������8�
�6��	�54���3�	�5�!��6��	�7�	��4:��6���25��������8�	�5�7�5
����2�
7	�1����5�4�6���	8�4����1�	�����7�����5��	������7�5
�����
�3�	
����	���4�����
��
�	���2��6�5�7�����
����	������6��	�54�:�
�
��4	�2��	��8����7�
��5��5�	���4�������-���������	���54����!��
��5	��5�4��6����75
��
65�8���5���6���9��
�����654��54�������
5��
	���4����:����6��86��6��2�	
��654�1�������35�������
�
������6��
E��������4��6��7�	
���58���������
�
������26��654�1����
��
��	58�4����
�
������
��75	�����2��6��6����������3����4:�
*5���	�������6���
6������
��4�4�
��8������)�7��������)������)�
�7��4����3�6�
����5�4��6����
	�5��4��������	���4����5��	�54��
5�4�6��	����	5��4��6��	�E�������	�7�����
����	�:��
�
���	��.�8�	����7�
��5���6����	��	�
�
���
65�7����5�4�5�
���1�	�����6��
	����75	�������
����	��5�����	��
��������	��7�
��
����6��������:�'��	���		�4�����6��2�	
���4�	�5
��������	���6���

	�
�5����
���������6���	1��5��
�
���	����������
��	58��
�
���8�
5�4�����6��7	�7���4��7������26�
6�2���4�1	�5
��6������
:���
��	�6�	�	�E�����25���54�������53���6��9��
�������
65�8�4�5�4�
���������6��	�����������6��
������5����:��
�
���	����4�	����	5��4��6����1=����
�����������	��5���������6���
	�7�	�)�75	��
��5	����65���6��
������5�����654���������	�4��6��
�7������������65�8������6���<�����8��5�����6�2�3�	��6���59�	����
���	��7�����)�5������> H)�654��53��	�4��6��:��6��"5�������4���
���4��8��654�
��5	����6�2���65�����5���	��6��9��
�����2���4�1��
2	��8�5�4���
	�5���	��
�����7�4���	�5���5�4�
�
�����:��6��
���	8��
����	3�
���654�5����58	��4�2��6��6�������4��8��5�4����
3��2�����6����6��4�
�������6���4�1���5
��������53���6��9��
�����5��
�����:�
�
���	�-5	��	��	���		�4�����6���������5��5����7�	�5���7��������
7	��
�75�)�75	��
��5	���5���6��7	������54������	5�����654�5��5�
�5��������7��48����77�	��4��6��	�����5�����������6���������	��
�5���5���6���9��
����:����1�	���6���4��6�	���	����77�	��#7�����!�
����6��	�7�	�:��
�
���	�"
�����7�
������6��6����	������6���9��
�����5�4�2�	
�
��4�	�5
��:�'��7�����4������65�����25����
�		�
�������5����65���6��
���5�
�5����7��
5������2�	����2�5��2�	
��654�5�	�54��1�����3�	�
1�48���5�4�����������	�7��5����5��45�58��654�����1����
��������4:�'��
����	��4�6�����77�	����	�	�����5�����������6��
�����65�4��5���
�

Page 6



���	�-5	��	��5�����7�
�����	��5���������8��45������! �&�
�����
�
���	5��	�
��	��*��4�F���3�	�5�
��5�4������5��*��4��8�
��
������(:�'��7�����4������65�����5����1�	�����

5������6��
654��54��	�E��������	����4��8����1���54��535��51�����	��6��

��7�����	�+
����	�
���������6��6�8625������	5�1���3����)�
#�15�42�

)�2��6������

���:�'���6�����1�����4�5�	�E��������
2	����8���	��6��	���5������IB  
��	����6���
�����
����	5��	�
��	��
���4����
5		�������6����2�	
��26�
6�2���4���77�	���6����	
�
�
�����
�"�	5��8����1������J)�������	
���3��8:�
�
�6�������2��8��7�
�����	��7�
������8��45������!J�F�����	�����8�
�6�����
���	5��������'��������������7���#

�75�����
"�77������5	����5����8���
�������������5�������5����8�
#��
����;�
�
'5		�������	��7�
�����1�65�������6���548�	�'��������4�����
�����������	��7)�
�	
��5���8�5�7�5��26�
6�853���<5�7���

5�
��5���������4������	5����6�������������5��
����E�����5��
����
�������6��
�����	��8����'�#.�:����25����88����4)��65��
��2�	��8��6���6	��6��4����! H�	5�6�	��65��� H�25��9�������4�5��
�6���59�	�������
����������������65��� H�25������6�86:��
�
���	�-5	��	��
����	��4�6���
��������5�4��65�����#�15�42�

�
�5	��6�����
���5�������������758����CJ�����CD�����6��	�7�	�:�'��
2����������	����	5���6����77������������6���6	��6��4�577	�5
6�5��
���6�	���	�����	����861��	6��4���3��)�75	��
��5	���5����	
�654�

6�����5���<�	������6�86��6	��6��4����� H:�����	��
��25��
�54������6��6�86����1�	�������4��������
��75	���������6��
5

����45�����7	�3�4�4����
5�7���5�4�����6��7	�7��5���
26�
6�2���4���54�����6��G������8��7.�5495
����	���4����5��5	�5��
2��6����4����'�#.�:�
�
���	��5	�����7�
��5���6������
����	����5�25	4����26�
6��6����
7	�7��5���2���4�653���������75
�:�'���<7	����4���77�	����	�5�

��1��5���������6���6	��6��4��26�
6�6�������2���4�7	�3�4��5�
1����	�577	�5
6)�7	�3�4��8�15�5�
��������861��	��8���	����:�
���6��86�'�#.��2�	��5����7�	�5���75	������6��6�����8����

)�6��
��77�	��4���<�4�
�����������	5�6�	��65�����51���6��8�86����.�:�
�6��7	�7��5����6���4�6�2�3�	�1��
��5	���
������
5��4����
	���4���.���������	���6���654�5�
��5	���4�	��5�4��8�����6��
������:��
�
�6�������2��8��7�
�����	��7�
������6���	8����1��������5���8��45�
�����!D�F���

����4��5���'����6��4���
�
���8�"���;�
�

Page 7



�	������	���2�����7�
�������77�	������6��	�������������6��
	�
�
���8������26�
6�654�1����2�������4���	��3�	�� ���5	�:�'��
	���		�4�����5������������	5���4�5��5�	�5������	�
����	��26����6��
�����5�	�54��654�5���<
��������5�����	�
�	4:������	������6���
�5
������26�
6�	��������������	�
�
���8�5�4�544�����5��3�6�
���
9��	���.�������6�	������:�'��	�E�����4����1�	����������
	���4�����3��2��5�4���77�	������	��������:�
�
�	�3�	�"
����	����	5��4�6�����77�	����	��6���5	���	��7�5
�	��

�������:�'��	���		�4�����6����
	�5��4�4���5�
���
�7���		����
2���4�653������	53����	���'5K������	��	5�6�	��65����

����4�
�5������'5	�2��4�-6�����
	�5���8�7���������5�4�	�
�
���8�

����:��6����

����4��5����5
������25��2�������4�5�4��6���4�
	��5����7��:�
�
���1����5�����7�
�����	��7�
������6��	�
������7�1���6�4�����
�	�
	�7�	�)�26�
6�����������	�6�	�����	�5�����	�85	4��8��6��4�
������
�54����	��6��
����	�������

����4��5���'����6��4�-5����
��
�
���8�
���	��5��75	������6��1�48���7	�7��5��:�'��7�����4�
�����65���6���53��8����8�	���2�	��8	����	5�6�	��65������5�4��65��
��
	�5��4�������77��8�5�4��5�4������5<�2���4�5����	�E��	����
�������
���
�����8�:���
5��	���4��������
�7	�4������6��	�
���������5�4�
�6���2���4�1����4�	����4�2��6��6��
����	������6����5
�����:�'��
�6�	���	��5�
�4����1�	����������	���4�������77�	����	��6��

���	�.��	���������7	�3�4�4�1���6�����1�	������8�5��	��������6��
7�������:�
�
����	���6�����7�
��5��5���

����4��5���	���4����5�4���8�5��	��
����6��7�������:�'��	���		�4�����6��7�7��5	��5
������26�
6���
5��
	���4�����2�	��51������3�����2��6����5�3�6�
�������8�
26���15		�2��5�4�26������1���:���������25���54������6��
5�����5�
��7	�3�4�4�1���6���<
���������5����������)��6����77�	�����
����4�5������861��	��5�4�����6��4��	�����5������
��
����	�����
�6�������2���4�653�����	���4���������6��2��������6��
���:�
�
���	����4��7�
�������77�	������6���������5�4�7��������7	������4�
���
���
��)�5�4��6���+7����������	�	�������������6���5
�����:�"6��
	���		�4�	���4�������	��8�6����������8���	��6��������	���������26���
�6��5���	�5��3����5���5�4	�3��5
	�����6��
���:�����	��
��25��
�54������6���5

����4��5�������6��	�7�	�)�75	��
��5	������5�
�5�)�5�4�
����6��
��75	5��3������5����53��8�
����	������6�������2���4�
7	�3�4�:��44�����5��7��������
��4�4��6����
	�5�������	5��7�	��

������	���'5K������	��5�4��
�7��5���6����2�6�	7�������2�	�����
��	��5

����1�����	�	���4������65��5���6�������:���	�E�����25��

Page 8



�54�����4���	���	�6�	�
����4�	5���������6���	�7�	��7��4��8�

����4�	5�����5������
��:���
�
���	�-5	��	���<7	����4���77�	����	�	���	��
������6����������5�4�
7�����������5��7�
�5��
���
���������8������51�����	�6�	�

����4�	5���������6���5���	:�'��	�E�����4����1�	�����
	�
����4�	��6��
����	������6��������5�4�5

��2��48���6��3��2�����
��
5��	���4����:�
�
���	��5�3���5����5�
�4����1�	�����������������
5��	���4�����5�4�
��77�	���6��	������������5�2�������4�
����������5
����������6��
2������4�������	
:�'��7�����4������65���6�	��654�1�������
7�	���5����9�	��5

�4����	�7�	��4�5���6����������
�������7����8�
5�4��65��������77��8�����6��5	�5�2���4���
	�5�����54��8��������	��

�������	��6��5��6�	���:�
�
���	����61�	������<7	����4�
��
�	��5���6���5���7�1��
5���������6��
����
�	�	�7�	��4�5���8�2��6��6�������:����
�	��25��5�����<7	����4�
5���6�����8�6�����6���51�����58��45�26�
6���
��4�4�5����1�	����
��7�	�5������������	��6��
����26�
6�6�������
���4�����1����	�������

����4�	�4�����6�������535��51��:��
�

����� �

�	
����	���
�
���1�	��	�
��3�4�5�4�����4�4��5��������6���������������4�����6��
*�	25	4���5����	��6����<���2���51�����������8��5���6��������6��
58��45�25��7�1���6�4:�
�
���25������4��65��5���745���	�7�	������6������
��5�4��	����
�����������	����8��6�	�2��6�4��5����	�85	4��8�
������5��������
�6��
����	�������	�6��������������������8��2���4�5����1��

����4�	�4�5���6���51�����������8�����5�:�
�

����� �	��
����������
���
����������
� �
���
����

�

�����	�����	����	
	����������
���
	������	���

�������	��
�����	��

	����
�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3�����5�	�7�	��26�
6�7	������4��6�����4��8��
����6��
������5������<�	
������4�	�5
���2��6���
5��	���4�����5�4�
����	����8	��7������2������6��	�����5��������7���������	��7�
�����
�6��-5��	���4=���������	����9��
����:�
�
�6��7�5��5������<�������6��	�7�	�����������6��
�		�����5�����5��
�6��9��
�������7�������4�����  C����5����������6��
��7����������
�6��#	1��5����
���������5	���4��6��
���:�"��
����7������5�����

Page 9



6�2�3�	��6�	��654�1����
��7�5�����51������
	�5��4��	5���
�

��8�������5��-5��	���4������2��8�26�
6)�����	�����5������654�
1������3����85��4�2��6�������2��1���8�577	�3�4���	�7�1��
�

������5����:���5�����	��6�����2���7������2�	����������5��
����<�����5�4���5�4�4��
	�1�4�5������<�����5�4�������6��
	�7�	�:�
�
���5����������415

��	����6��
������5�����25����������5��
75	58	576��C����!B�5�4�5��5�5����������6���7������5��75	58	576��
!@�����������6��	�7�	�:���1��
�
������5�����654��6�2��5�
��5	�
7	���	��
����	��7�����!)�26�
6��6���51��������1�	�654�1����
	�
�����4�4����
����4�	�26���15�5�
�4�585�������6�	�

������5�����	��7������5�4��6���5�����5�4������4��8�:�
�
�6���51��������1�	�	���		�4�����6��35	������������	5���4)�
��
��4��8��6�����1�	����
�����
���8������26�
6�	�E��	�4�
5

����45���8�5���6��9��
����:�'�2�3�	)���������2��6�6���
�	��7.�����
�����7��48��5�4�5���6���59�	�������	���4�����
��77�	��4�#7����!6��������65���6���2���4�7	�3�4��5�1����	�
15�5�
����	�5���	�54����	�:�'��
����	��4��65�)������2��8�
	�����5�������2�	
���6���2���4�6�2�3�	�1��
�7����4�	�	�3��2:�
�
���5��2�	����7������	5���4�1���5	���	��7�5
�	��5�4�
������5�����
	��7�������6������
��.��������	��8�#���
�	��<7�5���4��6��
5��6�	���.����5����	��4���������	��7�
�����8	����1	�5
6����
5	��
5�4�
�	7�	5����5���5�86��	����	��5��������5���2�	
��5���6��
9��
����:�
�
��"#�,��;� �65���51�����577	�3��	�����5�������#7�����!)�

5����������5������<�������6��	�7�	�)���19�
�����
����	��	�3��2�����6��9��
�������5�����	�
�	4�5�4�
5���
65�8������
�
����5
���7:�!:�

�
���"#�;� ���544	�����6��������5	���4��	5���
�
��8�������


5���4�1���6���<��	�5���5�����5���6��-5��	�
��4�9��
����:�

�
�
�������E��	�4��
!:���7�������	�����5�������5�4���4�	�5
������	��
	�3��2�����5�����	�
�	4�5�4�
�
����5
���7:���

�
�
��)�?��

�
��!�� ��������
���

������

�����

�
���1�	��	�
��3�4�5�	�7�	��26�
6�7	������4��6�������������
������8������6���E�5������43���	���	��7�&���(�6��4����� �

Page 10



*�1	�5	��� !��5�4��6����
5����3���7�����*	5��2�	
�-�	
��8�
�	��7�&��*-�(�6��4����B��5	
6�� !�)�5��5
6�4�5������<�����
5�4�������6��	�7�	�)�	��7�
��3���:�
�
���1�	��2�	����3���4����
����4�	��6��543�
������	�4�1���6��
2�	
��8�8	��7������6��	�
575
����5��543���	��1�4��������6��
�51����)�5�4����75	��
��5	��6��	�
�����45����������6����*-��
���	��7�
������6��"�	5��8�
�'�����8��5	
��������������5��
����<���&��������>(�5�4��6����	
�����	5��5�4�*�	��	��	����6�
"�85	�"�����F�$745�������	5��7�	��5�4��

�����77	�5
6�5����
5������<���&��������D(:�
�
�6��	���35����51��������1�	��7	������4��6��������������6��	�
������8��5�4�
����	��4��65���������	5���4�2���4�1������4�5�4�
���577��
51���544	����4�5���6��	���<��������8:�
�
��"#�,��;�&�(� �65�� �6���������� 5�� ����<��� �� 5�4� �� ��� �6��

	�7�	��1������4:�
�
��&��(���65���6���7�
���
�	�
�����45����������6����*�

-�	
��8� �	��7� �54�� 5�� �6��	� ������8� ��� B�
�5	
6�� !�)�5�������������75	58	576��>�5�4�D�
����6��	�7�	�)�1��577	�3�4:��

�
���"#�;� ��� ������� �6�� 	�E��	������� ��� �6�� 
���
��.��

������������� ��� 	��5����� ��� �6�� 	���� ��� -�	
��8�
�	��7�:�

�
��"�� 
�#����
��	������
��	

	���������$����

��

�
	#����
��������
�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3������5�	�7�	��26�
6�7	������4�
����	�5�����85�6�	�4������77�	������6��	�3��2����54��������
5		5�8�������5�4��
6�����	53���7�5��7���
����1���6����5	���8�
5�4������	��#3�	3��2�5�4�"
	���������������:�
�
���5��������6��15

8	���4�����6��	�3��2�5�4�����	�5�����
	�
��3�4��������	���6�����������.��2�	
�25����������5��
75	58	576�������C)�5�4��6��
��
��������5��75	58	576��!�����!>�
����6��	�7�	�:�
�
����
����	����4)�5���65�	�����6��"
	���������������)�7	������4�
�6��	�7�	�)���������8��6��	����4��8�)��<7�5����8��6��	�5�������	��6��
	�3��2�5�4��6��	�	�
�����45�����:�
�

Page 11



�6�����������.�����5��	�7�	��25����������5������<�����
��4��8�
�6�������2��8�	�
�����45�����;�

•� �65�� ��� 
65�8��� 1�� �54�� ��� �6�� ��
5�� ���6�	���.��
�3�	��1�
	�7�����
	���	�5�5�4��65��

•� �� 765��4� 2��64	525�� ��� �	��� 4������5����5�� �	5��7�	��
�6���4� �5
�� 7�5
�� �	��� !� "�7���1�	� � !�� ��8��6�	� 2��6�
�6�� ���	�4�
����� ��� 
��
������5	�� �5	��� ��� �	5��7�	��
7	�3�4�4�1���6����
5�����6�	���:�
�

����
����	����4��<7	����4�6�	��65�
���������
�	��5�4��6��
�
	������
�����������	��6��	�2�	
����7	�4�
��8��6�����5��	�7�	��
5�4������2��8���	�6�	�4��
����������25��

�
��"#�,��;��������(�� �65���6��
������������6�����5��	�7�	�����

�6����3��2�����4���������		5�8�������
5�4�"
6�����	53�������
����1������4:�

�
��(� �65���6��	�
�����45����������6��

"
	���������������)�5��75	58	576�!>����
�6��
�3�	�	�7�	�)�1��577	�3�4:�!:�

�
���"#�;� �������������	���6���51���������6�����
�������

�6��	�3��2:�
�
�
�������E��	�4��
!:���7�������765��4�2��64	525������	5��7�	��5�4�
���	�4�
��������
��
������5	���5	����	���"�7���1�	�
� !�:���

�
�
�
����

�
��%�� ����#�
���������
��������	��&������

��

���

��
	���'��	��������

��
������	���
�
������
�������
	���'��
�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3������5�	�7�	��26�
6�7	������4���	5��8����
��	��6��2�	
��	
�)�7	�
�	������5�4�
�����������8:����25��
	�7�	��4��65���6������	5��8����2�	��
���	5�������77�	���6��
4���3�	������6������
�����5�:�
�
�6��-�	
��	
��"�	5��8��� !�+� !B�	�7�5
�4��6��
���
��.����	���
-�	
��	
����5��� ! +!��26�
6�654���
����4�����6������	����K��
5�4��657������6��5��6�	���.����5����8�	����	
�:����25��
����	��4�
�65���6��
���
��.��577	�5
6����7	�
�	������654�4�3���7�4�
��8����
5�����6�2�3�	��6����	5��8��654�����1����	��	��6�4���	�5�
���1�	������5	�:����5��������6��15

8	���4�2�	
�5�4�

Page 12




������5�������4�	�5
������	��5��������1��6�����6����4�
�������
25��������������6��	�7�	�:�
�
���25��
����	��4��65��5��������	5��8��4���3�	��7�5��25��1���8�
4�3���7�4�26�
6�2���4�1�����
�	���
5����535��51�������7	��:�
�
�6���51��������1�	�	���		�4�����6��2�	
���4�	�5
������	��5�����
����5
6�����6����	5��8���)����75	��
��5	�7	�
�	������26�
6�25��

	�
�5������6��5
6��3����������53��8��5�4����4���3�	�����
��	3�
��:�
�
��"#�,��;� � �65���51�����58	��;��
�

�(� �6�� -�	
��	
�� "�	5��8�� ��	� � !�+� !B�
5����������5������<�!�����6��	�7�	��5�4��

�
��(�� �6���	�
�	������5�4�������������8�

"�	5��8��� !�+� !J)�5����������5������<�
J�����6��	�7�	�:�

�
���"#�;�����������(� �������	���6��4���3�	������6��
�	��


5751���������65����77�	���6������
�����5��
5�4�
�����������4�3���7��6��2�	
��	
��
����65���6���
5��������6�����4������6��
�	85���5�������2�5�4�����6������	�:�

�
��(�� �������	���6��4���3�	������6��
�	��


5751���������65����77�	���6������
�����5��
5�4���7	�3���6����
�5���
�����
�5�4�
��3�	������5�����
�����5�4��6����3������
�53��8��4�	�3�4��	���5���
���
���
7	�
�	������5�4�
�����������8�5
��3���:�

�
��(�� ��
�
�������
	��
����
�������&��
#�
�	����

	��������	����������������
����
�
�51�����
����4�	�4�7	�7��5�����	��6����3��������5�4�
8�3�	�5�
������6���
�����
����	5��	�
��	�����4�&��*(���	��6��
����������	
�����
��:�
�
�6�����	5��8�
���3�����������4����I�@:B���3�	�B���5	��2���4�1��
���4��������

�7	�8	������25	4���6��
���
���7	��	�������
	�5���8�
9�1�)�5�4�8	�2��8��6���
������5�4�2���4�1��54�������	�4����

��	4��5�����2��6��6������3�	��5�4�����35�����*��4:����25��
�����4�4���������6��*��4���	5��8�
5�������85���1��6�7�1��
�5�4�

Page 13



7	�35�����3��������2��6��6�����5��4�
������������4��8�	�����8�2��6�
�6���51����:�
�
*�	�6�	�����	�5���������6��*��4��7	��
�7���)��19�
��3��)�
5�1�������5�4�
	���	�5�2�	����������5��75	58	576��!J����!@�2��6�
4��5�����������	������
�	���77�	�)�
��7������������6��*��4�5�4�
���	
���������4��8)��7���������8�3�	�5�
��5�4�
������5�����
��4�	�5
���5��75	58	576��������B�:���
�
�6����54�	��������4�4��5��������6�����4�26�
6�2���4��5
����5���
�
�����
�8	�2�6�5�4��<7�5���4�6�2�1�4��2���4�1��	�
��3�4:�
*����2��8�
��
�	���	5���4����	��7�
���������
�	���77�	����	��6��
���4)�	���	��
�4����75	58	576��J)�6��	�E�����4�5��5���4�����
����6��	�
�����45��������
���������4��8�����6���7������	�5��
�����5��!@�����6�7�	��4:�
�
��"#�,��;� � �65���51������
�

�(� �77	�3�� �6�� 7	�7���4� �19�
��3��)�
7	��	������ 5�4� 8�3�	�5�
�� ��	� �6��
�
�����
����	5��	�
��	��*��4:�
�

��(� ����� 7	�8	���� ��� 4�3���7� 1��������

5���� ��	� 7	�9�
��� ��� ��77�	�� �6��
����3�8�	5��� ��	
� �6���� 5�4� �6��
�
�7��8� ��� �6�� �77�	������� ��� �7��� �6��
�
�����
� ��
������� �6���� ��� �<��	�5��
75	����:�

�
���(� �77	�3�� IJ� 
� 5�� 	�
�����4�4� ��	�

����
�	�
575
���� ���4���3�	� �6��*��4��3�	�
B���5	�)�2��6�
������������� ���4��8� ��	�
!@�����6������6����	�������5�
����19�
�����
	�3��2�����6���<��	�5�����4��8�8���	5��4)�
7	��	����
������5����:�!:�

�
���"#�;�� �����77�	���6������
�����5��7	��	���������


	�5���8�9�1��5�4�8	�2��8��6���
������5�4�
��3�����8�����6��
���.���
�����
�����	�:�

�
�
�������E��	�4��
!:��	�
��4�2��6�4�3���7��������*��4�5���������4:���
�
�

�
�*)�0"��

�

Page 14



����� �
��������
����
	���'����	����
�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3�������6��4	5�����2����������"�	5��8��
&��"(�
������5�����4�
��������������5������<�������6��	�7�	�:�
�6��4�
��������
�	7�	5��4�5�75

58�������5��	���5���4�5��
��7	�3��8�3�6�
�������
���
��5�4�5

���	5���8��6���5
���7������2�
���������������5�4���
6����8���:�
�
�6���7	�3�4�4�5���3�	3��2����5����6��5
�������6��5��6�	����2�	��

�		������5�4������4�4�����5
�����	�4�
�����������������
5��5�	�
7�����5����5�4�
5	1���4��<�4������6��
���:��6��	�7�	��6�86��86��4�
�6�����
�1��2�������	�8���4��<�4�)��5�����5��	5���
�7�����5��)�5�4�
	��7�	5��	������������26�
6�	������4����5�6�86����1�	�7	��5��	��
4�5�6������6��
���:�*�	�6�	�����	�5���������6��7	�7���4�

������5�����5�4�6�2��6����	5��8��2���4�
���	�1��������6��

���
��.��7	��	������2�	���������4�����6��	�7�	�:�
�
�6���51��������1�	��������4��6��15

8	���4�����6����	5��8��
5�4�����6����7�	�5�
�����	�3�	���8��6���	��4)�75	��
��5	������3��2�
����6��	��5��4�6�5��6�������:�
�
�����4�	5�����25���6���8�3�������6�������2��8��7�����;�
�
&5(����577	�3���6��
�����������6��4	5���
������5�������"�5��
����5	���4��������<���&�<�
���3������5	�()�����<���
&����5	�������"���5��	��(�����6���	�7�	�)�5�4�7	�3�4�4����
4��5���2��6����6�������3�	���������6��4	5�����"�
�	
��5��4�
���
�	���
5����2��6��6���	�7�	�:����5���2�����
�	�����7	�
��4�
4�	�
��������6��7�1��
�
������5�����5��4��5���4����75	58	576��� ����
�B�����6���	�7�	�:���
�
&1(����	�E�����	�3�����������6��4	5���
������5�������"�5��
����5	���4��������<���&�<�
���3������5	�()�����<���
&����5	�������"���5��	��(�����6��	�7�	�)�5�4�7	�3�4�4����4��5���
2��6����6�������3�	���������6��4	5�����"�
�	
��5��4����
�	���
5����
2��6��6���	�7�	�:����	�E���������
�	�����1	��8��6��	�3���4���"����
�6���51����)�7	��	����7�1��
�
������5����:�
�
��"#�,��;� � �65���51�����58	����
�

�(� �#7�����&5(����577	�3���6��
�����������6��
4	5��� 
������5����� ��2� ���������
"�	5��8�� 5�� ����5	���4� ��� ����<� ��
&�<�
���3�� ����5	�(� 5�4� ����<� ��
&����5	�� ��� ��"� ��5��	��(� ��� �6��

Page 15



	�7�	�)�5�4�7	�3�4�4� ���4��5���2��6��� �6��
����� 3�	����� ��� �6�� 4	5��� ��"� 
�	
��5��4�
���
�	���
5����2��6��6��	�7�	�:�
�

��(� ���� 5���2� ����
�	�� ��� 7	�
��4� 4�	�
���� ���
7�1��
� 
������5����� 5�� 4��5���4� ���
75	58	576��� �����B�����6��	�7�	�:��!:�
�

���"#�;� ���5���2�7�1��
�
������5���������6��4	5���

������5�������"����1��
��7����4�1���6����4�
����5��� !��5���2��8�5����5��3�	���������6����"�
���1��1	��86������6���51�������	�577	�35�����
"�7���1�	�� !�:���6���2����5���2��6��4	52��8�
�7����5�	�3���4���2����������15��4��A�������

�����
��5�������5��7����1����5<������8�
�6��
65�
��������	
�5��	5
���8���2����������
3�6�
���)���
6����8����5�4�9�1������6��
����5�4�
5
6��3��8��5	8������	�1��6���
5��5�	�E�5�����5�4�
�#�:�

�
�
�������E��	�4��
!:��	�
��4�2��6�7�1��
�
������5����������":���

�
����

�
����� �

��
��
���������	
��	�

����

��

����������	
'���	�������
��������
�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3������5�	�7�	��26�
6��������4��6��2�	
�

5		��4���������6��7	�75	5��������5�4	5���"�77������5	��
��5����8���
������&"��(���	��6����	��	��	����6�"�85	=�5��	�
"
6��������:�
�
����	�5���������6��15

8	���4�����6��7	�75	5���������6��
4�
������5�4�
������5��������4�	�5
���5�4�	��7������
	�
��3�4�2�	��4��5���4:������4�	5�����654�1����8�3������5���

��������	�
��3�4�5�4�4��5��������6���5���
65�8���7	�7���4�
����6��"���2�	���������4�5��75	58	576��@�����!�����6��	�7�	�:����
25��
����	��4��65�����25����7�	�5����65��5�7�5����8��	5��2�	
�
��	��6��5	�5�25�����7�5
�)�5�������5��7����1��)�����	4�	����
7	�3�4���7����45����7�
���
�7�5����8�8��45�
��2��6�
��5	�
4�	�
�����8�3������7�5����8��������5�4�
����4�	5������	���35���
����6�������)�7	��	�����6����1�����������5���7�5����8�577��
5����:�
�
�6���51��������1�	�
����	��4��65���6��4�
������	����
��4��6��

������5�����	��7������5�4���
�	7�	5��4���2�5

����	�����)�

Page 16



6�2�3�	����25������4��65���6�	��2���4�1��5����4��������	���65��
��75
������549�����8�	���4����5��5	�5��2�	����������4:�
�
�����4�	5�����25���6���8�3�������6�������2��8��7�����;�
#7�����!;����������6��
������5��������4��8��5�4�58	����6��
	�3���4�4	5���"�����	���������6��4�
��������	�4�3���7�����
�5�58������7�	7����:�
�
#7������;����	�E�������	�6�	�
65�8���5	���54������6��4	5���
"��:���
�
��"#�,��;� � �65���51�����58	����
�

�(� #7�����!����������6��
������5��������4��8��
5�4� 58	��� �6�� 	�3���4� 4	5���
"�77������5	�� ��5����8� ��
������ 5��
����<� �� ��� �6�� 	�7�	�� ��� 1�� ���4� ��	�
4�3���7������5�58������7�	7����:�!:�
�

��(� ��� 4���85��� ��� �6�� ��	�
��	� ��� �����
"�	5��8�����
������5�����2��6��6���51�����
���1�	� ��	������"�	5��8�� �6���5
��8����
5��� ��
�4���5�� 
65�8��� ��� �6�� 4	5���
4�
�������65��5	����
���5	��5��5�	������
����6��	�
�����45����������6��	�7�	�:��:�

�
���"#�;�����������(�� ���7	�3�4��	�1����7�5����8�8��45�
�����

5�������6��5

�7�51������������	8��8�
4�3���7�����7	�7��5���5�4�����	��
7�5����8�577��
5��������	��6��5	�5:�

�
��(�� �����51���5���	�
�����4�4�
65�8������

1����
�	7�	5��4�2��6����6��4	5���"��:�
�
�
�������E��	�4��
!:��	�
��4�2��6��������4�
��������	�4�3���7�����
�5�58������7�	7����:��
�:�����4�4�
������5���������4�5�4�4���85��4:���

�
�
"')��-��
"')��-��

�
����� �	���������	����'�&�
�����
�	���
������
��

	�
��������
�
�6���51�����
����4�	�4�5�	�7�	��26�
6��745��4��6�������6��
7	�8	��������6���5�������

54�����7	�9�
�����
��?�����  C:����25��

����	��4��65���6��7	�
�	������
��7��������654���2�
��
��4�4)�

Page 17



'�54�������	���654�1������8���5��4�5�4��65���6��
���
���2���4�
�6�	����7	�
��4�2��6�5�
���	5
��525	4�����
��5�4���������������5�
4�3���7�����58	������:�
�
�5
��8��6��7	�9�
����	25	4�2���4���3��3��
������5�����2��6�
��5
�6��4�	�����4�3���7��6���5���	�7�5����	��6��5	�5�5�4�5���
��1��E�����7�5����8�577��
5�����:��
�
*����2��8�4��
��������6���7�������6���
����4�	�4�2�	�;�
�
�(� ���
��
��4���6��7	�
�	������
��
�������
��7��������

5�4�7	�
��4����������8�5��525	4�����
�:�����
��
��4���6��
���4���������
��������8	�������5�4�	�7�	��15

����
���1�	����	�577	�35�:�

��(� ���4��
���������6��525	4�7	�
���:�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

��"#�,��;� � �65���51�����58	������

�(� �77	�3���6��������8�����6���25	4�����
�:�
!:�
�

��(� ����85�������6����	�
��	�����������	�
5�4����������"�77�	��"�	3�
����6��

��
�����������6����8���5����������6��
���4�����5�����
��������8	�������2��6�
5���	�6�	�	�7�	��1���8�1	��86��15

����
���1�	�������2��8�577	�35������6��
�8	������:��:�

���"#�;�� �����51����6������
���������������5����5�4�
�19�
��3�����
��4��8��6����

�������4���3�	�����
�6����
6���:�

�
�
�
�������E��	�4��
!:�����������
�:��
�:����
��4����8���5������5�4�544���������*�	25	4�
��5����	�	�7�	��15

:���

�
����
�
�*��

�
����� �
��

�����������
�����
	��
��
���
��������

���������
����	��
������������	
'���	������
�
��������
�����	��
��
���
�����
�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3������5�	�7�	��26�
6��745��4����1�	�����
�6�����
��������	�
����
������5���������6��4	5���"�77������5	��

Page 18



��5����8���
�������������	����6�����
���	5��������'���������
�����7���#

�75����:�
�
*�	�6�	�����	�5��������	��7�
�����
������5�������4�	�5
���5�4�

��������	�
��3�4�����6��4	5���4�
������2�	����������5��
75	58	576��B����!@�5�4�5������<�!:����5��������6��7	�7��5�����	�
5�
��1���4�577	�5
6����1��6�5����861��	6��4�5�4���	������3���
5�5���������'�#.�����4���	�����'�#�7�5����8�577��
5������25��
7	������4����75	58	576��!C�����>�����6��	�7�	��5�4���
�	7�	5��4�
����6��4	5���4�
������5������<��:�
�
�6���51��������1�	�	���		�4�������8�6��
������5�����5�4�
	���5	
6���4�	�5
���4�	��8��6��7	�75	5���������6���"��:��6���
654���2�	������4����5�4�
������26�
6�2���4�7	�3�4��5�7�5����8�
15������	�
����4�	5��������5���7�5����8�577��
5��������	�'�#.�:�
����	��
��25��5�����54�������77�	��8�3�������6���4�
������5��
5�	�
����������8�����6����
5����3���7�����*	5��2�	
�-�	
��8�
�	��7:�"�88���������54��5���6��������8�654���
��4�4�
��7��8�
�6���
6������4�	�	�3��2�5�4�
����4�	5�����8�3��������7�	�
���7���5	�5��6�2�3�	��6����2���4�1���<5����4������	��4��5���
4�	��8�5�������	��	�3��2:��
�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3�������6�������2��8;�
#7�����!;����577	�3���6��"���5������<�����	���3���7�����
�5�58������7�	7�����5��5��5��	�5��
����4�	5�����26���
4���	�����8����'�#�7�5����8�577��
5�����:��
�
#7������;����577	�3��5�	�3���4�"���2��6�5��5���	�5��3��
577	�5
6����5�������8�
��
���	5���������'�#��
�
��"#�,��;� � �65���51������
�

�(� �77	�3�� �6�� 4	5��� "�77������5	��
��5����8� ��
������ 5�� ����<� �� ��� �6��
	�7�	�)� ��� 1�� ���4� ��	� ��3���7�����
�5�58������ 7�	7����� ��� 5

�	45�
��
2��6� #7����� !)� ��19�
�� ��� 	�3��2� ��� �6��
�
6������7�	5��������!������6��5�4�!:�
�

��(� ����85�������6����	�
��	���������"�	5��8��
���
������5�����2��6��6���51��������1�	�
��	� ����� "�	5��8�� �6�� �5
��8� ��� 5���

65�8��� ��� �6��"��� �65��5	����
���5	��
5��5�	����������6����*�-�	
��8��	��7:��:�

�

Page 19



�
���"#�;� "���65���6��"���
5��1��577	�3�4���	�������	�

��3���7������5�58������7�	7��������
��77�	���6�����	8��8���*���	��"�	5��8��5�4�
�6���	��
���J���	�
�����
����8��������	
������ �
�7	���� !�:�

�
�
�������E��	�4��
!:��	�
��4��������4�
��������	�4�3���7�����
�5�58������7�	7�����5�4�	�3��2��7�	5��������!��
����6�:��
�:����4���85��4�5		5�8����	�5���4��������
4�
�����:���

�
�
�
����
�
����

�
����� '

������
	���

��������	����

�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3������5�	�7�	��26�
6���������4��5�������
	�
����5�4���8���8�7	�8	��������6����	
�����	5��4�3���7�����
�����5�4��������4�5�7	�7���4�25����	25	4:�
�
*�	�6�	�����	�5�����5�4�15

8	���4�����6����B�6�
�5	��1	�2��
����4������2�	��4��5���4�5��75	58	576�������J)�2��6�4��5��������6��

�		����7��������5�4�7	�8	5�������7	�7���4�2�	
�������������
75	58	576��B����!@�5�4�����<�������6��	�7�	�:�����	�5��������
�6��7������5����	�5��5<���
	������*��5�
���
6�������1��
4�3���7�4�654�1�����<7��	�4�1��
������5���)�2��6���	�6�	�
4��5���������������75	58	576��!!�5�4�!��5�4����
����4����5��
����<�!:�
�
�6��7	�7���4��7������2�	��
�
#7�����!;�� �����4�	����6��7	�7���4�577	�5
6�5�4��6��2�	
+

��	�5����4�������4�
#7������;�� ���	�
�����4�5��5���	�5��3��577	�5
6����7�	���4:��
#7������;� ���4��
���������6��7�	���������6��4���3�	������6����	
�

����	5��4�3���7����������86������6���������	5���4:��
�6����54�	��<7	����4�6���577	�
�5�������	��6��
	����75	���
��77�	��	�
��3�4��	����6��2�	
��8�8	��7����1�	�����5������
26�
6�25����7�	�5�������6��
���.������	�:�
�
��"#�,��;� �65���6��
�		����5�4�7	�7���4�2�	
���	�5���

�������4�����6��	�7�	��5���<���8��6�	�2��6��6��
�3�	5���7	�8	5�������45���1��	�
��3�4�5�4�
����4:�

�

Page 20



���"#�;� ����
������������5
����5���5�4�4���3�	��6��
4�3���7���������6����	5��8�
5������7�	�5�����	
�
����	5������:�

�
����� 
��
���������
�����

����
����
���

�
���������

��	����	�������������	�����
���

�
�����'�	���
��#�

�����	����
#������
�
�51�����	�
��3�4�5�	�7�	��26�
6��������4��6��	�E��	�����������6��
'�5��6�5�4�"�
�5���5	����������	��5���������6��577������������5�
��	�
��	������1��
�'�5��6�5�4�-���1���8���	���	
:����5��������6��
��	�
��	5���7������535��51�����	��6��7�	�5�����577���������
��8��6�	�2��6��6���	5��������5		5�8���������	�7�1��
�6�5��6�
7�	�������2�	��5�����������:�
�
���25��
����	��4��65��5����1�	�����6������
��.���5�58������
��5��26��654�1����4�������5
���3�	��6����2�	���������	�
��	����
�����5�4���3�	������5��"�	3�
������!��7	���� !�)�654����4�	�4�
6���	���8�5����)�5�4�25��4��������53���6������
������?����� !�:�
�
*	���!��7	���� !���6�����6�	����2���4�1��	�E��	�4����577�����5�
��	�
��	������1��
�'�5��6�5�4��5
�����
	���
5����2����
���������
��1��
�'�5��6)�4	5���8��45�
������6��7	�
����654�1���������4�
1���6����75	���������'�5��6:�
�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3�������6�������2��8��6	����7������535��51���
����6��
���
��������������6����2���5����	��4�����;�
�

�(� �77����� 5� 9�������	�
��	� ��� ��1��
�'�5��6�2��6���	�6�
��	
�6�	�������������
���&����(:�

��(� �77����� 5� ��	�
��	� ��� ��1��
� '�5��6� ��	� �6�� ����� ���
��	
�����
���&���(:�

���(� �77����� 5� ��	�
��	� ��� ��1��
� '�5��6� 9������� 2��6� �6��
,5��� ��� ��	
� �����
5�� ������������8� �	��7�
&,����(:��

�
*����2��8�4��
����������25��

��"#�,��;�� �65���51�����58	�����;�

�(� �6��9�����577�������������6����	�
��	������1��
�
'�5��6� 5�4�-���1���8� 2��6� �6�� ,5��� ��� ��	
�
�����
5�� ������������8��	��7� 5�� �������4� ���
75	58	576�! �5���7��������(�����6��	�7�	�:�

Page 21



��(� �6����	�
��	5��7������������6����	�
��	������1��
�
'�5��6�L�-���1���8���4�	�5���<�����8���	�
��	�
5�� ������5��� ��	�
��	� ��3��� 5�� �������4� 5��
�7�����&��()�75	58	576�!������6��	�7�	�:�

���(� ������6����
��4���������6����	�
��	������1��
�
'�5��6� L�-���1���8� �7��� 577��������� ��� �!�
�5	
6�� !�M��

�3(� ������
��������� �6��	�
	�������������	�
��	�
�����1��
�'�5��6�5�4�-���1���8���������2��6��6��
7�5�� 5�� ����<� �� 5�4� 75���� 5�� �������4� ���
75	58	576�!B�����6��	�7�	�:�!:�

3(� ����� �6�� 7	�7���4� �5�58������ ��� �6��
�	5������������6����1��
�'�5��6���5�:�

3�(� �77	�3�� �6�� 	�
	�������� ��� �6��7����������� �6��
��	�
��	� ��� ����� L� ��3�	������5�� "�	3�
���
����8� 5�� �<��	�5�� �	85���5����� ��� 
��7�����
�6����5	
6�5�4�����
��7	�
���������1�65������
�6��
���
��:��:�

���"#�;� �������	���65��5		5�8�������5	�����7�5
�����
	��7�
�����577��������������6����7����:�

�
�
�������E��	�4��
!=�:�������
��	�
	����������	�1��6�7����:���

�
�"��

�
��!�� �
������������� ������������	����
����
���

�	����
��'������������
�
�����4�	5�����25��8�3������	�7�	��7	�75	�4����	��7��������5�
������)�7	������4��������
�������C��5	
6�� !�)�	�85	4��8��6��
1�48���4�
�������54��	�85	4��8��6��
����	������6����

����4�
�5���'����6��4�-5������
�
���8�����	��&�6��	�7�	��654�1����
��
��4�4�����6��	�7�1���6�4�58��45�������7	���5�4�65	4�
�7����
2�	��
�	
��5��4�5���6��������8(:�
�
�6�������2��8��������654�1����7	������4��������
���1��
����
����	����4;��
�

N����
����������6����8����
5�����7	�3����������6��7	�7�	�����
���25�����65��65��1����	�
�
��4���4�	��6��7	�3�������1�	5��
����
	5��54������	5����)��	���!�H�����  �����JBH����� !!:�

Page 22



����
�����77�	����6��7	��
�7����65��25����
����
�����5�4�
	�
�
���8��6���4�1��
��3�������5�4��5�	����	���4�����5
	����
�6��
���:�

�����86������6���5
���65���6����48���� !�=!��65��4�����4��6��
7	�3���������5���
�
���8�5�4�����������	������6��2�������
�6��
���)�����
���	�E�������65���6���51�����65�����6��
����	��
7�5����	���

����4��5���'����6��4�-5������
�
���8�
����	�:�

����
���5������77�	����6��7	��
�7�������6��7	�3���������5��	���
	�
�7�5
�����	��6��
����
��������25�������5���	���4�����5
	����
�6��
����	�E�������65���6��7	�3����������	���1�5

�1���158��
�6���4�
�����������5���5	�5������6��
����26�	��26����4�1����
5	������������:O�

���25��	�7�	��4��65��5�7��������
5����8���	��6����7����	��5����7���
654�5����1����	�
��3�4�5���6���5�������
���������8�5�4)�5�����
25��1����3�4����653����	���65��!   ���8�5��	���)��6��7��������
2���4��	�88�	�5�4�15���5��5�����	������
���������8:�

�6����54�	�	���		�4�������8�6���51�����1�48���4��
��������
��4�	�5
���7	��	�����6����4�
�������1���8��5
���5�4�����6���5

�
������5�
�5������	�5�����7�����	25	4������77�	�����5���
65�8�����
4�
�����:�'��
����	��4��65��5���<�	5�	4��5	��
���
���������8�
2���4�1��
5���4������51�����	�6�	�
����4�	5���������6���5���	����
1����4�	�5
��:�

���25��
����	��4��65���6���7������535��51���������1�	��5���6��
������8�2�	�;�

#7�����!�F�
����4�	��6���3�4��
���	����6���������5�4�7��������
5�4�
����	���6��4�
�������54���6	��86��6��1�48���7	�
������	�
�6��
����	�������

����4��5���'����6��4�-5������
�
���8�
����	�M��	�
�
#7�������F�
����4�	��6���3�4��
���	����6���������5�4�7��������
5�4�	�
�����4�5�
65�8������6��1�48���4�
������5�4����
�
5���	�5��3�����4��8�
����������������:�

'�2�3�	����25��	�
�����4�4��65��#7�����!�25��577	�3�4�5��
�6���������7	������4����544�����5���3�4��
�����5���4��6��
4�
�������54��5����48�������
��:�

�
��"#�,��;� �65���51�����������6���������5�4�7�����������

����
��)�26�
6�7	�3�4�4������	�6�	�����	�5�����
2��6�	�85	4�����6��4�
�������54��5��1�48���
����
��)�5�4�58	���#7�����!�������������6��

Page 23



	�7�	�)�
����	���8��6��4�
���������
������6��
��

����4��5���'����6��4�-5������
�
���8�
����	�:���

�
���"#�;� �����51����6����7������5���������6����48���

����
���4�
�����:�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�����?����%�����)��65�	�
P�6��������8���5	��4�5��B:� �7��5�4������6�4�5��D:B �7�Q:�

Page 24



 
Cabinet Meeting: 15 May 2012  
 
FORWARD PLAN (as at 13 April 2012) 
 

Table 1: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Cabinet Meeting on 12 June 2012 (provisional date) 
Title & Description Author Portfolio Holder 
Delivering the Council Plan Core Capabilities – Three Strategies 
Purpose of Report: To sign off three strategies which are instrumental to 
the delivery of the Council Plan core capabilities. These are the 
Customer Strategy, Innovation Strategy and Asset Management 
Strategy.  
 
Members are asked to agree the strategies.  
 

Tracey Carter Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services 

Minutes of Working Groups 
Purpose of Report: This report presents the minutes of recent meetings 
of the Young People's Working Group, the Local Development 
Framework Working Group and the Equality Advisory Group and asks 
Members to consider the advice given by the groups in their capacity as 
advisory bodies to the Cabinet. 
 
Members are asked to: Note the minutes and decide whether they wish 
to approve the specific recommendations made by the Working Groups, 
and/or respond to any of the advice offered by the Working Groups. 
 

Jayne Carr Cabinet Leader 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 5
P

age 25



Table 2: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Cabinet Meeting on 3 July 2012 (provisional date) 
Title & Description Author Portfolio Holder 
Equality Act 2010 - Implementing the public sector duties in City of 
York Council 
Purpose of the report: The public sector duties in the Equality Act 2010 
support public bodies to improve quality of life outcomes in their areas. 
They came into effect in April and September 2011. The report will 
summarise the duties as outlined in legislation and how the government 
and the Equality and Human Rights Commission expect us to meet 
them. It will outline proposals for action to meet the duties and also 
minimum standards for these actions.  
 
Cabinet will be requested to consider and approve the actions proposed 
in the report.  
 
This item was slipped to the February meeting to allow more time to 
develop an action plan for excellence for the Equalities Framework for 
Local Government. It was then slipped to the April meeting to coincide 
with setting equality outcomes for the Council. The item has now been 
slipped to the July meeting to take account of the output of stage two of 
the Fairness Commission.  
 
This item has been slipped to the July meeting to take account of the 
output of stage two of the Fairness Commission. 
 

Charlie Croft/Evie 
Chandler 

Cabinet Member for 
Leisure, Culture and 
Social Inclusion 

 

P
age 26



 
Table 3: Items slipped on the Forward Plan  
Title & Description Author Portfolio Holder Original 

Date 
Revised 
Date 

Reason for 
Slippage 

Alternative Delivery Models for 
Cultural Services 
Purpose of report: This report asks the 
Cabinet for permission to further 
develop a proposal for an alternative 
delivery model for cultural services. 
 
The report will ask the Cabinet to note 
the initial feasibility work undertaken; 
Agree to the proposal being further 
developed; Agree a consultation plan 
on the proposal. 
 
 This report was slipped to the April 
meeting to allow time for public 
consultation and then to the June 
meeting to allow further time for public 
consultation. 
 

Charlie Croft Cabinet Member 
for Leisure 
Culture and 
Social Inclusion 

6 Dec 
2011 

5 Sept 
2012 

This report has been 
slipped to the 
September meeting 
to allow more time to 
consider the 
implication of the 
review of learning & 
skills strategy. 
 

Reinvigorate – York 
 
Purpose of Report: A request from the 
Reinvigorate Steering Board for 
Members to approve £200k of short-
term funding from the wider £3.2M, 
Reinvigorate York fund, in order to 
maintain and improve public spaces in 
the city centre - as set out in the report 
and including replacement and 
refurbishment of street lights, 

Derek Gauld Cabinet Member 
for City Strategy 

15 May 
2012 

- Cabinet is no longer 
required to consider 
this report.  

P
age 27



floodlights, bollards, bins and street 
seating, and widening/ re-paving 
Station Rise footway.  
 
 
Members are asked to approve funding 
for £200k of improvements to public 
spaces in the city centre. The funding 
will be made available and spent in 
2012/13 as part of the wider 
Reinvigorate York Initiative and be 
sourced from the Economic 
Infrastructure Fund (EIF).  
 

 

P
age 28



 

 

 

Cabinet  
 

15 May 2012 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Education, Children and Young People 

Secondary Education Provision on the East side of the city and the 
Future of Burnholme Community College 

Summary  

1. This report describes a complex and challenging set of issues 
regarding the future provision of secondary education on the east 
side of the city and in particular at Burnholme Community College.   

2. The report provides Cabinet with details of the response to the 
recent public consultation concerning the future of Burnholme 
Community College.   

3. The report considers the arguments for and against maintaining 
Burnholme Community College, particularly in light of the projected 
future demand for secondary school places in the city.  The report 
considers the educational and financial implications of continuing 
to maintain a secondary school with less than 300 students.   

4. The report concludes that the educational interests of children and 
young people in the city are best served by a phased closure of 
Burnholme Community College.   

5. The report sets out proposals for transitional arrangements that 
seek to ensure that the best possible quality of education is 
maintained during a  phased  closure period and that guarantee 
students  (currently in Year 7 and 8) a choice of several alternative 
schools when they transfer schools at the end of Year 9. 

6. The report recommends that the local authority (LA) should now 
publish a statutory notice proposing the phased closure of 
Burnholme Community College, followed by a six-week 
representation period, after which the LA will consider all further 
observations and comments received and decide whether to 
proceed with the proposals. 

 

Agenda Item 6Page 29



 

Background 

7. Burnholme Community College (BCC) was judged as being a good 
school by Ofsted in 2009, and it has enjoyed strong and loyal 
support from families that have chosen the college for their 
children.   

8. The catchment area includes some of the most deprived areas of 
the city.  Out of ten mainstream secondary schools, the college 
has the highest proportion of children entitled to free school meals 
(24%), compared to the city-wide average of 9% of all secondary 
aged students. 

9. BCC currently has 286 students, including eight students with a 
statement of Special Educational Need and 32 students who 
currently receive additional support.  BCC also hosts a satellite 
provision for a group of students and staff from Applefields School, 
and provides a base for various community facilities including 
Hempland Kids Club, Burnholme Day Nursery and sports provision 
including the Multi Use Games Area (MUGA).  BCC is adjacent to 
Derwenthorpe which, when complete, could generate an estimated 
80 secondary aged students. 

10. The future of BCC was last publicly debated in 2009 when the 
governing body proposed a plan to increase the number of 
students applying for places.  The plan was supported by both City 
of York Council and the other schools in the city.  It described how 
the college would try to attract more students to start in Year 7 in 
an attempt to improve its financial position and enable it to provide 
a full curriculum choice.  Regrettably, and despite the best efforts 
of the governing body and the staff, the numbers have not risen to 
the levels predicted in the plan. 

11. The school funding system works on the basis that funding follows 
students into the schools that they attend.  In order to keep BCC 
operating effectively, City of York Council, with the agreement of 
other schools, has been providing it with a larger share of the city’s 
schools’ budget than the student numbers alone would justify.  
This made sense in the short-term to support the 2009 plan, but 
would become increasingly unfair in the longer-term as it takes 
money away from other schools in the city.  The significant 
financial implications of falling student numbers are detailed later in 
the report.   

Page 30



 

12. The LA launched a public consultation regarding the future of BCC 
in March 2012.  This was predicated on the low number of pupils at 
the school, the increasing number of surplus places, and the 
increasing level of financial subsidy required from other secondary 
schools.    

13. LAs are required to keep surplus capacity under review and to 
ensure an appropriate balance between supply and demand so 
that resources are used effectively.   

14. The chart below shows that the number of students at BCC has 
been falling steadily for seven years.   

 

15. The college can accommodate 600 students, but was predicted to 
only have 270 pupils in September 2012.  Over time, smaller Year 
7 groups have entered the college as larger Year 11 groups have 
left.   

16. The college can accommodate 120 students in each year group.  
This means that up to 120 students could start secondary school at 
the college in Year 7 every September.   

Page 31



 

 
17. The table below shows the student numbers in each year group at 

the school. 

Year Group (Current 11/12) Student numbers at Jan 12 

Year 7 48 

Year 8 66 

Year 9 51 

Year 10 57 

Year 11 64 

 

18. Declining student numbers impacts upon the school in several 
ways.  It will receive less funding, usually resulting in a reduction in 
the number of staff.  It then becomes increasingly difficult to 
maintain a full curriculum and to offer a range of options, or to 
organise subject teaching in ability groups where that is 
appropriate.  Students’ wider school experiences, as a result, 
become increasingly restricted.  There is also a challenge to 
maintain specialist teaching in subject areas resulting in pupils 
being taught by non-subject specialists.  A smaller school provides 
limited opportunities for promotion making it harder to retain 
ambitious staff. 

19. The decline in student numbers continued in 2012 with only 35 of 
the 133 children living in the catchment area, and due to start 
secondary school in September, applying for a place at BCC.  Five 
children living outside the catchment area also applied for a place.  
The governing body decided that, given the low numbers and the 
inevitable challenge of providing a full curriculum offer, it was not in 
the best educational interests of pupils to admit such a small year 
group.  All these children have since been offered, and have 
accepted, alternative places at schools of their choosing:  
Archbishop Holgate’s (29), Huntington (4), Joseph Rowntree (4), 
Millthorpe (1) Fulford (1) and Canon Lee (1). 

Options 

20. The consultation document noted that, in considering the 
challenges faced by BCC, the LA and the governing body have 
considered a range of options other than closure, including: 

Page 32



 

• keeping BCC open by increasing the funding provided   

• merging BCC with another secondary school to create a split-
site school 

• merging BCC with one or more local primary schools to create a 
’through-school’ for children aged four to 16 years 

• converting BCC into a new ‘academy’ 

21. These alternatives do not appear to offer a credible way forward 
as:  

• the economic climate facing the authority and the city’s schools 
is increasingly challenging, and the forthcoming national 
changes to school funding will limit the ability of the council to 
subsidise small schools.  This is considered in more detail later 

• there is no enthusiasm amongst the school community for a 
merger option, largely due to the underlying issues of student 
numbers and the reduced funding available for schools 
nationally 

• the government would be highly unlikely to approve the creation 
of a new academy because of falling student numbers and the 
level of surplus places, the pressing financial position BCC and 
the fact that there is already an academy in the area 

22. The consultation document asked for people’s views regarding 
these and any other options that should be explored and 
responses are considered below. 

Public Consultation – Summary  

23. The governing body organised a well attended public meeting at 
BCC on 22 February 2012 to explain the need for the public 
consultation.  The formal consultation began on 1 March 2012 and 
closed on 20 April 2012.  The consultation document described the 
reasons for the consultation, the options already considered, and 
set out the proposals and their potential implications.   

24. One thousand paper copies of the consultation document and 
questionnaire were distributed to students, parents and staff at 
BCC and neighbouring schools and libraries.  A further 1000 
copies were provided to the Burnholme Parents Action Group at 
their request.  The consultation paper and questionnaire were also 
promoted on-line on the council’s website.   

Page 33



 

25. The council received 174 online responses and 124 paper 
responses.  Annex 1 provides an analysis of the questionnaire 
responses received.  The cabinet member has been provided with 
a copy of all submissions. 

26. The council also received an e-petition supporting BCC (205 
signatures) and a separate paper petition (1996 signatures) 
organised by the Burnholme Parents Action Group.    

27. Within BCC the student council has debated the proposed closure, 
and discussed potential transition plans.  Twenty-two students 
have also completed the questionnaire. 

28. Governing bodies were also invited to respond to the consultation 
and submissions were received from Hempland Primary, 
Applefields, Fulford, Huntington, Millthorpe and Archbishop 
Holgate’s Schools and are included in Annex 2.  Individual 
governors of various schools also contributed via the 
questionnaire.  Also included in Annex 2 is a response from Cllr 
Warters as city councillor and on behalf of Osbaldwick and Merton 
Parish Councils and Meadlands area residents association.   

 
29. Hempland Kids Club has submitted a comprehensive pack 

including 72 individual letters in support of the club and the service 
it provides.  The club is based in a separate building, at the front of 
the college, formerly occupied by the Youth Service.  The Kids 
Club is a non-profit making registered charity with 170 children 
registered to the club.    

30. The council also received various requests for further information 
from individuals and via elected members and local MP’s.  Where 
available this information has been provided.  The issues have 
also been debated in the local media and on local radio.  Officers 
have met with various parents and other interested parties to 
discuss the proposals in more detail.  The Cabinet Member has 
also received correspondence from parents and members of the 
local community.   

Issues Raised During the Consultation Process  

31. The responses received inevitably reflect a wide diversity of views 
and the perspectives of different stakeholders.  This report seeks 
to highlight and address the general messages and major issues 
that were raised most frequently.  It is recognised that it is not 

Page 34



 

possible to capture the subtlety and complexity of all of the 
contributions to the debate.  The summary below is structured to 
reflect the questionnaire.  More analysis is included in Annex 1. 

Exploring Other Options   

32. Those opposed to closure advanced a variety of different 
arguments.  There was a general concern about the disruption to 
children’s education in the short term.  Many valued the fact that 
BCC was a small community school where staff know all students, 
arguing that it was therefore better placed to provide a 
personalised high quality education, particularly given the levels of 
socio-economic deprivation in parts of the catchment area.   

33. Some argued passionately that BCC has particularly strong links 
with the community that should be preserved at all costs, and 
which justifies subsidy from other schools.  In contrast, others have 
acknowledged the declining numbers and accepted that the 
authority needed to remove surplus capacity in order to make more 
cost effective provision of secondary education.  These important 
issues are returned to later.      

34. A total of 95 commented about exploring other options.  The 
argument that BCC should be maintained in order to help in 
meeting projected future demand for secondary school places was 
put forward in various debates during the consultation.  This was 
also referred to by 30 people completing the questionnaire.  This is 
clearly an important consideration for elected members and this is 
returned to later in the report. 

35. Another important point that emerged during the consultation was 
whether or not the full costs of closure had been considered when 
compared to the costs of maintaining BCC in future years.  The 
impact on other school budgets of maintaining Burnholme has also 
featured in the consultation.  Estimated closure costs, and the 
alternative costs and implications of maintaining the college, are 
also considered later in the report.   

36. Ninety-six respondents called for changes to school catchment 
areas or for a reduction in the size of other secondary schools.  
Others felt that BCC needed to be better promoted in order to 
attract more pupils.  Some argued that the council should simply 
direct children in the catchment area to attend the college, 

Page 35



 

regardless of parental preference (this would not be within the 
law).   

37. A number of detailed submissions suggested that a more creative 
approach was needed for using part of the existing Burnholme site 
to generate funding to bolster the financial viability of the school.  
Some suggested reducing the size of the existing school estate, 
and encouraging complementary uses of the site, such as running 
training or community facilities that could help reduce the running 
costs of the school.  Others highlighted the important and 
successful links with Applefields School and suggested providing 
more satellite provision and developing more education 
opportunities for 19-25 year olds with learning difficulties and 
disabilities. 

38. Some of the comments received about promoting the school, and 
looking for other partners to use the site, had been previously 
explored by the governing body in the preparation of the Business 
Plan in 2009.   

39. No detailed suggestions were received suggesting alternative 
school mergers or alternative structural solutions. 

Proposal for Years 9-11 to complete GCSE’s at the College 

40. The majority of respondents (56.4%) were fully supportive of the 
proposal that BCC should remain open until 2014 in order for 
students in current years 9, 10 and 11 to complete their GCSE’s.  
A total of 29.9% commented on various concerns, most notably 
about a possible reduction in the quality of teaching during this 
period and the numbers of staff that may seek to leave the college 
before it closes.   

41. This is clearly a key concern and the authority and other schools 
are working closely with the governing body on a range of 
measures to ensure that, in the event of closure, the leadership of 
the school is secure, and the school is able to retain high calibre 
staff.  To secure staff in key posts those identified as essential to 
remain in post until any closure takes place would be offered a 
retention package.  This would consist of a retention lump sum 
payment, payable at the point of closure, as well as them being 
guaranteed a further period of continued employment for 12 
months after the date of any closure in order to facilitate their 
permanent redeployment elsewhere.  The authority would work 

Page 36



 

with all schools in order to maximise opportunities for staff to 
ensure compulsory redundancies are avoided as far as possible. 

Proposal for current Year 7 and 8 students to transfer to 
alternative schools at end of Year 9 

42. A significant majority of the 169 respondents who commented on 
the proposals expressed concerns.  Some reported concerns 
about the emotional impact on children transferring at the end of 
Year 9, others raised issues about potential disruption to teaching 
at BCC and also at the receiving schools.  A small number 
recorded concerns about potential bullying of BCC students on 
arrival at new schools.  Others felt that as other local schools were 
already full they would not wish to, or be able to, offer places to 
BCC students.  Some respondents felt that students should 
transfer earlier. 

43. During the consultation period many parents have sought 
clarification on how a phased closure might be managed in 
practice.  The LA has been working closely with headteachers and 
governing bodies to develop a transition plan.  The support of 
various governing bodies means that the LA would expect to 
guarantee students in Year 7 and 8 a choice of alternative schools, 
including those that are already popular with parents in the 
Burnholme catchment area.   

44. Given the pattern of parental preferences the LA anticipates that, 
in the event of closure, many parents would choose Archbishop 
Holgate’s CE school, which is the next closest school for many 
students (the average distance from home to school is 1.05 miles).  
The governing body of that school is also responsible for 
admission arrangements.  The governing body has submitted a 
statement (included in Annex 2) that confirms that the school will 
offer places to any pupil in Year 7 or 8 wishing to transfer to the 
school as part of a managed phased closure.   

Proposal to provide school uniform grants for students 
transferring schools 

45. The majority of respondents (51.7%) supported this proposal.  A 
small number argued that this represented a waste of money whilst 
others suggested that the provision of uniforms should be subject 
to means testing.  The estimated cost of the proposal (£17k over 2 
years) is included in the financial section of the report.    

Page 37



 

Proposal to provide free transport for students living over 2 
miles from school 

46. The current policy of the LA is that it will provide transport for 
pupils that have to travel over three miles to their catchment 
secondary school, or over two miles where children are entitled to 
transport benefit due to low household income.  In order to support 
the transition of pupils transferring schools at the end of Year 9 the 
authority has proposed providing transport for all pupils where their 
journey exceeds two miles.  The number this applies to will depend 
upon the choice of school and the resulting distance between 
home and school.   

47. There were mixed responses to this proposal with around 44.6% 
being fully supportive and feeling that this offer was essential.  
Around 40.6% reported concerns.  Some stated that all children 
should be offered free transport, some reported concerns about 
the distances to be travelled to other schools in the city whilst a 
small number of respondents considered that this represented a 
waste of money that should be used to keep the school open.   

48. Analysis of the January 2012 census data for the students in 
current Years 7 and 8, living within the Burnholme catchment area, 
shows that the distance from home address to BCC ranged from  
0.08m to 1.11m with an average distance of 0.50m. The table 
below illustrates the range and average distances, from home 
address, to some of the alternative schools that will be available to 
students.   

School Year 
Group 

Distance 
(closest) 

Distance 
(furthest) 

Average 
Distance 

Burnholme 
Community College 

7 & 8 0.08 1.11 0.50 

Archbishop 
Holgate's CE School 

7 & 8 0.55 2.08 1.05 

Huntington School 7 & 8 1.26 3.93 2.51 

Joseph Rowntree 
School 

7 & 8 1.89 4.56 3.05 

Canon Lee School 7 & 8 1.95 3.23 2.66 

Millthorpe School 7 & 8 0.98 3.37 2.26 

Page 38



 

49. In the event of closure, the LA will work with the schools and 
operators to ensure that transport options are available for 
students to attend the range of secondary schools allocated.  This 
will be free for transferring students who live more than two miles 
away.   

Proposal to include the BCC catchment area within that of 
Archbishop Holgate’s School    

50. This proposal saw 53.4% of respondents reporting concerns.  85 
people were concerned that Archbishop Holgate’s was already full 
and that accommodating more children would lead to 
overcrowding.  Some people did not agree with having catchment 
areas at all and others argued that they weren’t rigidly enforced.  A 
smaller number (ten) expressed concerns about a catchment area 
being served by a faith school.   

 
51. The governing body of Hemplands Primary School suggested that, 

in the event of closure, Huntington School should be considered as 
the catchment school for pupils living to the north of the area.  The 
governing body of Huntington School suggested that; “we feel that 
it is important that this decision is discussed more widely before 
any agreement is made; however, we do think that there is some 
common sense merit to the proposal.  We do think it important that 
those parents who do not wish their children to attend a faith 
school but live within the proposed new catchment for Archbishop 
Holgate’s School have a secular alternative”. 

 
52. Chart 1 in Annex 3 details the number of projected numbers of 

students living in the catchment areas of Burnholme and 
Archbishop Holgate’s schools and the projected demand for places 
at the school from within the catchment area.  It is difficult to 
predict parental preferences going forward however, based on the 
available data, it would appear that merging the catchment areas 
would enable a neighbouring school to serve the Burnholme 
community.  Currently 41.7% (301) of the secondary aged students 
living in the Burnholme catchment area attend Archbishop 
Holgate’s School.      
 

53. The governing body of Archbishop Holgate’s School have 
considered this matter in detail, and have confirmed that, in the 
event of closure of Burnholme, that the school would wish to serve 
the entire catchment area.  This is confirmed in the statement at 

Page 39



 

Annex 2.  In order to meet the anticipated demand the school 
proposes to increase its annual admission limit from 162 to 216 in 
order to move from six to eight forms of entry (27 in each form).  
The school will require additional space to accommodate the two 
extra classes joining the school in each year.   

54. It is recognised that another, less desirable, option would be to 
expect all children potentially displaced by a closure of Burnholme 
to travel to various schools, with surplus spaces, across the city.  
This option would inevitably reduce local choice for parents further.  
It would also fail to assist in meeting future demand as it rises in 
other areas of the city, and would increase transport costs.     
 

55. The proposal of Archbishop Holgate’s governing body to increase 
the capacity of the school may ease the concerns raised by some 
parents that the school was full and would not be able to 
accommodate more children.  The LA recognises that some 
parents would prefer a school that was not a faith school and 
would therefore revise admission arrangements to ensure that they 
would be able to apply (as now) to any school, but would also 
guarantee a place at the nearest secular school with spaces.  The 
council’s standard school transport policy would continue to apply.  
Further discussions will be needed to ensure that proposed 
arrangements are in accordance with the new admissions code of 
practice. 
 

56. The report now considers two major concerns highlighted during 
the consultation period; firstly the future demand for places and 
secondly the costs of closure compared to the costs of maintaining 
BCC.   
 
Demographic Trends and the Future Demand for Secondary 
School Places 

57. The consultation document acknowledged that secondary school 
numbers have declined over the last decade, a trend that will 
continue until 2014/15 when numbers will begin to rise again, 
reflecting a rise in the birth rate in recent years.   

 
58. Some parents have challenged the data used by the LA and 

consider that the projections of growth in numbers are 
conservative.  The authority bases its estimates on both Office of 
National Statistics 2010 birth data for the city and data drawn from 

Page 40



 

the annual primary school census.  Chart 2 in Annex 3 details the 
actual and projected births in the city.  The chart indicates how 
recently released (March 2012) data from the 2010 census has 
revised the 2008 birth rate projection downwards.   
 

59. Chart 3 in Annex 3 illustrates the projected numbers of secondary 
aged children living in each of the city’s catchment areas.  The 
chart shows the total numbers expected to be living in the city 
through to 2020/21.  The chart also shows the total number 
expected to be attending the city’s secondary schools.  This is 
complicated by the fact that some children living in the city attend 
schools in neighbouring authorities and children from North and 
East Yorkshire travel to attend schools in the city.  Generally the 
city has seen a net outflow of students.    
 

60. It is difficult to predict with accuracy what the demand for school 
places will be at individual schools over this period.  General 
demand is subject to changes in the birth rate, in local housing 
developments, and by migration to and from the city.  Local 
demand is also subject to parental preference, often influenced by 
Ofsted judgements, league tables and community perceptions.  
Clearly there will eventually be some potential additional students 
(an estimated 80 secondary aged students by 2018/2019) from the 
local Derwenthorpe development.  It has also been recognised that 
there has been a significant increase in demand for university 
student housing in the east of the city, particularly along the Hull 
Road corridor, in Tang Hall and in Badger Hill.  In some areas this 
has served to reduce the amount of family housing and 
consequently the demand for places at some schools. 
 

61. Table 1 in the Annex 3 illustrates the relationship between 
catchment areas and the allocation of school places in the city.   
Table 2 shows the number on roll in each secondary school taken 
together with places available, whilst table 3 shows the distribution 
of over 860 surplus secondary school spaces in 2012, including 
315 at BCC.  These spaces will begin to reduce as larger cohorts 
move up from primary schools.   
 

62. Analysis suggests that the demand for school places over the next 
ten years will be stronger in certain areas of the city.  This is 
already evident in the South Bank area, in parts of the west of the 
city and in some villages.  Other planned developments on sites 
such as Germany Beck, British Sugar and Terry’s may increase 

Page 41



 

demand for places at Fulford, Manor and Millthorpe Schools in 
particular.  However, recent trends in the choices made by parents 
suggest that it is unlikely that Burnholme would experience 
increase in demand for places in Year 7 before 2017/18.  The 
benefits of this increase would then take several further years to 
filter through the school.   
 

63. It has also been argued that the Local Development Framework 
assumes further residential development in the east of the city.  
The land to the East of Metcalfe Lane is identified within the LDF 
Core Strategy as an Area of Search for potential urban extension.  
Currently land within the identified Areas of Search will not be 
required for development until at least 2025/26 and potentially 
longer if further brownfield sites come forward for development 
over the Plan Period. 

64. Officers considered view is that the timescales and major 
uncertainties around future demand for secondary placements in 
the Burnholme catchment area mean that this cannot be used as a 
compelling argument to override the educational and financial 
considerations.  These will shortly be heightened by forthcoming 
national policy changes, as outlined below. 

National Policy Implications 

65. Firstly, the government is introducing new regulations governing 
school funding.  This will result in different arrangements with less 
discretion available to local authorities to support small schools 
through a local formula.  Any significant reduction in budget will 
have a consequent reduction in staffing and an inevitable impact 
on teaching and learning.   

66. Secondly, there is an increasing focus from the DfE and Ofsted on 
school standards with direct intervention proposed at schools that 
fall below specific floor standards.  The government has increased 
the floor standard for 5 A*–C grades including English and Maths 
at GCSE to 40%, and it is anticipated that it will increase again to 
50% by 2015.  With small cohorts, and with the prior attainment of 
pupils on entry below the national average, BCC will be 
increasingly at risk of falling below the government’s floor 
standards.  Annex 4 includes a summary comparison of Key Stage 
4 performance in York secondary schools.   

Page 42



 

67. Thirdly, the Education Act 2011, The Academies Act 2010, and the 
new Admissions Code, all serve to promote the autonomy of 
individual schools and to create a more diverse range of schools 
including academies and free schools.  The legislation encourages 
the expansion of popular and successful schools to meet parental 
demand.  LAs are expected to secure a supply of strong school 
places but in a context of increasing school autonomy and with 
fewer powers to help balance supply and demand of school 
places.   

68. There are therefore likely to be additional and significant pressures 
on BCC if it were to remain open, which cast doubt on its ability – 
regardless of the efforts of the staff team – to maintain the 
standards and the breadth of curriculum to which everyone would 
aspire. 

69. Officers believe these educational and policy considerations alone 
support the case for closure, even before taking into account the 
financial considerations (including the costs of closure) which are 
considered below. 

The Financial Implications of Maintaining or Closing 
Burnholme Community College  

Financial Analysis  

70. As described earlier, with an annual intake of only 40–50 pupils, 
the college is not financially viable without a high level of support 
from other schools.  For comparison, in 2010 (latest year’s 
comparable data) there were only nine other secondary schools in 
the country in non sparse urban areas with less than 250 pupils.   
Since 2010 five of these schools have been closed by their LA and 
a further two have been subject to closure proposals.  The 
remaining two are both Voluntary Aided faith schools and are 
receiving significant charitable donations of several hundred 
thousand pounds per year. 

71. In 2009 the LA demonstrated its support of the business plan for 
BCC by agreeing to write-off a £121k cumulative deficit in the BCC 
budget.  Importantly, the Schools Forum also agreed to support 
BCC with a significant annual subsidy from the Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG), in effect, top-sliced from the budgets of other 
secondary schools in the city.  Over the three financial years to 
2011/12 additional funding of £862k has been provided to the 

Page 43



 

college.  Since 2009 the college has been unable to attract the 
number of students that the business plan required in order to stay 
within the agreed budget. 

 
72. To continue operating the college will require additional funding 

over and above the level of subsidy agreed in 2009.  To maintain 
the college will require total annual funding averaging £8.5k per 
pupil per annum (and rising to £9.8k), compared to a cost of 
between £4.2k and £5.4k per pupil at other secondary schools 
(Annex 5).  This equates to an additional subsidy of around £0.6m 
per annum on average to 2020/21 (including the existing local 
small schools factor).    

73. Given reductions in public expenditure, schools across the city are 
facing significant budget pressures.  In 2011/12 all but one of the 
city’s maintained secondary schools have been managing in year 
deficit budgets, and the situation is not expected to get any easier 
in 2012/13 and beyond.  Other schools are not in a position to 
increase the subsidy provided to BCC.  Annex 6 summarises the 
additional funding that would be required from the DSG (and is 
taken from other school budgets) or from the General Fund as a 
LA top-up to the DSG.   

74. An added complication is the DfE’s proposed changes to the 
school funding system for 2013/14 (School Funding Reform: Next 
steps towards a fairer system).  If implemented, these proposals 
could have a significant detrimental impact on BCC’s funding level 
as they severely limit the LA’s ability to support small secondary 
schools through the local funding formula.  The proposals would 
also make it much more difficult for the LA to ask other schools to 
contribute to BCC by agreeing to a top slice of their budgets.   

 
75. If the college were to close, funding would need to be set aside 

(from future savings) to meet the costs of a phased closure and to 
support other schools supporting the transition of students.  Capital 
investment of £1.5m to £2m is anticipated to be required to support 
an increase in capacity at Archbishop Holgate’s as the school 
moves from six to eight form entry.  This will need to be funded by 
either the Education Funding Agency (EFA – the new national 
body responsible for funding academy schools) or through 
Prudential Borrowing by the LA, or by a combination of both.   
Annex 7 sets out the detail of these additional costs. 

 

Page 44



 

76. No assumptions on the future use of the BCC site have been 
made as part of this financial analysis.  Any short-term or on-going 
financial implications following closure of the college are assumed 
to be cost neutral.   

77. If the college were to close then the additional funding described at 
paragraph 72 would no longer be required.  In addition, significant 
fixed costs of operating a stand alone secondary school, estimated 
at £587k pa, would also be saved.  The net impact of all of this 
would be to produce a total saving over the period to 2020/21 of 
£5.4m that would be available for redistribution to other secondary 
schools in the city.  These sums would be on top of the funding 
that would accompany the individual pupils as they were displaced 
from BCC to other schools (c£4.2k per pupil per year). 

78. This redistributable sum will be available to support redeployment 
of staff to other schools for an additional year, following the closure 
of BCC.  The amount required will be determined by the number of 
staff who do not secure alternative employment during the 
transition period. Assuming that between 50% and 75% of staff are 
redeployed for a further year following closure, this would amount 
to between £450k and £680k.  Any remaining sum would then be 
available for reallocation to schools through the local funding 
formula. 

79. Paragraphs 57-69 analyse the demographic trends and future 
demand for secondary school places.  Future increases in demand 
for secondary school places are predicted but the analysis 
concludes that much of the increased demand will not be in the 
vicinity of BCC.  This suggests that the majority of any investment 
across the city will need to be incurred regardless of a decision to 
close BCC.  This investment would have to be met from a number 
of funding sources.  Developers’ contributions through S106 
agreements would be available where new housing developments 
produced increased pupil numbers in excess of existing capacity in 
particular areas of the city.  In addition the DfE makes capital 
resources available to LAs on an annual basis through the Basic 
Needs Allocation.  This allocation is based partly on any increased 
demand for places in each LA area (for example, York has 
received £2.4m over the last two years through the Basic Needs 
Allocation to help manage the increased demand for primary 
places in particular ‘hotspots’ within the city). 

Page 45



 

 
Summary Financial Position 

 2012-20 
£m 

Cost of Maintaining BCC 5.2 
  
Implications of Closure  
  Savings from Closure 7.9 
  Less Costs of Closure (2.5) 
  Net Savings for Redistribution 5.4 
  

80. In summary the analysis shows that from a purely financial 
perspective that there is a compelling case for closure of the 
college.  If the college were to remain open then in the period to 
2020/21 estimated additional funding (in excess of the local 
funding formula) totalling £5.2m would need to be allocated to it by 
continuing to top slice the budgets of other secondary schools in 
the city.    

81. If a decision were made to close the college, and after allowing for 
the costs of closure, and making a prudent assumption that the LA 
would need to meet the cost of increasing capacity at Archbishop 
Holgate’s School, then in the period to 2020/21 estimated net 
savings totalling £5.4m would be generated.  Significant sums 
ranging from £96k to £136k per year per school would then be 
available for redistribution to other secondary schools compared to 
their current funding levels.  These sums will be available to meet 
the costs of redeployment for staff in the first year following 
closure.    

82. The majority of the capital costs associated with future increases in 
demand for secondary school places across the city would need to 
be incurred regardless of a decision to close or maintain BCC.  
However, the potential cost of replacing the 600 places removed 
by the closure of BCC, by investing incrementally at other schools 
where demand increases, is not considered excessive compared 
to the costs of keeping the college open and the savings 
generated from closure.   

HR Implications  

83.  There are significant staffing implications associated with a school 
closure.  BCC has been managing reductions in staffing as pupil 

Page 46



 

numbers have reduced year on year and further reductions would 
be required if BCC were to remain open.  In the event of a phased 
closure being agreed, the LA is committed to balancing individual 
members of staff’s employment and career choices with the needs 
of the school to retain key personnel in essential posts until BCC’s 
final closure date, whilst meeting all of our statutory obligations as 
an employer.  The LA has worked with the governing body, the 
trades unions and professional associations to agree a transition 
plan that seeks to maintain the staffing needed to ensure 
leadership of the schools and high quality teaching and learning 
through the period of the phased closure.  In the event of closure 
the LA would work with other schools to maximise opportunities for 
staff and to minimise redundancy wherever possible. 

Council Plan 

84. The provision of secondary education is a key responsibility of the 
council, which is recognised as a high performing authority in this 
regard. Successful educational outcomes for young people from all 
of our communities contribute significantly to the delivery of the 
Council’s priorities, for example, providing students with high 
quality education enables young people to contribute positively to 
the growth of the city’s economy.  Above all, the interests of young 
people have been uppermost throughout our consideration of this 
issue, given our stated ambition to make York the best place in 
England in which to grow up. 

Other Implications 

85. There are no specific Equalities, Legal, Crime and Disorder, 
Information technology, or Property implications arising.    

   Risk Management  

86.  If a phased closure is agreed then the process will require a strict 
project discipline that includes risk management.  A board would 
be established to oversee the phased closure process and all 
transition arrangements for students and staff.  The board would 
include senior representation from the closing and receiving 
schools.   

 

 

Page 47



 

Conclusions 

87.  Much has changed since 2009 when the future of BCC was last 
reviewed.  The general economic climate has worsened 
considerably and significant reductions in public expenditure 
introduced.  Although schools have seen some protection, it is 
clear that pressures on school budgets are increasing and many 
are having to make difficult decisions to balance their budgets. 

88.  The LA has a responsibility to ensure an appropriate balance 
between supply and demand of school places so that resources 
are used effectively.   

89.  This paper has described the challenges of balancing the supply 
and demand of school places given; the predicted increase in 
secondary school numbers, the pattern of parental preferences for 
school places of school in the east of the city, a national education 
policy that increasingly promotes the autonomy of individual 
institutions, all set against a backcloth of reducing capital and 
revenue budgets for LAs and schools.   

90. The consultation process brought forward a wide variety of views 
on the future of Burnholme Community College.  The report has 
sought to summarise the key arguments and issues that have 
been raised in recent months.   

91.  It would appear on balance that the interests of children and 
families across the city are best served by a phased closure.  It is 
recognised that other secondary schools in the city will need to 
expand, over time, in order to meet local demand as it increases 
over the next ten years.  This approach will serve to strengthen the 
position of the nine remaining secondary schools and academies 
across the city.  Schools in the city are currently smaller than the 
average size of secondary school in England and Wales, and this 
is likely to remain the case even in the event of Burnholme closing.   

92. A proposal to close a school is not made lightly.  It is a difficult time 
for students, parents, staff and governors at Burnholme 
Community College.  However, and importantly, headteachers and 
governing bodies across the city have shown their full commitment 
and support in ensuring that the quality of education of students is 
maintained throughout a phased closure period.  The authority has 
worked with schools to ensure that transition plans will provide a 
genuine choice of alternative schools for parents and students.  

Page 48



 

The authority will continue to work closely with staff, trades unions 
and professional associations to provide the best possible support 
for staff.  The authority remains committed to continuing financial 
support to Burnholme throughout the period of a phased closure if 
agreed.   

93. In arriving at their decision, and in deciding whether or not to 
propose a phased closure, cabinet  members are advised to 
consider:  

• whether a school with an annual intake of 40-50 students can 
provide a broad and balanced secondary curriculum that meets 
the educational needs of all 

• whether the school is financially viable given the level of 
subsidy needed to maintain the school 

• the potential impact on other secondary schools in the event of 
providing the level of subsidy needed to maintain Burnholme 
Community College 

• if it would be beneficial to maintain Burnholme Community 
College in order to meet a future demand for school places, 
given the issues and risks described in the report 

• whether the transition arrangements proposed to support the 
phased closure will minimise disruption to student’s education 
and learning 

• whether the proposed catchment area and school admission 
arrangements are appropriate and equitable 

Recommendations 

Cabinet is recommended to: 

i. Agree to publish Public Notices in accordance with section 
15(1) of the Education and Inspections Act 2006, to discontinue 
Burnholme Community College from 31 August 2014.  This to 
be followed by a six week statutory representation period, after 
which the LA must  consider any further observations and 
comments received and decide whether to proceed with the 
proposals summarised below:  

• It is proposed that Burnholme Community College will remain 
open until 2014 when students on the roll at the school in the 
current Year 9, Year 10 and Year 11 have completed their 
secondary education;       

Page 49



 

• It is proposed that current Year 8 students will continue their 
education at the Burnholme Community College until the 
summer of 2013, and will then transfer to other schools.  This 
means that they will be in their new schools for their year 10 
and 11.  For students currently on roll at Burnholme 
Community College in Year 7, it is proposed that will stay at 
the school until the summer of 2014, and will then transfer to 
other schools for their Year 10 and 11.  Detailed transition 
arrangements will be agreed between  schools and in 
consultation with parents; 

• For students currently on roll at Burnholme Community 
College in Year 7 and Year 8, transport assistance will be 
provided if their new school is over two miles from their home 
residence once they have transferred in 2014 and 2013, 
respectively; 

• For families of transferring students to receive assistance at 
the transferring stages with the purchase of new school 
uniform as required at the receiving school;  

• With the agreement of the governing body of Archbishop 
Holgate’s CE School, it is proposed that the existing 
catchment area of Burnholme Community College will be 
merged with the catchment area of Archbishop Holgate’s CE 
School.  Those seeking a non faith based school will be 
offered an alternative secular school. 

ii. To note that the LA will work closely with the governing body of 
Burnholme Community College and other schools to develop a 
comprehensive package of support for the school, and  a 
detailed transition plan for students and staff, that seeks to 
ensure the best possible education throughout the phased 
closure. 

iii. To note that the LA will work with Applefields School and other 
secondary schools in order to relocate the satellite class that 
has been successfully established at Burnholme Community 
College. 

iv. To note that the LA, with the York Education Partnership, will 
continue to develop further proposals that address the projected 
demand for school places across the city over the next decade, 
arising from predicted housing development and from the 
increase in the birth-rate. 

Page 50



 

v. To initiate a further specific consultation focussing upon the 
potential future use of the Burnholme site in the event of the 
closure of the school.  The recent consultation on the future of 
Burnholme Community College has highlighted particular 
concerns about the future of highly valued community services 
that are based at the College, including the Kids Club, the 
Burnholme Day Nursery, and Sports Provision including sports 
fields and MUGA.  The authority will wish to explore options that 
make best use of the site whilst maintaining community facilities 
wherever possible.  It is recognised that these important issues 
and possible options will require wide consultation and detailed 
debate and consideration.   

Contact Details 
Authors: Chief Officer responsible for the report: 
Kevin Hall 
Assistant Director  
Adults, Children and Education 
01904 554207 
 
Jill Hodges  
Assistant Director 
Adults, Children and Education 

Pete Dwyer 
Director of Adults, Children and Education 
01904 554200 
 
Report Approved √ Date 03 May 2012 
Cabinet Member Responsible for the report: 
Cllr Janet Looker 
Cabinet Member for Education, Children and 
Young People 
 
Report Approved  Date 25 April 2012 

 
Specialist Implications Officer(s):  
Richard Hartle (Finance) – ext 4225 
Jo Sheen (HR) - ext 4250 
 
 
 
Wards affected 

 
All 

 
� 

 
For further information please contact the authors of the report 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

Annexes 

Annex 1  Questionnaire Questionnaire summary 

Questionnaire Survey Responses 

Annex 2  Statements Applefields School 

Archbishop Holgate’s CE Academy 

Fulford School (Head) 

Hempland Primary 

Huntington School 

Millthorpe School 

Councillor Warters 

Annex 3 Data Chart 1 – Year 7 catchment population and catchment 
only demand for Archbishop CE Holgate’s and Burnholme 
Schools (Combined) 

Chart 2 - Actual and projected births in the City of York 
(1987/88 - 2027/28) 

Chart 3 - Number of Year 7 - Year 11 pupils by catchment 
area of residence, and total Year 7 to Year 11 on roll in 
the city (2009/10 - 2020/21) 

Table 1 - Home catchment pupil retention for each CYC 
secondary catchment area 

Table 2 - Number on roll at York Schools and Academies 
by National Curriculum Year Group 

Table 3 - Spaces available at York Schools and 
Academies by National Curriculum Year Group 

Annex 4 KS4 Comparison of Key Stage 4 Performance Data in York 

Annex 5 Finance Indicative Secondary School Funding – Per Pupil 

Annex 6 Finance Financial Subsidy Required in Future Years 

Annex 7 Finance Financial Analysis of Closure Proposal 

 

Page 52



Total responses (Number) 298 Sent Out Percentage Response Rate
Online 174
Postal 124 2000 6.20%

Returns: Number %
Parent or Carer of current BCC student 81 27.2%
Parent or Carer of a student at another school 69 23.2%
Current BCC student 22 7.4%
Member of staff at BCC 21 7.0%
Member of staff at another school 17 5.7%
Governor of another school 12 4.0%
BCC governor 2 0.7%
Other 48 16.1%

Exploring other options: 95 suggestions Number %
Keep BCC open as increase in all pupil numbers will 
create demand

30 31.6%

Create a Training centre / community facility 12 12.6%

Proposal to finish their GCSEs at Burnholme 
College

%

I'm fully supportive 56.4%
I have concerns 29.9%

Concerns about GCSE proposals: 118 in Total Number %
Reduction in Staff Leaving 42 35.6%
Amount of Quality of teaching / Effect on GCSE 
grades

39 33.1%

Proposal to transfer at end of year 9 %
I have concerns 70.8%
I'm fully supportive 11.4%

Concerns about transfer proposals: 169 in Total Number %

Emotional concerns 59 34.9%
Disruption to teaching at BCC and "new" schools / 
Effect on GCSE grades

40 23.7%

Proposal to provide free school uniforms %
I'm fully supportive 51.7%
I have concerns 28.2%

Concerns about school uniform proposals: 115 in 
Total

Number %

Spend money on keeping BCC open 23 20.0%
Agree this is essential 22 19.1%
Proposal to provide free transport in groups %
I'm fully supportive 44.6%
I have concerns 40.6%

Concerns about free school transport proposals: 
156 in Total

Number %

Concern about children travelling long distances & 
timings due to after school clubs

23 14.7%

Waste of money 22 14.1%
Option to include BCC in ABH catchment area %
I have concerns 53.4%
I'm fully supportive 21.5%

Concerns about including BCC in ABH catchment 
area: 183 in Total

Number %

ABH already full / this will result in overcrowding 85 46.4%

Don't agree with having catchment areas at all 16 8.7%

Of the 183 concerns,  85 questioned the capacity of Archbishops Holgate to 
take additional pupil numbers. 16 respondents are dissatisfied with the current 
catchment areas and state they  are no longer enforced.

Burnholme Community College (BCC) Consultation 2012
Summary of Survey Responses

Of the 95 suggestions, 30 suggested keeping Burnholme Community College 
open to address the predicted increase in pupil numbers on all schools. 12 
suggested running a training or community facility on the site and 10 suggested 
removing all catchment areas across the city, allowing different sizes of schools 
to operate.

Of the 118 concerns,42 were worried about the possible reduction in the 
quality of teaching and 39 were worried about the number of Staff leaving the 
school

Of the 169 concerns, 59 were about the emotional wellbeing of pupils and 40 
were about the disruption to teaching, both at Burnholme Community College 
and the schools pupils  transfer to.

Of the 115 concerns, 23 agree that free school uniforms are essential, although 
22 think the money could be better spent. There were a range of comments 
included under Other.

Of the 156 concerns, 23 are worried about children travelling long distances to 
school and are unsure how this would work with after school clubs. 22 felt the 
offer of free transport was essential, although some suggested all transferred 
pupils should be offered free school transport.

Annex 1Page 53



Survey responses Burnholme Community College (BCC) Consultation 2012 ANNEX A

Total responses 
(Number)

298

Online 174
Postal 124

Which of the following 
describe you?

Current BCC student Parent or Carer 
of current BCC 

student 

Member of staff at 
BCC

BCC governor Parent or 
Carer of a 
student at 

another 
school 

Member of 
staff at 
another 
school 

Governor of 
another 
school

Other

Number 22 81 21 2 69 17 12 48
Percentage 7.4% 27.2% 7.0% 0.7% 23.2% 5.7% 4.0% 16.1%

30 31.6%

12 12.6%

10 10.5%

9 9.5%

5 5.3%
29 30.5%
95 100.0%

Proposal to finish their GCSEs at Burnholme College
What do you think about 
the proposal for current 
years 9,10 and 11 to finish 
their GCSEs at the college?

I'm fully supportive No opinion 
either way

I have concerns Don't know

Number 168 19 89 4
Percentage 56.4% 6.4% 29.9% 1.3%

Concerns about GCSE proposals

42 35.6%

39 33.1%

15 12.7%

12 10.2%
10 8.5%

118 100.0%

Staff Leaving
Respondents  concerned about the proposal for current 
years 9, 10 and 11 to finish their GCSEs at Burnholme 
Community College are worried about a possible 
reduction in the quality of teaching and the amount of 
staff that will leave the school once a phased closure is in 
place.  

Quality of teaching / Effect on GCSE 

Staff morale / Commitment of teachers

Emotional concerns

Other
Total number

Exploring other options - suggestions

Keep BCC open as increase in all pupil 
numbers will create demand

Respondents who suggested alternative options 
discussed keeping Burnholme Community College open to 
address the predicted increase in pupil numbers on all 
schools.  Other suggestions included running a training or 
community facility on the site or removing all catchment 
areas across the city, allowing different sizes of schools to 
operate.  

Training centre / community facility

Delete all catchment areas  / Reduce all 
school sizes 
Promote BCC better to create more 
primary feeder schools

Distribute catchment areas more evenly
Other
Total number

I'm fully supportive, 56.4% 
No opinion either way, 

6.4% 

I have concerns, 29.9% 

Don't know, 1.3% 

What do you think about the proposal for current years 9,10 and 11 to finish their GCSEs at the 
college? 

1

Page 54



Survey responses Burnholme Community College (BCC) Consultation 2012 ANNEX A

Proposal to transfer at end of year 9

What do you think about 
the proposal for current 
years 7 and 8 to transfer to 
alternative secondary 
schools at the end of their 
year 9?

I'm fully supportive No opinion 
either way

I have concerns Don't know

34 17 211 10
11.4% 5.7% 70.8% 3.4%

Concerns about transfer proposals

59 34.9%

40 23.7%

13 7.7%
12 7.1%
11 6.5%
34 20.1%

169 100.0%

Proposal to provide free school uniforms
What do you think about 
the proposal to provide 
free school uniforms for 
current year 7 and 8 
students who transfer in 
groups to other schools?

I'm fully supportive No opinion 
either

I have concerns Don't know

Number 154 30 84 5
Percentage 51.7% 10.1% 28.2% 1.7%

Concerns about school uniform proposals
23 20.0%

22 19.1%

17 14.8%

8 7.0%

6 5.2%

39 33.9%
115 100.0%

Spend money on keeping BCC open Respondents concerned about the proposal to provide 
free school uniforms agree this offer is essential, although 
an equal proportion think the money could be better 
spent. There were a range of comments included under 
other.

Agree this is essential

Waste of money

Available to all students irrespective of 
when they move

Should be means tested / supplied until 
end of their school life
Other
Total number

Emotional concerns Respondents concerned about the proposal  for current 
years 7 and 8 to transfer to alternative secondary schools 
at the end of year 9 are mostly concerned about the 
emotional wellbeing of pupils and the disruption to 
teaching, both at Burnholme Community College and the 
schools pupils  transfer to.  

Disruption to teaching at BCC and "new" 
schools / Effect on GCSE grades

Bullying
Other schools are already full
Pupils should transfer earlier
Other
Number Total

I'm fully supportive, 11.4% No opinion either way, 
5.7% 

I have concerns, 70.8% 

Don't know, 3.4% 

What do you think about the proposal for current years 7 and 8 to transfer to alternative secondary 
schools at the end of year 9? 

I'm fully supportive, 51.7% 

No opinion either, 10.1% 

I have concerns, 28.2% 

Don't know, 1.7% 

What do you think about the proposal to provide free school uniforms for current year 7 and 8 
students who transfer in groups to other schools? 

2

Page 55



Survey responses Burnholme Community College (BCC) Consultation 2012 ANNEX A

Proposal to provide free transport in groups
What do you think about 
the proposal to provide 
free transport to those 
groups of children who 
transfer in groups to 
schools over two miles 
away from their home?

I'm fully supportive No opinion 
either way

I have concerns Don't know

Number 133 18 121 4
Percentage 44.6% 6.0% 40.6% 1.3%

Concerns about free school transport proposals

23 14.7%

22 14.1%

19 12.2%

19 12.2%

17 10.9%
17 10.9%
39 25.0%

156 100.0%

Option to include BCC in ABH catchment area

What do you think about 
the option of including the 
college catchment area 
within the catchment area 
of Archbishop Holgate's CE 
School?

I'm fully supportive No opinion 
either way

I have concerns Don't know

64 31 159 17
21.5% 10.4% 53.4% 5.7%

Concerns about including BCC in ABH catchment area

85 46.4%

16 8.7%

16 8.7%

10 5.5%

56 30.6%
183 100.0%

ABH already full / this will result in 
overcrowding

Respondents concerned about the option of including 
BCC within the catchment area for Archbishop Holgate's 
CE School questioned the capacity of ABH to take 
additional pupil numbers.  Other respondents are 
dissatisfied with the current catchment areas and state 
they  are no longer enforced. There were a range of 
comments included under other.

Don't agree with having catchment 
areas at all

Catchment areas aren't rigidly enforced

Concern about ABH being a faith school

Other
Total number

Concern about children travelling long 
distances & timings due to after school 
clubs

Respondents concerned about the proposals to provide 
free school transport are worried about children 
travelling long distances to school and are unsure how 
this would work with after school clubs.  Other 
respondents felt this offer is essential, although some 
suggested all transferred pupils should be offered free 
school transport.

Waste of money

How long will transport be provided / 
will it be school or public bus?

Available to all students irrespective of 
when they move / how far they travel

Agree this is essential
Spend money on keeping BCC open 
Other
Total number

I'm fully supportive, 44.6% 

No opinion either way, 
6.0% 

I have concerns, 40.6% 

Don't know, 1.3% 

What do you think about the proposal to provide free transport to those groups of children who 
transfer in groups to schools over two miles away from their home? 

I'm fully supportive, 21.5% 

No opinion either way, 
10.4% 

I have concerns, 53.4% 

Don't know, 5.7% 

What do you think about the option of including the college catchment area within the catchment 
area of Archbishop Holgate's CE School? 

3

Page 56



Survey responses Burnholme Community College (BCC) Consultation 2012 ANNEX A

Comments about alternative options for the catchment areas

71 42.5%

45 26.9%
20 12.0%

7 4.2%

5 3.0%
19 11.4%

167 100.0%

Respondents' connection with other schools (Number)

Parent or Carer 
of a student at 
another school 

Member of staff at 
another school 

Governor of 
another school

63 11 12

1

5

11 1

1

1

1

1

1

2

19 1 2

2

1

3 1

2 1

1

2

1

2

1

1

12 1 1

1 1

2 3

York College

Other

Osbaldwick Primary

Ralph Butterfield Primary

St Aelred's RC Primary

St Lawrence's CE Primary

St Paul's Nursery

Tang Hall Primary

Hempland Primary

Heworth CE Primary

Hob Moor Oaks School

Huntington School

Joseph Rowntree School

Millthorpe School

Bootham Junior School

Burnholme Community College

Carr Infant School

Derwent Primary

Fulford School

Hempland Kids Club

Schools

All Saints R.C. Secondary

Applefields School

Archbishop Holgate's CE School

Badger Hill Primary

Re-define or expand catchment areas
Respondents think that school catchment areas need re-
defining, with some respondents suggesting the inclusion 
of Huntington and Joseph Rowntrees to give current BCC 
students a greater choice of schools.

Keep BCC open
Abandon catchment areas
Promote BCC better to create more 
primary feeder schools

Make catchment areas smaller 
Other
Total number

4

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 2Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



BURNHOLME!COMMUNITY!COLLEGE!QUESTIONNAIRE!
!
Responses!from!Huntington!School’s!Governing!Body.!
!
3. The!local!authority!and!governing!body!consider!they!have!explored!all!the!possible!

solutions!for!keeping!Burnholme!Community!College!open.!However,!if!you!think!there!
are!alternatives!to!those!given!above!that!should!be!considered,!please!state!below.!
!
We!do!not!have!any!alternatives!to!the!four!possible!solutions!that!were!considered!by!
the!Local!Authority!and!the!Governing!Body.!

!
4. What!do!you!think!about!the!proposal!for!current!years!9,!10!and!11!to!finish!their!

GCSEs!at!the!college?!
!

The!future!of!the!children!in!Years!9,!10!and!11!has!to!be!up!to!the!children’s!parents!in!
the!first!instance.!!We!understand!why!it!is!preferable!that!Years!9,!10!and!11!finish!their!
GCSEs!at!the!College!but!we!have!significant!concerns!about!this!happening!as!planned;!
we!fear!that!once!parents!realise!that!the!College!is!indeed!closing,!they!will!rush!to!
remove!their!children!from!the!College!irrespective!of!any!planned!phased!closure.!

!
5. What!do!you!think!about!the!proposal!for!current!years!7!and!8!to!transfer!to!alternative!

secondary!schools!at!the!end!of!their!year!9?!
!

We!are!supportive!of!this!proposal!as!long!as!they!receive!the!support!they!will!require!
and!that!the!allocation!of!places!to!those!students!is!distributed!fairly!across!the!City’s!
secondary!schools.!

!
6. What!do!you!think!about!the!proposal!to!provide!free!school!uniforms!for!current!year!7!

and!8!students!who!transfer!in!groups!to!other!schools?!
!

We!are!fully!supportive!of!this!proposal.!
!
7. What!do!you!think!about!the!proposal!to!provide!free!transport!to!those!groups!of!

children!who!transfer!in!groups!to!schools!over!two!miles!away!from!their!home?!
!

We!are!fully!supportive!of!this!proposal.!
!
8. What!do!you!think!about!the!option!of!including!the!college!catchment!area!within!the!

catchment!area!of!Archbishop!Holgate’s!CE!School?!
!

As!a!Governing!Body!we!feel!that!it!is!important!that!this!decision!is!discussed!more!
widely!before!any!agreement!is!made;!however,!we!do!think!that!there!is!some!common!
sense!merit!to!the!proposal.!We!do!think!it!important!that!those!parents!who!do!not!wish!
their!children!to!attend!a!faith!school!but!live!within!the!proposed!new!catchment!for!
Archbishop!Holgate’s!school!have!a!secular!alternative.!

! !

Page 67



!
9. Do!you!think!there!are!any!alternative!options!for!the!catchment!area!that!could!be!

considered?!
!

No.!
!

10. Do!you!have!any!other!comments!concerning!school!admission!arrangements!in!the!
area!if!the!college!were!to!close?!

!
Whilst!we!acknowledge!that!government’s!admissions!policy!determines!that!Academies!
have!an!obligation!to!serve!their!community,!we!are!concerned!that!the!City’s!two!
Academy!schools!might!exercise!their!right!to!stand,!to!some!extent,!outside!the!Local!
Authority’s!admissions!procedures!and!so!disadvantage!local!children.!!As!faith!schools!
the!two!Academies!already!stand!far!enough!outside!the!Local!Authority’s!admissions!
procedures!and!we!would!be!concerned!if!they!became!more!distanced!from!Local!
Authority!policy!through!this!particular!issue.!

!
!

Page 68



Our Ref:  JTB/LAB 

27 April 2012 

Cllr Janet Looker      (via email cllr.jlooker@york.gov.uk)  
City of York Council

Dear Councillor Looker

BURNHOLME COMMUNITY COLLEGE - PROPOSED CLOSURE

I would like to put forward my views with respect to the proposed closure of Burnholme Community College.

I do feel sad that it has proved necessary to look into closing Burnholme Community College. As well as the 
disruption caused to the education of the pupils, the loss of a school will also affect the wider community.

Nevertheless, I do feel that the current situation is unsustainable.  In September 2012, Burnholme Community 
College will have fewer pupils than any one of twenty York primary schools.  In order to maintain a broad enough 
curriculum in such a small school, Millthorpe, with other secondary schools, have subsidised Burnholme 
Community College since 2009. The 2009 plan, which relied on rising pupil numbers to remove this subsidy, has 
failed.

This situation is worsened by a much harsher financial climate in education.  My own school has just been 
through a round of teacher and support staff redundancies to keep our budget balanced over the next year or 
two.  The £60,000 annual subsidy that my school makes towards maintaining Burnholme Community College 
might have permitted me to avoid some of those redundancies.  I cannot see that it is fair that nine secondary 
schools in York now contribute over half a million pounds annually to the maintenance of such a small and, 
therefore, expensive school.

I feel very sorry for the parents and pupils and I do recognise that Burnholme has done an excellent job for those 
families who chose it.  However, many of the pressing improvements I need to make are held back by lack of 
money and yet funding has been diverted from my school to maintain Burnholme.

I therefore support the proposal to close Burnholme Community College.  As I have indicated previously, I am 
prepared to help in any way I can with the phased closure plan and should any Burnholme pupil wish to move to 
Millthorpe, I will ensure they receive particularly good care to make a positive transition.

Yours sincerely

Trevor Burton
Headteacher

Copy:   Mr Bob Sydes (Chair of Governing Body)
   Mr Kevin Hall (Assistant Director - ACE, School & Children’s Strategy & Planning) CYC

Page 69



From:! Mark!Warters![mark@markwarters.co.uk]!
Sent:! 14!April!2012!11:41!
To:! McCormick,!Claire!
Cc:! osbaldwickparishcouncil@gmail.com;!djw1@york.ac.uk!
Subject:! Burnholme!School!
!
Dear!Claire,!
!
I!write!as!Councillor!for!Osbaldwick!and!on!behalf!of!Osbaldwick!and!Murton!Parish!Councils!and!
Meadlands!area!residents!association.!
!
I!feel!that!this!‘consultation’!is!very!much!like!many!other!CYC!‘consultations’,!merely!presentation!
of!a!situation!of!which!the!decision!has!already!been!taken!and!it!is!within!that!context!that!I!present!
these!comments.!
!

(1) Whilst!I!welcome!the!openness!in!which!the!consultation!document!and!the!Head!Teacher!
has!discussed!the!main!reason!for!proposed!closure!i.e.!‘an!increasing!number!of!rented!
student!properties!and!fewer!family!homes’,!this!in!no!way!lessens!the!impact!of!this!
disgraceful!and!entirely!predictable!situation!that!has!arisen!due!to!the!local!authority’s!
abject!failure!to!plan,!prepare!and!implement!policies!to!protect!the!eastern!quarter!of!York!
from!the!adverse!effects!of!York!University’s!rapid!expansion!in!student!numbers!without!a!
commensurate!increase!in!on"campus!accommodation.!Given!!the!imminent!introduction!of!
an!article!4!direction!to!‘restrict’(?)!the!spread!of!student!HMOs,!with!a!20%!threshold!that!
will!serve!to!encourage!rather!than!restrict!HMOs,!
I!fear!that!Burnholme!School’s!demise!will!not!be!the!last,!in!the!eastern!quarter!of!York.!

(2) I!understand!the!confusion!that!exists!regarding!the!potential!for!increased!pupil!numbers!
from!the!‘Derwenthorpe’!development.!
I!am!sure!such!confusion!would!be!increased!if!the!wider!public!were!fully!aware!of!CYC’s!
ambitions!regarding!search!area!B!in!the!LDF!core!strategy,!whereby!250!acres!of!greenbelt!
to!the!east!of!Metcalfe!Lane!is!proposed!for!housing!development.!If!the!LDF!core!strategy!is!
ever!adopted,!the!search!area!B!will!come!under!threat!of!development!over!identified!
brown!field!sites.!
It!does!not!need!much!foresight!to!envisage!final!closure!of!Burnholme!School!followed!in!a!
short!few!years!by!the!announcement!of!a!new!school!to!be!built!in!conjunction!with!search!
area!B!development.!

(3) I!have!absolutely!no!doubt!that!the!decision!to!close!Burnholme!School!is!a!‘fait!a!compli’,!
given!the!potential!capital!gain!to!the!CYC!from!selling!the!site!for!other!uses.!
I!would!like!to!state!here!and!now!that!I!will!oppose!any!attempt!to!build!on!or!otherwise!
compromise!the!natural!grass!playing!fields.!A!stance!entirely!consistent!with!both!local!plan!
and!LDF!policies!but!one!that!has!ben!disregarded!in!the!past!when!school!playing!fields!
have!been!sold!off!by!CYC!.!

(4) Regarding!potential!future!uses!for!the!built!footprint!of!the!site!I!would!like!to!see!a!
feasibility!study!undertaken!to!ascertain!if!complimentary!usage!of!some!of!the!school!
building!could!provide!supporting!funding!to!bolster!the!financial!viability!of!the!existing!
school!prior!to!inviting!suggestions!for!future!uses.!
!

!
I!know!that!the!Head!Teacher!has!drawn!up!plans!for!potential!re"development!and!complimentary!
usage!of!some!of!the!site,!have!these!proposals!been!!fully!examined?!

!

Page 70



I!do!feel!that!this!whole!situation!is!a!great!shame!for!all!past!and!present!pupils,!teachers!and!of!
course!the!current!Head!Master!who!has!done!so!much!to!keep!Burnholme!School!going.!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
Regards,!
!
Cllr.!Mark!Warters!
T:!01904!413370!
!
!

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



An
ne

x!
3!
"!

D
at

a!
An

ne
x!

CH
A
RT

!1
:!Y

ea
r!7

!c
at
ch
m
en

t!p
op

ul
at
io
n!
an

d!
'c
at
ch
m
en

t!a
re
a!
on

ly
'!d
em

an
d!
fo
r!
A
rc
hb

is
ho

p!
H
ol
ga
te
's
!a
nd

!B
ur
nh

ol
m
e!
sc
ho

ol
s!
(c
om

bi
ne

d)
!!

!

!
Pr

op
os

ed
!Y

ea
r!7

!a
dm

is
si

on
!li

m
it!

of
!A

rc
hb

is
ho

p!
H

ol
ga

te
’s
!C

E,
!fo

r!1
3/

14
!o

nw
ar

ds
,!i

s!
ba

se
d!

on
!8
!fo

rm
s!

of
!e

nt
ry

,!i
.e

.!8
*2

7!
=!

21
6.
!

!
A

rc
hb

is
ho

p!
H

ol
ga

te
’s
!C

E!
Ye

ar
!7
!a

dm
is

si
on

!li
m

it!
in

cl
ud

es
!b

ot
h!

co
m

m
un

ity
!a

nd
!fo

un
da

tio
n!

(f
ai

th
"b

as
ed

)!p
la

ce
s.
!

!
Pr

ed
ic

te
d!

de
m

an
d!

up
!to

!a
nd

!in
cl

ud
in

g!
20

19
/2

0!
is
!b

as
ed

!o
n!

hi
st

or
ic

al
!p

at
te

rn
s!

of
!p

ar
en

ta
l!p

re
fe

re
nc

e!
an

d!
ex

is
tin

g!
pr

im
ar

y!
sc

ho
ol
!c

oh
or

t!s
iz

es
.!!
!

!
Pr

ed
ic

tio
ns
!in

cl
ud

e!
an

tic
ip

at
ed

!p
up

il!
yi

el
d!

fr
om

!n
ew

!h
ou

si
ng
!d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

,!i
nc

lu
di

ng
!D

er
w

en
th

or
pe

.!
!

CH
A
RT

!2
:!A

ct
ua

l!a
nd

!p
ro
je
ct
ed

!b
ir
th
s!
in
!th

e!
Ci
ty
!o
f!Y

or
k!
(1
98

7/
88

!"
!2
02

7/
28

)!

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
16

/1
7

20
17

/1
8

20
18

/1
9

20
19

/2
0

Pupils

A
ca
de

m
ic
!Y
ea
r

To
ta

l!p
re

di
ct

ed
!Y

ea
r!7

!c
at

ch
m

en
t!p

op
ul

at
io

n!
of
!th

e!
co

m
bi

ne
d!

BC
C!

an
d!

A
H
!c

at
ch

m
en

t!a
re

as

Pr
ed

ite
d!

Ye
ar
!7
!d

em
an

d!
fo

r!b
ot

h!
A

H
!a

nd
!B

CC
!s

ch
oo

ls
,!b

ut
!fr

om
!w

ith
in
!c

at
ch

m
en

t!o
nl

y!
(s

om
e!

pu
pi

ls
!w

ill
!a

tt
en

d!
sc

ho
ol
!in
!o

th
er
!a

re
as
!o

f!t
he

!c
ity

)

Pr
op

os
ed

!Y
ea

r!7
!a

dm
is

si
on

!li
m

it!
at
!A

rc
hb

is
ho

p!
H

ol
ga

te
's
!C

E

A
H
!=
!A

rc
hb

is
ho

p!
H

ol
ga

te
’s
!C

E!
Se

co
nd

ar
y!

BC
C!

=!
Bu

rn
ho

lm
e!

Co
m

m
un

ity
!C

ol
le

ge
!

Page 73



An
ne

x!
3!
"!

D
at

a!
An

ne
x!

!

! CH
A
RT

!3
:!N

um
be

r!
of
!Y
ea
r!
7!
"!
Ye

ar
!1
1!
Pu

pi
ls
!b
y!
ca
tc
hm

en
t!a

re
a!
of
!r
es
id
en

ce
,!a
nd

!to
ta
l!Y
ea
r!
7!
to
!Y
ea
r!1

1!
on

!r
ol
l!i
n!
th
e!
ci
ty
!(2

00
9/
10

!"
!2
02

0/
21

)!

17
00

18
00

19
00

20
00

21
00

22
00

23
00

24
00

25
00

1987/88
1988/89
1989/90
1990/91
1991/92
1992/93
1993/94
1994/95
1995/96
1996/97
1997/98
1998/99
1999/00
2000/01
2001/02
2002/03
2003/04
2004/05
2005/06
2006/07
2007/08
2008/09
2009/10
2010/11
2011/12
2012/13
2013/14
2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
2025/26
2026/27
2027/28

Nmber!of!births

Ac
ad

em
ic
!Y

ea
r

CY
C!

liv
e!

bi
rt

hs
!(a

ct
ua

ls
)

Pr
oj

ec
te

d!
Bi

rt
hs
!(2

01
0!

ba
se

d)
Pr

oj
ec

te
d!

Bi
rt

hs
!(2

00
8!

ba
se

d)

So
ur

ce
:!O

ff
ic

e!
fo

r!N
at

io
na

l!S
ta

tis
tic

s!
20

10
!a

nd
!2

00
8!

ba
se

d!
su

b!
na

tio
na

l!p
op

ul
at

io
n!

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
;!O

N
S!

liv
e!

bi
rt

h!
ra

te
!a

ct
ua

ls
.!

Page 74



An
ne

x!
3!
"!

D
at

a!
An

ne
x!

Page 75



An
ne

x!
3!
"!

D
at

a!
An

ne
x!

TA
BL
E!
1:
!H
om

e!
ca
tc
hm

en
t!p

up
il!
re
te
nt
io
n!
fo
r!
ea
ch
!C
YC

!s
ec
on

da
ry
!c
at
ch
m
en

t!a
re
a!

Sc
ho

ol
!

Ye
ar
!7
!"
!1
1!
Pu

pi
ls
!in
!

Ca
tc
hm

en
t!

Ye
ar
!7
!"
!1
1!

Pu
pi
ls
!o
n!
ro
ll!

at
!C
at
ch
m
en

t!
Sc
ho

ol
!

%
!o
f!C

at
ch
m
en

t!
Pu

pi
ls
!

Ye
ar
!7
!"
!1
1!

Pu
pi
ls
!o
n!
ro
ll!

at
!N
on

!

Ca
tc
hm

en
t!

Sc
ho

ol
!

%
!o
f!C

at
ch
m
en

t!
Pu

pi
ls
!

Ca
no

n!
Le

e!
Sc

ho
ol
!

10
20

!
68

3!
67

%
!

33
7!

33
%
!

H
un

tin
gt

on
!S

ch
oo

l!
10

07
!

90
0!

89
%
!

10
7!

11
%
!

Fu
lfo

rd
!S

ch
oo

l!
10

95
!

93
4!

85
%
!

16
1!

15
%
!

Bu
rn

ho
lm

e!
Co

m
m

un
ity

!C
ol

le
ge
!

72
2!

20
8!

29
%
!

51
4!

71
%
!

M
ill

th
or

pe
!S

ch
oo

l!
11

10
!

61
1!

55
%
!

49
9!

45
%
!

A
rc

hb
is

ho
p!

H
ol

ga
te

's
!C

E!
Sc

ho
ol
!

41
5!

31
6!

76
%
!

99
!

24
%
!

Jo
se

ph
!R

ow
nt

re
e!

Sc
ho

ol
!

11
29

!
76

3!
68

%
!

36
6!

32
%
!

Yo
rk
!H

ig
h!

Sc
ho

ol
!

19
28

!
70

3!
36

%
!

12
25

!
64

%
!

! N
ot

e!
1:
!M

an
or
!C

E!
sc

ho
ol
!d

oe
s!

no
t!h

av
e!

a!
ca

tc
hm

en
t!a

re
a!

an
d!

m
an

y!
of
!it

s!
pu

pi
ls
!a

re
!d

ra
w

n!
fr

om
!th

e!
Yo

rk
!H

ig
h!

ca
tc

hm
en

t!a
re

a.
!

N
ot

e!
2:
!A

ll!
Sa

in
ts
!R

C!
Sc

ho
ol
!d

oe
s!

no
t!h

av
e!

a!
ca

tc
hm

en
t!a

re
a.
!!A

ll!
Sa

in
ts
!d

ra
w

s!
its
!p

up
ils
!fr

om
!a

cr
os

s!
th

e!
ci

ty
!a

nd
!b

ey
on

d.
!!!

So
ur

ce
:!J

an
ua

ry
!2

01
2!

sc
ho

ol
!c

en
su

s!

! ! !

Page 76



An
ne

x!
3!
"!

D
at

a!
An

ne
x!

TA
BL
E!
2:
!N
um

be
r!
on

!R
ol
l!a
t!Y

or
k!
Sc
ho

ol
s!
an

d!
A
ca
de

m
ie
s!
By

!N
at
io
na

l!C
ur
ri
cu
lu
m
!Y
ea
rg
ro
up

!(S
ou

rc
e:
!Ja

nu
ar

y!
20

12
!s

ch
oo

l!c
en

su
s)
!

N
C!
Ye

ar
gr
ou

p!
!

Y7
"Y
11

!

Sc
ho

ol
!N
am

e!
7!

8!
9!

10
!

11
!

!!
To

ta
l!

!
Ca

pa
ci
ty

A
ll!

Sa
in

ts
!R

C!
Sc

ho
ol
!

17
6!

17
3!

17
8!

17
9!

19
5!

!!
90

1!
!

89
0!

A
rc

hb
is

ho
p!

H
ol

ga
te

's
!C

E!
Sc

ho
ol
!

16
3!

15
9!

16
0!

15
6!

16
3!

!!
80

1!
!

81
0!

Bu
rn

ho
lm

e!
Co

m
m

un
ity

!C
ol

le
ge
!

47
!

66
!

51
!

57
!

64
!

!!
28

5!
!

60
0!

Ca
no

n!
Le

e!
Sc

ho
ol
!

12
0!

14
5!

17
4!

15
2!

13
8!

!!
72

9!
!

90
0!

Fu
lfo

rd
!S

ch
oo

l!
20

6!
21

0!
19

8!
20

2!
21

9!
!!

10
35

!
!

10
40

!

H
un

tin
gt

on
!S

ch
oo

l!
20

8!
24

0!
23

2!
23

5!
23

4!
!!

11
49

!
!

11
95

!

Jo
se

ph
!R

ow
nt

re
e!

Sc
ho

ol
!

18
7!

19
1!

19
6!

21
3!

19
6!

!!
98

3!
!

10
50

!

M
an

or
!C

E!
Sc

ho
ol
!

18
9!

19
0!

18
9!

18
4!

15
4!

!!
90

6!
!

90
0!

M
ill

th
or

pe
!S

ch
oo

l!
17

4!
19

9!
18

7!
20

7!
20

6!
!!

97
3!

!
10

20
!

Yo
rk
!H

ig
h!

Sc
ho

ol
!

16
3!

16
0!

14
4!

17
1!

14
3!

!!
78

1!
!

90
0!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!
!

!

To
ta
l!

16
33

!
17

33
!

17
09

!
17

56
!

17
12

!
!!

85
43

!
!

93
05

!

! TA
BL
E!
3:
!S
pa

ce
s!
av
ai
la
bl
e!
at
!Y
or
k!
Sc
ho

ol
s!
an

d!
A
ca
de

m
ie
s!
by
!N
at
io
na

l!C
ur
ri
cu
lu
m
!Y
ea
rg
ro
up

!(S
ou

rc
e:
!Ja

nu
ar

y!
20

12
!s

ch
oo

l!c
en

su
s)
!

N
C!
Ye

ar
gr
ou

p!
Sc
ho

ol
!N
am

e!
7!

8!
9!

10
!

11
!

!!
To

ta
l!

A
ll!

Sa
in

ts
!R

C!
Sc

ho
ol
!

2!
5!

0!
"1
!

"1
7!

!!
"1

1!
A

rc
hb

is
ho

p!
H

ol
ga

te
's
!C

E!
Sc

ho
ol
!

"1
!

3!
2!

6!
"1
!

!!
9!

Bu
rn

ho
lm

e!
Co

m
m

un
ity

!C
ol

le
ge
!

73
!

54
!

69
!

63
!

56
!

!!
31

5!
Ca

no
n!

Le
e!

Sc
ho

ol
!

70
!

45
!

16
!

38
!

52
!

!!
22

1!
Fu

lfo
rd
!S

ch
oo

l!
2!

"2
!

10
!

6!
"1

1!
!!

5!
H

un
tin

gt
on

!S
ch

oo
l!

31
!

"1
!

7!
4!

5!
!!

46
!

Jo
se

ph
!R

ow
nt

re
e!

Sc
ho

ol
!

33
!

29
!

24
!

7!
24

!
!!

11
7!

M
an

or
!C

E!
Sc

ho
ol
!

"9
!

"1
0!

"9
!

"4
!

26
!

!!
"6
!

M
ill

th
or

pe
!S

ch
oo

l!
30

!
5!

17
!

"3
!

"2
!

!!
47

!

Yo
rk
!H

ig
h!

Sc
ho

ol
!

17
!

20
!

36
!

9!
37

!
!!

11
9!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

To
ta
l!

24
8!

14
8!

17
2!

12
5!

16
9!

!!
86

2!
!

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Comparison of Key Stage 4 performance in York: 2008/09 to 2010/11 

Key Stage 4 Achievement 

School
5+ A*–C inc En & Ma 5+ A*–C 

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 
All Saints  71% 62% 68% 88% 76% 80% 
Archbishop Holgate’s  57% 72% 66% 84% 88% 77% 
Burnholme 42% 38% 45% 88% 66% 74%
Canon Lee  54% 52% 49% 78% 73% 61% 
Fulford 73% 71% 78% 94% 89% 83%
Huntington 63% 55% 57% 76% 77% 76%
Joseph Rowntree  62% 47% 53% 74% 71% 72% 
Manor 79% 76% 71% 92% 95% 78%
Millthorpe  59% 64% 59% 82% 85% 71%
York High  56% 57% 46% 96% 92% 68% 

3 levels progress from KS2 to KS4 

School
English Maths

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
All Saints  86% 76% 81% 72% 61% 63% 
Archbishop Holgate’s  64% 86% 78% 70% 79% 71% 
Burnholme 63% 60% 56% 54% 37% 47%
Canon Lee  67% 56% 56% 59% 58% 50% 
Fulford  88% 86% 83% 83% 85% 90% 
Huntington  81% 72% 73% 62% 64% 63% 
Joseph Rowntree  69% 49% 60% 68% 55% 59% 
Manor  82% 89% 77% 80% 82% 74% 
Millthorpe  75% 80% 76% 60% 64% 64% 
York High  76% 68% 62% 67% 72% 69% 

Value Added (National average = 1000) 

School
Value Added Contextual V.A. 

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
All Saints  1016 987 993 

N
o 

lo
ng

er
 r

ep
or

te
d 

982 987 
Archbishop Holgate’s  1013 1018 1008 1018 1005 
Burnholme 1012 1001 1002 1010 1012 
Canon Lee  1001 982 981 983 987 
Fulford 1029 1030 1020 1024 1007 
Huntington 999 1007 1012 997 1003
Joseph Rowntree  980 970 995 973 997 
Manor 1013 1027 1014 1022 1007 
Millthorpe  998 998 994 993 991 
York High  1015 1014 1014 1019 1018 

Annex 4Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



A
n

n
ex

 3

£7
,0

00

£7
,5

00

£8
,0

00

£8
,5

00

£9
,0

00

£9
,5

00

£1
0,

00
0

A
nn

ex
!5
!"
In
di
ca
ti
ve
!S
ec
on

da
ry
!S
ch
oo

l!F
un

di
ng
!"
Pe

r!P
up

il

£4
,0

00

£4
,5

00

£5
,0

00

£5
,5

00

£6
,0

00

£6
,5

00

Ba
se

!P
os

iti
on

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
16

/1
7

20
17

/1
8

20
18

/1
9

20
19

/2
0

Yo
rk

!H
ig

h
Bu

rn
ho

lm
e

A
rc

hb
is

ho
p!

H
ol

ga
te

's
Ca

no
n!

Le
e

Al
l!S

ai
nt

s
Jo

se
ph

!R
ow

nt
re

e
M

ilt
ho

rp
e

H
un

tin
gt

on
M

an
or

Fu
lfo

rd

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



A
n

n
ex

 6
 -

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

u
b

si
d

y 
R

eq
u

ir
ed

 in
 F

u
tu

re
 Y

ea
rs

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
16

/1
7

20
17

/1
8

20
18

/1
9

20
19

/2
0

20
20

/2
1

T
o

ta
l

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

Y
ea

r 
7 

In
ta

ke
 (

S
ep

te
m

be
r)

46
53

40
48

67
77

70
65

65
T

ot
al

 P
up

il 
N

um
be

rs
 (

S
ep

te
m

be
r)

26
0

26
5

25
4

24
5

26
8

29
6

31
1

33
1

34
8

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

S
m

al
l S

ch
oo

l F
ac

to
r 

F
un

di
ng

21
1

23
7

24
6

24
9

26
3

23
6

19
8

16
5

13
3

1,
93

8
A

dd
iti

on
al

 S
ub

si
dy

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t
41

4
46

5
41

4
46

5
50

5
40

3
27

9
21

4
12

5
3,

28
4

T
o

ta
l A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 R
eq

u
ir

ed
62

5
70

2
66

0
71

4
76

8
63

9
47

7
37

9
25

8
5,

22
2

C
os

t p
er

 S
ch

oo
l

A
ll 

S
ai

nt
s

70
78

74
80

86
71

53
42

29
58

2
A

rc
hb

is
ho

p 
H

ol
ga

te
's

60
67

63
68

74
61

46
36

25
50

0
C

an
on

 L
ee

60
67

63
68

73
61

45
36

25
49

8
F

ul
fo

rd
77

87
82

88
95

79
59

47
32

64
7

H
un

tin
gt

on
88

99
93

10
1

10
9

90
67

54
36

73
9

Jo
se

ph
 R

ow
nt

re
e

72
81

76
82

88
73

55
43

30
59

9
M

an
or

64
72

67
73

78
65

49
39

26
53

4
M

ilt
ho

rp
e

75
84

79
85

92
76

57
45

31
62

4
Y

or
k 

H
ig

h
60

67
63

68
73

61
46

36
25

50
0

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
16

/1
7

20
17

/1
8

20
18

/1
9

20
19

/2
0

20
20

/2
1

T
o

ta
l

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
P

ro
je

ct
ed

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
C

lo
su

re
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l
R

ev
is

ed
 T

ot
al

 P
up

il 
N

um
be

rs
 (

S
ep

te
m

be
r)

22
2

99
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

A
dd

iti
on

al
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
:

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

  A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
:

   
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 S
ho

rt
-t

er
m

93
5

2
10

0
   

 P
er

m
an

en
t L

on
g-

te
rm

25
13

1
21

9
21

9
21

9
21

9
21

9
21

9
1,

47
0

  T
ra

ns
iti

on
al

 P
up

il 
C

os
ts

:
   

 U
ni

fo
rm

s 
fo

r 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
pu

pi
ls

10
7

17
   

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

os
ts

4
18

27
26

28
31

33
35

37
23

9
   

 L
ag

ge
d 

P
up

il 
F

un
di

ng
 S

ho
rt

fa
ll

54
38

92
  A

pp
le

fie
ld

's
 S

at
el

lit
e 

P
ro

vi
si

on
10

0
10

0
  B

C
C

 D
ec

om
m

is
si

on
g 

co
st

s
25

25
  S

ta
ffi

ng
 C

os
ts

:
   

 R
ed

un
da

nc
y 

&
 E

ar
ly

 R
et

ire
m

en
t P

ay
m

en
ts

11
9

10
8

16
1

38
8

   
 R

et
en

tio
n 

P
ay

m
en

ts
91

91
R

ed
uc

ed
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
:

  S
m

al
l S

ch
oo

l F
ac

to
r 

F
un

di
ng

57
(9

7)
(2

49
)

(2
63

)
(2

36
)

(1
98

)
(1

65
)

(1
33

)
(1

,2
84

)
  A

dd
iti

on
al

 S
ub

si
dy

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t
(3

7)
(2

93
)

(3
74

)
(4

65
)

(5
05

)
(4

03
)

(2
79

)
(2

14
)

(1
25

)
(2

,6
95

)
  F

ix
ed

 C
os

t (
N

on
 P

up
il 

Le
d)

 S
av

in
gs

(3
91

)
(5

87
)

(5
87

)
(5

87
)

(5
87

)
(5

87
)

(5
87

)
(3

,9
13

)

N
et

 A
n

n
u

al
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 C
o

st
 / 

(S
av

in
g

)
11

4
(2

1)
(3

71
)

(8
95

)
(1

,1
08

)
(9

76
)

(8
12

)
(7

12
)

(5
89

)
(5

,3
70

)

!
S

h
o

rt
-t

er
m

 t
em

p
o

ra
ry

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
(£

10
0k

 o
ve

r 
3 

ye
ar

s)
. T

he
 e

st
im

at
ed

 c
os

ts
 o

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

at
 

A
rc

hb
is

ho
p 

H
ol

ga
te

’s
 S

ch
oo

l f
ro

m
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
.  

F
ro

m
 a

 p
ur

el
y 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
er

sp
ec

tiv
e 

it 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
or

e 
co

st
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

th
es

e 
pu

pi
ls

 in
 o

th
er

 s
ch

oo
ls

 w
he

re
 s

pa
re

 c
ap

ac
ity

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 e

xi
st

s.
  H

ow
ev

er
 th

e 
LA

 is
 m

in
df

ul
 o

f p
ar

en
t’s

 a
nd

 p
up

il’
s 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
 fo

r 
a 

lo
ca

l s
ol

ut
io

n 
if 

B
C

C
 

w
er

e 
to

 c
lo

se
.

!
L

o
n

g
-t

er
m

 p
er

m
an

en
t 

ac
co

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 (
m

ax
. £

21
9k

 o
n

-g
o

in
g

 c
o

m
m

it
m

en
t)

.
A

s 
pe

r 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

53
, a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 8

-1
0 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
 te

ac
hi

ng
 b

lo
ck

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

at
 A

rc
hb

is
ho

p 
H

ol
ga

te
’s

.  
T

he
 L

A
 w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
F

un
di

ng
 A

ge
nc

y 
(E

F
A

 –
 th

e 
ne

w
 b

od
y 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

ac
ad

em
y 

sc
ho

ol
s)

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
ec

is
e 

ca
pi

ta
l n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
th

at
 e

ac
h 

w
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

to
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
T

he
 fi

gu
re

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 to

ta
l c

ap
ita

l c
os

t o
f £

1.
5m

 to
 £

2m
 a

nd
 a

ss
um

e 
a 

w
or

st
 c

as
e 

sc
en

ar
io

 w
he

re
 th

e 
LA

 fu
nd

s 
th

e 
fu

ll 
m

ax
im

um
 

of
 £

2m
 v

ia
 a

 2
5 

ye
ar

 p
ru

de
nt

ia
l b

or
ro

w
in

g 
sc

he
m

e,
 ta

ki
ng

 n
o 

ac
co

un
t y

et
 o

f a
ny

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
E

F
A

.

!
A

p
p

le
fi

el
d

s 
S

at
el

lit
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 (£
10

0k
 o

n
e-

o
ff

).
T

he
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l o
ne

-o
ff 

co
st

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t s

at
el

lit
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
to

 a
no

th
er

 s
ch

oo
l s

ite
.

A
n

n
ex

 7
 -

 F
in

an
ci

al
 A

n
al

ys
is

 o
f 

C
lo

su
re

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l

!
S

ta
ff

 r
et

en
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 r

ed
u

n
d

an
cy

 (
£4

79
k 

to
ta

l o
ve

r 
3 

ye
ar

s)
. 

 In
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
pu

pi
ls

 th
ro

ug
h 

to
 th

e 
po

in
t o

f 
cl

os
ur

e,
 k

ey
 s

ta
ff 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

.  
P

ro
vi

si
on

 h
as

 th
er

ef
or

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

pa
ym

en
ts

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 2
01

3/
14

 a
ca

de
m

ic
 

ye
ar

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 p
ru

de
nt

 e
st

im
at

es
 fo

r 
st

af
f r

ed
un

da
nc

y 
co

st
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

pe
rio

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

ff 
pr

of
ile

 a
nd

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ta
ff 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
de

pl
oy

ed
 in

to
 r

ol
es

 a
t o

th
er

 s
ch

oo
ls

.

!
S

ch
o

o
l u

n
if

o
rm

 c
o

st
s 

(£
17

k 
o

ve
r 

2 
ye

ar
s)

. O
ne

 o
ff 

pa
ym

en
ts

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f u

ni
fo

rm
s 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
pu

pi
ls

 w
ho

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 

fr
om

 B
C

C
 to

 o
th

er
 s

ch
oo

ls
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ph

as
ed

 c
lo

su
re

.
!

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 c
o

st
s 

(a
p

p
ro

x 
£3

0k
 p

a 
o

n
-g

o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it

m
en

t)
. 

 F
un

di
ng

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fr

ee
 tr

an
sp

or
t f

or
 p

up
ils

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

46
 to

 4
9.

!
T

ra
n

si
ti

o
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 (
£9

2k
 o

ve
r 

2 
ye

ar
s)

.  
A

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
pu

pi
ls

 in
 th

ei
r 

ne
w

 s
ch

oo
l p

rio
r 

to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l f

un
di

ng
 fo

rm
ul

a 
‘c

at
ch

in
g 

up
’ u

nd
er

 th
e 

la
gg

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

  
 

   

 
Cabinet 15 May 2012 
 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Health, Housing and Adult Social 
Services  

Implementing the Review of the City of York Council’s Residential 
Care Homes for Older People 

Introduction 
 

1. This report provides financial model options arising from the 
decision by Cabinet on the 10 January 2012 to proceed with the 
development of the three sites to replace the councils existing 
Elderly Persons’ Homes.  The report seeks an approval in 
principle for Option 4 and its borrowing requirements together with 
decisions on the way forward for this modernisation programme 
over the next four years. 

 
Background 

 
2. At its meeting on the 10 January 2012, and in the context of the 

positive public endorsement of the overall Elderly Persons Homes 
(EPH) strategy, Cabinet agreed: 

a) to the closure of Oliver House and Fordlands Residential Care 
Homes and that residents’ moves to their new homes are 
carefully planned and managed in line with the “Moving Homes 
Safely” protocol 

b) to the implementation of the overall programme of development 
for the modernisation of the council’s Residential Care Homes 

c) that officers undertake a soft market testing exercise for the 
development of the Lowfield site and report back to Cabinet the 
outcome along with a financial model of the operating and 
design options 

d) to receive a more detailed business case for the development 
of a new residential care home on the Fordlands site which 
shows the possible build and operating options. 

Agenda Item 7Page 87



 
 

Progress on the closure of Oliver House and Fordlands 
Residential Care Homes 

 
3. Officers from the council’s Assessment Teams and Care Home 

staff from Fordlands and Oliver House worked closely with 
residents and relatives to ensure that all residents had a carefully 
planned and managed move to their new home.  All 25 residents 
moved to their ‘first preference’ home with all, except one, moving 
to City of York Council EPHs.  All residents had been offered and 
mainly took up the opportunity to visit 2-3 homes before choosing 
their final preference.  Residents without relatives were supported 
through the process by independent advocates.  The residents 
moved in small numbers and by mid-March all of the residents 
from both homes had successfully moved and were settled in their 
new homes. 

 
4. Care management staff set review dates for each of the residents 

that moved.  The reviews were set to take place around 28 days 
from the date of their move.  Feedback so far has been positive 
from both residents and their families. 

5. In addition, York St John University has been commissioned to 
undertake an external evaluation of practice around the closures 
of Fordlands and Oliver House.  The researcher will talk to 
residents, relatives and staff about the residents’ experience of the 
moves and the process that has been followed.  The research will 
tell us (a) how well the council followed the process outlined in its 
‘Moving Homes Safely’ protocol, (b) whether that protocol 
represents a ‘best practice’ model nationally, and (c) what learning 
lessons we can take to help inform the second round of EPH 
closures planned for Spring 2014.  The findings of that research 
will be shared with the Cabinet Member who has committed to 
make the report public. 

 
Elderly Persons Home Staff 

 
6. All Fordlands and Oliver House staff have now been redeployed 

into either the same, or fundamentally the same posts at the other 
CYC EPHs and the vast majority have moved to their first 
preference home.  Thirty two staff have been released via the 
council-wide voluntary redundancy programme which meant that 
the council was able to achieve the closure of Fordlands and 
Oliver House without the need to make any compulsory 
redundancies. 

Page 88



 
 

Fordlands and Oliver House sites 
 
7. The buildings at Fordlands and Oliver House were returned to 

Property Services on 30 March 2012.  The buildings have been let 
to a ‘Property Guardian’s’ company to arrange for short term 
residential occupancy.  This arrangement offsets site security 
costs until a decision is made relating to the disposal of Oliver 
House and eliminates security costs for Fordlands prior to the 
levelling of the building in preparation for the new build 
construction. 

 
8. A separate report outlining a range of options for the future of the 

Oliver House building/site follows this report on the Cabinet’s 
agenda. 

 
The Lowfield Care Village 

 
Ethos of the Care Village 

 
9. As agreed in previous papers to Cabinet, the council’s vision is for 

a ‘Community Village for Older People’ on the Lowfield site, set 
within the wider community of Acomb.  The site, and the 
accommodation and facilities within it, will be designed in such a 
way as to encourage a two way interaction between the care 
village and the wider community.  Care Village residents will 
access the wide range of services and facilities nearby (eg local 
shops, Acomb Explore Library, Energise Leisure Centre) and, 
likewise, the wider community will be encouraged to access the 
care village site (eg for a community cafe, community 
garden/allotments). 

 
10. The council sees the accommodation on the Lowfield site being 

for people aged 65 years+.  The accommodation on site will range 
from completely independent living, to extra care accommodation, 
through to residential care, including dementia and nursing care.  
Whilst many residents may not have any immediate care needs on 
arrival, the village accommodation would be configured for people 
to be able to access care as required.  This would mean, for 
instance, that all of the accommodation would be built “care ready” 
with minimal work required to install care technology or aids and 
adaptations.  All accommodation will have good access, wide 
doorways, en-suite facilities, and be designed in such a way that it 
can easily be adapted if the resident’s care needs change.  All of 

Page 89



 
 

the accommodation on site will have the option of being ‘linked up’ 
24/7 to the Care Home/Centre should assistance be required. 

 
The Lowfield site 

 
11. The whole Lowfield site covers 13 acres.  The Care Village will 

occupy the six acre site that was previously occupied by Lowfield 
School.  The remaining seven acres are currently green field but, 
longer term (subject to the successful relocation of the two football 
pitches) there is the possible option of further development.  In 
considering the six acre site, the council needs to be mindful of the 
possibilities offered by a second phase to the development.  For 
example, it will need to ensure that the care village’s infrastructure 
(ie access, roads, drainage, electrical sub-stations) is sufficient to 
‘serve’ the seven acres should that be developed at a later stage. 

 
Feedback from the Lowfield Soft Market Testing (SMT) 
Exercise 

 
12. Cabinet agreed in early January 2012 for officers to undertake soft 

market testing of options for the site.  ‘Soft Market Testing’ (SMT) 
describes a pre-procurement phase which has enabled the council 
to (a) tell ‘the market’ about the Lowfield Care Village 
concept/scheme, (b) gauge the market’s interest in the project, 
and (c) engage with the market to hear its views on the project 
and how it might best be approached.  In mid-January the council 
published a Prior Information Notice (PIN) in the Official Journal of 
the European Union (OJEU).  Considerable market interest 
followed with some 171 companies expressing an interest in the 
project. 24 companies made formal responses and over three-day 
period officers from the council met with ten companies to share 
and discuss ideas. 

 
13. Representatives of these companies came from a wide spectrum 

of professionals involved in the design, build, development, and 
operation of Care Villages.  Over the three day period officers met 
with architects, builders, funders and care operators.  There was a 
clear and enthusiastic response to the exercise and officers 
learned much about the complexity and competing variables that 
would have to be considered on this project.  All of the 
organisations consulted expressed great interest in the project and 
thought that the Lowfield site represented an exciting opportunity 
to develop something new and innovative for the city.  Officers 

Page 90



 
 

were left with little doubt about the interest that would be 
generated by any formal procurement exercise. 

 
The key messages that were gathered from the soft market 
testing can be seen in detail at Annex A but are summarised 
below: 

 
14. The Care Village market is not yet a mature one in the UK.  

There are not yet any care villages that have been designed, built 
and operated by a Local Authority (LA) on its own.  There are, 
however, Care Villages that have been built by developers 
working in differing partnership arrangements with an LA. 
 

15. Care Villages work best with a single operator for the whole 
site.  Examples were given of multiple care providers and a 
separate landlord and the consequent lack of synergy which 
impacted adversely on the quality of care provided. 

 
16. Good design is of crucial importance.  A clear message from 

the soft market testing was that the (care) operator needs to be 
working with the architect from the very start to ensure that the site 
and the layout of accommodation work to achieve the maximum 
possible synergy both from the perspective of the community and 
operational efficiency. 

 
17. Detailed pre-build market research of what facilities should 

be available in the Community or Social Hub will be key to its 
success.  The relationship between the Community Hub and the 
wider community has to be properly thought through.  Duplication 
or counterproductive competition could cause loss of 
sustainability.  Detailed market research will be necessary to 
gauge exactly what facilities might be wanted/needed on this 
specific site, given the close proximity of many key services and 
facilities in the surrounding Acomb community. 
 

18. The mix and density on site must be carefully determined and 
needs to satisfy a number of key stakeholders.  Whilst there is 
a need for clarity around what will work most efficiently and 
effectively from an operator perspective.  There is also a need to 
be clear about the appeal of each type of building to prospective 
residents and what style of buildings would sell or rent best in 
order to make the development financially viable.  This is very 
dependent on local conditions.  Any prospective developer/partner 
would need to undertake a comprehensive market research 

Page 91



 
 

exercise in order to determine precisely what is built on site and 
how much it might command for sale or rent. 

 
19. The building design needs to be flexible to ensure future 

proofing and adaptability.  Internal construction of rooms should 
be designed to be movable to allow rooms to scale up and down.  
This could, for example, provide the flexibility to change between 
one and two bedrooms if future demand dictated.  Designed in 
flexibility will allow a switch between care provision in the future 
should the balance of demand and provision change significantly. 
 

20. Health partners need to be involved as soon as possible.  
Health partner involvement will help shape the village design and 
input into the services delivered.  These health related services 
could include intermediate care to help people ‘step-down’ from a 
stay in hospital. 

 
21. Affordable Housing - 25% of the mix of accommodation 

excluding the Care Home would be designated as affordable 
housing (ie housing provided to specified eligible households 
whose needs are not met by the market). 

 
22. Nomination Rights - The Tender would include that CYC would 

have full nomination rights to the 90 registered care beds. Should 
CYC decide to tender for a partner then there is an expectation 
that an allocations panel consisting of key stakeholders would 
determine the suitability of prospective residents for the other on-
site accommodation. 

 
23. Service Charges - Services and charges should be kept to a 

minimum but would be determined after market analysis, local 
research and would be fully understood at the point of any tender 
award. However, it would be the intention that any charges would 
be in relation to accommodation services and not to public 
amenities such as the Community Hub or the gardens. 

 
24. Following the information gained from the Soft Market Testing 

exercise and the subsequent local assessment of market demand, 
build costs and potential sale there is considerable confidence that 
the non-residential, care elements of the new build could be self 
financing.  The exact mix, site density and spilt between sale, rent 
or shared ownership would determine the amount of surplus 
available to fund the Community Hub as well as producing some 
capital receipts.  Overall, the consensus from the process 

Page 92



 
 

undertaken is that finance is available, and that architects, 
developers and operators are ready, enthusiastic and willing to 
work in partnership with City of York Council in delivering a care 
village that can help meet the needs and aspirations of York’s 
ageing population over the next 30-40 years. 

 
Financial Considerations 

 
25. A key assumption in our planning has been that the EPH 

modernisation programme is self sufficient, ie the current revenue 
costs of £5.3m for the seven homes must afford the operating 
costs for the three new sites and be able to repay their capital 
costs over a 25 year period.  There is no new long term money 
available to the project.  As a consequence, savings must be 
made in current revenue/operating costs to be able to afford the 
capital repayments and deliver the new facilities for the future. 

 
26. If the council did not commit to a Care Home modernisation 

programme then the forecast demand for dementia and high 
dependency care services would have to be commissioned from 
the private sector. However, capacity in this sector would have to 
grow to meet this demand.  The new care homes and the ensuing 
capital costs are therefore offsetting future costs associated with 
demographic growth and the need for additional dementia/high 
dependency care places. 

 
27. There are two major components that make up the cost of 

providing a care bed - operating costs and capital repayment costs 
- which have to be paid for from the council’s Revenue Budget.  
Within the operating costs the biggest proportion is staff costs.  
These are typically over 80% for LA staff and in the order of 60% 
for independent sector staff.  Currently the bed cost of the existing 
seven care homes is centred predominantly on operating costs 
plus some central and departmental overheads.  Extensive work in 
the CYC’s EPHs in 2011 achieved some significant efficiencies by 
reducing excess management and by managing rotas better.  
There is a willingness to explore other options which may reduce 
costs further and the council is keen to encourage an in-house bid 
in the event that there is a decision to tender for future operators. 

 
Capital Receipts and Land Costs 
 
28. At the conclusion of the EPH modernisation programme, seven of 

the nine existing residential care homes will no longer be required 

Page 93



 
 

by the Adults, Children and Education directorate and will be 
returned to Property Services for disposal.  Estimates on the value 
of these sites are variable, depending on when they are sold and 
whether the site has been demolished prior to sale. 

 
29. Two sets of valuations have been undertaken.  Valuations were 

undertaken by Property Services in January 2011. These prices 
reflect the most optimistic position.  A further set of valuations 
were undertaken by DTZ in April 2011 and these valuation 
represent a very cautious position.  There have been no sales of 
similar properties in recent time within York and this makes it 
difficult to produce a realistic value for the sale of the Care Homes. 
The most optimistic values have been reflected in this report. 
Financial appraisal of the most cautious, the most optimistic and a 
mid point can be found in the financial annex B. 

 
30. Disposal of Oliver House in a way which does not lead to a capital 

receipt would lead to a greater amount having to be borrowed.  
Should Cabinet decide that Oliver House should be rented out 
then the rent would need to generate sufficient revenue to offset 
the increase in borrowing resulting from not selling the asset.  The 
Report to Cabinet on Oliver House explains each of the relevant 
business cases and explores their financial implications. 

 
31. The six acre portion of the Lowfield site is estimated as having a 

value of £2m but this capital receipt has already been included 
within earlier corporate financial projections and therefore needs 
to be reflected in the overall capital required.  This sum is 
therefore included in the capital borrowing costs within the 
financial analysis at annex B.  However, the whole six acre site 
would not be required by the care home development and 
approximately four acres would be made available for affordable 
housing, apartments and bungalows for older people that make up 
the “community village” model.  The Fordlands and Haxby Hall 
sites are also owned by the council and have no capital receipt 
and consequently their land value does not feature in the 
borrowing requirements. 

 
32. With an increased accommodation density on the Lowfield site 

arising from the information gained from the SMT there could be a 
significant capital receipt stream that will either offset some of the 
£2m capital cost of the site and/or fund the cost of the community 
hub.  It is not possible to accurately predict what this receipt may 
be as it would depend on the number, type and price of 

Page 94



 
 

accommodation made available for sale.  However, it would be 
reasonable to assume that this receipt could vary between £500k 
and £1.5m.  As these receipts are not included in the financial 
model they can mitigate any risk around not achieving the full 
capital receipts for all of the seven sites. 

 
Table 1 Modernisation Programme 
 
Phase 1 
April 2012 
 

Phase 2 
April 2014 

Phase 3 
April 2015 

Oliver House closed 
Fordlands closed 

New Fordlands opens 
Lowfield Village opens 
 
Haxby Hall closes 
Oakhaven closes 
Windsor House closes 
Morrell House closes 
Willow closes 

New Haxby Hall opens 
 
 
Grove House closes 
Woolnough closes 

 
Options 

 
33. Whichever option is chosen to fund, build and operate the new 

facilities there is a need for short term revenue funding in the early 
years whilst building works are completed and accommodation is 
sold on the village site.  The amount varies according to who 
operates the homes, the possible partnership arrangements with 
developers, and the profiling of the capital land receipt for 
Lowfields. 

 
34. The financial appraisal of four options has been considered: 

• Option 1 - the three new developments have care provided by 
independent sector operators 

• Option 2 - the council provides the care on the three new 
developments 

• Option 3 - the council provides the care on the Fordlands 
development only.  Care on Lowfield and Haxby Hall is 
provided by an independent sector operator 

• Option 4 - the council provides the care on the Fordlands and 
Haxby Hall developments only.  Care on Lowfield is provided 
by an independent operator 

Page 95



 
 

35. In order to assess the financial viability of these options, several 
assumptions and scenarios have been made and modelled.  This 
detailed analysis can be found in annex B. 

36. Each option has been appraised against the most favourable, 
least favourable and a mid-point capital condition.  The most 
favourable conditions see no overspend on the predicted build 
cost and the most optimistic capital receipts from the sale of the 
seven EPHs.  The least favourable conditions assume the most 
cautious capital receipts and a 20% overrun on build costs.  The 
middle option assumes medium capital receipts and a capital build 
overrun of 10%. 

37. The graph below shows the cumulative cost/(savings) of each of 
the options given the best case financial conditions stated above. 

(30)

(20)

(10)

0

10

20

30 Y
r 1

Y
r 2

Y
r 3

Y
r 4

Y
r 5

Y
r 6

Y
r 7

Y
r 8

Y
r 9

Y
r 10

Y
r 11

Y
r 12

Y
r 13

Y
r 14

Y
r 15

Y
r 16

Y
r 17

Y
r 18

Y
r 19

Y
r 20

Y
r 21

Y
r 22

Y
r 23

Y
r 24

Y
r 25

Y
r 26

£m Cumulative cost/(Saving) from reprovision of Elderly Persons Homes

Option 1 - Privately operated homes

Option 2 - CYC operated

Option 3 - Fordlands CYC operated, Lowfields and Haxby privately operated

Option 4 - CYC operate Fordlands and Haxby, Privately operated Lowfields

S
a
v
i
n
g
s

C
o
s
t
s

 

38. Investment is needed in the early years of all the options. The 
graph above dips below the yearly axis for all options, primarily 
due to staff transferring to external providers on current terms and 
conditions and only over time being replaced by the private 
operator’s own staff.  The value of the initial investment to cover 
cash outflow in the early years of the project, the time taken to 

Page 96



 
 

repay this initial investment and the ongoing savings thereafter 
have then been calculated to inform any decision to be taken. 

39. The most financially advantageous scenario is for all homes to be 
privately operated (Option 1).  Investment of £36k is needed in 
year 1 (2013/14) and a further £160k in year 2 but savings then 
start to fall out with £90k forecast in year 3 to lower the investment 
required that year to £106k.  No investment is required in year 4 
which delivers a saving of £184k.  The initial investment of £338k 
is paid back in year 5 (2018/19) and by the time capital 
repayments finish in year 26 the project will have saved £24m and 
will generate further annual savings of £1.8m thereafter. 

40. The second option for the authority to operate all the homes would 
require investment of £22.6m over the life of the project.  
Investment of £121k is required in year 1 (2013/14), with £887k in 
year 2, £1,038k in years 3 and 4 and then £930k each year 
thereafter to accrue total costs of £22.5m over the 26 years.  After 
26 years as the capital repayments cease a £165k annual 
investment above current revenue levels would be needed. 

41. The third option of the authority running Fordlands and the 
remainder privately operated requires total investment over the 
first 4 years of £850k.  An investment of £67k is required in year 1 
(2013/14), £378k in year 2, before cost savings begin in year 3 of 
£91k to reduce investment in year 4, with a saving of £168k in 
year 5.  The total investment of £850k is repaid in year 7, and by 
the time the capital repayments end in year 26 (2037/38) the 
project will have saved £12.4m with ongoing savings thereafter of 
£1.4m 

42. The fourth option of the council operating Fordlands and Haxby 
would require investment of £1.5m.  Investment of £67k is needed 
in year 1 (2013/14), £408k in year 2, £469k in year 3 before a cost 
saving of £108k begins in year 4 to reduce the investment 
required to £361k that year, and subsequently reducing 
investment amounts of £145k and £39k for years 5 and 6.  A £69k 
saving would accrue in year 7 and increase to £105k saving in 
subsequent years before repaying these investment costs in year 
21 (2032/33).  It would then generate a savings of £1.1m, until the 
capital repayments end in 2038/39 when ongoing savings of 
£870k per year would accrue. 

 

Page 97



 
 

Local Authority Trading Company 

43. In addition to the above options an option to provide the care in 
the new facilities via a Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) 
has been carefully considered. 

44. An LATC is an organisation that a LA is able to establish through 
powers in the Local Government Act 2003.  The power to trade is 
exercised through a company and the LATC is permitted to trade 
in anything that it is authorised to do under its ordinary functions.  
In the case of an LATC established to run residential care homes 
the LATC could be able to sell care beds to a wider market. 

45. An LATC would seek to improve efficiencies in operating costs 
and overheads. However, in the financial year 2010/11 over 
£800,000 was taken as an efficiency saving from the EPH budget. 
These savings resulted from a reduction is staffing levels in line 
with suggested ratios for the private sector.  There has also been 
a substantial reduction in overtime payments and better 
management of staff replacement hours.  These are some of the 
areas that an LATC would automatically target but there is little 
remaining scope to increase savings much further without 
changing terms and conditions. 

 
46. An LATC would encounter the same challenges around changing 

staff terms and conditions as is the case with existing in-house 
services.  As staff turnover is experienced it may be possible to 
recruit new staff on different terms and conditions that are similar 
to those found in the independent sector. 

 
47. In addition to the direct running cost of these homes, infrastructure 

or back office support costs would also need to be factored in.  In 
the case of an LATC there will still be a need to buy in financial, 
human resources and some other services. Unless the LATC is of 
sufficient size it is unlikely to be worthwhile creating its own back 
office support so the LATC would most likely either buy these from 
within the council or from some external source.  With regard to 
line management external to the care homes themselves there is 
likely to be a need to have a manager with overall operational 
responsibility for the new care homes and the care village. There 
have already been significant reductions in this area and there are 
no apparent further savings to be realised from reductions in 
operational management. 

 

Page 98



 
 

48. There is scope for an LATC to trade and provide services in a way 
that is not possible within the existing arrangements.  However, in 
order to do so, any new service would need to be competitive on 
quality and cost and whilst there may be no issue with quality, the 
cost of a residential care bed is still some way more expensive 
than can be purchased from the independent sector.  Caution 
should be exercised in assuming that an LATC will be able to 
break even within the short or medium term and in the case of an 
LATC consisting solely of residential care homes then is likely to 
remain subsidised for as long as terms and conditions remain 
unchanged. 

 
49. In practice LATCs are still relatively new and take some time to 

establish. Few have been established for any length of time and 
savings in social care LATCs are taking time to realise, with 
targets being limited to 10% over a three year period. 

 
50. In deciding to go to tender an LATC option could be explored 

within an in-house bid. 

Option Analysis 

51. Irrespective of which option is chosen the monitoring of the quality 
of the care delivered would be the responsibility of the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) and the council’s Adult Social Care 
Commissioning Team that specify the standards for the service 
and monitor the contracts alongside individual care management 
reviews for all residents who would live in the homes.  The 
Commissioning Team adopts a consistent and significant degree 
of contract monitoring across all the services it commissions.  
Taking information from several areas it enables the council to 
monitor the performance and quality of the services it purchases 
to ensure successful outcomes and quality for the people that 
receive services. 

52. As part of its approach to monitoring the council: 

• conducts quality monitoring and audit reviews of services 
involving customers and relatives 

• analyses complaints/concerns made by individuals/carers and 
actions issues raised by care managers 

• analyses any safeguarding referrals made 

• has a close relationship with the Care Quality Commission 
regarding standards and quality 

Page 99



 
 

• shares information on quality, standards and performance with 
health colleagues 

• undertakes joint visits with health colleagues as necessary 

• analyses performance against standards set within service 
contracts 

 
Option 1 - the three new developments have care provided by 

independent sector operators 
 
53. This option provides the most favourable financial position.  

However, it does not fit well with the feedback obtained during last 
year’s citywide public consultation where the majority of 
consultees (86%) indicated that they were keen for the council to 
continue running its own services.  The option does, however, 
accord with the importance placed in the consultation on obtaining 
value for money.  Staff would transfer to the new provider under 
TUPE legislation and be afforded the same contractual terms and 
conditions to which they have currently. 

 
Option 2 - the council provides the care on the three new 
developments 

 
54. This option is the least affordable even though it fits well with the 

feedback from the consultation exercise.  In this option the existing 
care staff would move into the newly built care homes including 
the care home on the Lowfield Care Village.  However, there is an 
issue about who would provide the care within the supported and 
sheltered accommodation in the wider care village site.  This could 
either be undertaken by the independent sector in line with the 
current strategic commissioning direction or by new CYC staff 
being recruited to undertake this task.  Both scenarios provide 
challenges.  In the first scenario, where CYC operate the care 
home and the independent sector operate the domiciliary support 
contract, there is a strong risk of lack of synergy introduced by 
multiple operators and a lack of clarity about who is actually 
responsible for  running the care delivered in the village.  
Feedback from the Soft Market Testing event warned against this 
situation.  In the second scenario, where the council provides all of 
the care across the Care Village, the issue of one provider is 
addressed but significant extra costs are incurred by effectively 
growing the overall amount of in-house provision at a time when 
council budgets are under strain.  The additional cost of providing 
these community services has not been worked out but it is clear 

Page 100



 
 

that it would add substantially to those costs already attributed to 
CYC operating the care homes.  Furthermore, the higher costs of 
a CYC domiciliary support service may not be supported by 
residents using their own individual budgets. 

 
Option 3 - the council provides the care on the Fordlands 
development only.  The care on Lowfield and Haxby Hall 
developments is provided by an independent sector operator 

 
55. This option is financially more affordable than option 2 but less 

affordable than option 1. It also fits less well with the feedback 
from the public consultation.  CYC staff would TUPE transfer to 
the Lowfield Care Village and to the new Haxby Hall.  The use of 
an independent sector operator across the whole of the Lowfield 
Care Village would eliminate the issue of multiple providers and 
not incur the financial cost of recruiting CYC staff to provide 
community support to the community village assisted living 
accommodation. 

 
Option 4 - the council provides the care on the Fordlands and 
Haxby Hall developments only.  The care on the Lowfield care 
village is provided in partnership with an independent sector 
operator 

56. This option presents more of a compromise in that it responds 
better to the public consultation feedback by providing council run 
care in two of the new residential care homes and addresses the 
challenges around cost and single operator issues on the Lowfield 
site.  It reduces risk to the council by working in partnership with 
an operator on the care village that has experience in this area of 
service delivery. 

Council Plan 
 

57. The protection of vulnerable people lies at the heart of the 
council’s priorities.  Over 7,000 vulnerable adults receive social 
care services in York.  The council’s overarching objective is to 
safeguard such adults, to promote their independence, enable 
them to make real life choices and give them control over their 
daily lives 

 
 
 
 

Page 101



 
 

Implications 
 

Financial 
 
58. The development of the three sites is a significant financial 

undertaking for the authority and Members should note that, as 
with any large scale capital investment, costs may vary.  The 
capital model shows how such variations will impact on the 
affordability of the proposal taking national construction costs from 
work commissioned by Pinders and then subjecting these costs to 
increases of 10%/15%/20%.  In addition the capital receipts 
position has been modelled for a number of different scenarios 
that, when taken with the variations in costs, show a range of 
values that would need to be funded through the use of prudential 
borrowing. 

 
59. The capital receipts valuations used in the report should be used 

as an indication only as capital receipts can vary in value 
depending upon a number of factors such as market conditions, 
alternative use and planning permission. 

 
60. The financial modelling is based on estimates and before 

members are asked to approve the Capital budget that would 
allow the scheme to go ahead a tender exercise will be carried out 
to establish an accurate costing for the development of the 
schemes. 

 
61. It is important to note the revenue parameters that the financial 

model and project operate within.  All future decisions clearly will 
need to be mindful of the financial position presented and to 
consider the available capital and revenue funding. This would 
also include consideration of any initial investment, the “Early 
Years Deficit” which would need to be financed. 

 
62. The early year’s deficit shown under the various scenarios and 

options will, where possible, be funded from the venture fund 
subject to the fund having sufficient resources.  The financial 
annex B sets out the estimated range of early year’s deficits that 
needs funding based on current projections. 

 
63. A further review of the overall financial position will take place to 

ensure affordability of the proposed options before a 
recommendation is made to Members for a budget commitment.  
This will also include an assessment of the ability to afford the 

Page 102



 
 

early year’s deficit from the Venture Fund, and other potential 
options where appropriate. 

 
Human Resources (HR) 
 

64. This is a significant change programme, which impacts on 
approximately 270 employees currently employed in our seven 
current EPHs. 

 
65. All options can be delivered without the need to make compulsory 

redundancies.  Should options 1, 3 or 4 be taken forward, staff 
would be eligible to transfer to a new provider under the Transfer 
of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006. 
 

66. Work is ongoing to predict and carefully manage our staffing levels 
over the next 3 years in order to maximise options for staff, should 
option 3 or 4 (a mix of CYC and independent sector) be 
recommended. 

 
67. The council will also explore further requests for early voluntary 

severance, and movement between homes in order to minimise 
the impact on staff during the programme of change.   If requests 
do come forward, if approved, the council would plan to release 
staff in line with Phase 2 of the programme (ie in April 2014). 

 
Equalities 
 

68. An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) for the care home 
modernisation programme was produced for the November 2011 
Cabinet Report.  It particularly highlighted the potential 
implications of the modernisation programme for the health, 
security and well-being of frail residents and also female members 
of staff who are older and also carers themselves.  A copy of the 
EIA is at Annex C. 

 
69. In response, the council developed and followed a ‘Moving Homes 

Safely’ protocol when closing Fordlands and Oliver House, to 
ensure that residents’ moves to their new homes were as well 
planned and carefully managed as possible.  Likewise, careful 
planning and management of staff vacancies enabled the council 
to avoid compulsory redundancy for Fordlands and Oliver House 
staff, and staff were able to transfer into similar posts in the other 
seven council care homes. 

 

Page 103



 
 

70. Now, looking forward, a wider reference group of external 
stakeholders has been established (with significant representation 
from the voluntary sector) to act as a sounding board for the 
development of plans and specifications for the developments at 
Fordlands and Lowfield.  The group includes representatives from 
Age UK York, Alzheimer’s Society, Churches Together, the 
‘Dementia Without Walls’ project, the Lesbian Gay Bi-sexual 
Transgender (LGBT) Forum,  Older Citizen’s Advocacy York 
(OCAY), York Blind & Partially Sighted Society, York Carers 
Forum, York Council for Voluntary Services (CVS), York Dementia 
Network, York Older People’s Assembly (YOPA), and York Racial 
Equality Network (YREN). 

 
71. At its first meeting on 2 March 2012 the wider reference group 

agreed that its aims would include: 

• to be kept informed and up to date with the work of the various 
EPH Project Task Groups 

• to bring a wealth of knowledge and experience together to 
share ‘intelligence’ picked up from other work/projects/visits  
that should influence the work of the EPH Project 

• to comment on, and provide challenge to, the council’s current 
thinking and plans at key stages in the EPH modernisation 
programme 

 
72. The council will also be using established channels to 

communicate with, and gather the views of, EPH managers and 
staff, care management staff, and Health colleagues. 

 
Legal 
 

73. Legal advice and assistance will be provided throughout the 
procurement process and during the contract negotiations to 
ensure that the council’s interests are protected. 

 
Property 
 

74. As part of the Asset Management Review detailed in the Council 
Plan all vacant EPH properties will be included and best use of the 
sites will be identified.  If there is no requirement to reuse then the 
sites will be sold and used to fund the project.  If any of the sites 
are to be reused then either other sites will be identified as a result 

Page 104



 
 

of the review to obtain the capital funding required, or, a revenue 
stream will be used to fund the additional prudential borrowing. 
 

75. In respect of the Lowfield Site (see paragraph 11) any capital 
receipt from the additional seven acres will go to the general fund. 

 
Procurement 
 

76. A series of procurement options have been devised following the 
market engagement analysis.  The route to market for the 
replacement EPH to be built on the Fordlands site is relatively 
straight forward compared to the Lowfield proposals and will 
involve the council procuring project and design services and then 
a general builder to construct the building. 

77. The procurement options for the Lowfield site are more 
complicated due to various funding and lease options and, in 
addition, the need for the developer/operator to source the 
majority of the funding.  Due to the complex nature of these 
options, expert external legal opinion is being sought to support 
the options appraisal. 
 
Risk Management 

 
78. The governance of the EPH Project calls for a strict project 

management discipline.  This includes the management of risk.  A 
risk log was established at the beginning of the project and this is 
continually updated and reviewed as the project progresses 
through its various phases.  As risks drop off, other new ones 
emerge and strategies are identified to mitigate these risks.  The 
risk log is a standing item on the agenda of the monthly project 
review board.  A traffic light colouring system is used to determine 
the degree of risk.  All board members are able to contribute and 
challenge the risk level and the strength of those strategies 
employed to mitigate them.  The project manager has 
responsibility of the maintenance of the risk log and is accountable 
to the project director. 

 
Recommendations 

 
79. That Cabinet agree in principle to Option 4 (subject to further 

financial consideration and Full Council approval), that is: 

a) that the council fund and operate the new residential care home 
to be built on the Fordlands Road site by engaging a design 

Page 105



 
 

team and then entering a formal tender process to procure a 
builder. 

b) that the council states its intention to operate the new 
residential care home to be built on the site of the existing CYC 
care home at Haxby subject to financial affordability in Autumn 
2013 when a firm decision on that particular home is required. 

c) that the council seek to procure a partner through a tendering 
process to fund, build and operate a ‘ community village for 
older people’ (including 90 residential care beds) on the 
Lowfield site in Acomb.  The council’s own in-house service will 
be able to compete for this work. 

 
d) that Cabinet receive further reports outlining the outcome of the 

tenders for both the Fordlands and Lowfield village 
developments, with updated financial implications on all areas, 
to assess the affordability of the proposals. 
 

Contact Details 
 
Author: Chief Officer responsible for the report: 
Graham Terry 
Assistant Director 
Adults, Children and Education 
01904 554006 

Pete Dwyer 
Director of Adults, Children and Education 
01904 554200 
Report Approved � Date 3/5/12 
 
Cabinet Member responsible for the report: 
Cllr Tracey Simpson-Laing 
Cabinet Member for Health, Housing and Adult 
Social Services  

Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
HR – Hannah Morley (Ext 4505) 
Finance –  Ross Brown (Ext 1207) 
Legal –  Glen McCusker (Ext 1048)  
Procurement – Rob Allan (Ext 2941) 
Property – Tim Bradley (Ext 3355) 
Equalities – Evie Chandler (Ext 1704) 
Wards Affected:   All � 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

Annexes 
Annex A – Feedback from the Soft Market Testing exercise 

Annex B – Financial Analysis (Confidential Annexes A-C in this section 
are attached as hard copies to private packs only) 

Annex C – Equality Impact Assessment 

Page 106



Feedback from the Soft Market Testing (SMT) Exercise - Annex A 

The care village market is not yet a mature one in the UK.  Of those 
care villages that have been built, many have been wholly developed as 
retirement/lifestyle choice villages on a commercial model in areas 
(predominantly in the South) where there is greater affluence, higher unit 
sale prices and considerable owner occupier interest.  Consequently, 
there are not yet any care villages that have been designed, built and 
operated by a local authority on its own.  There are, however, care 
villages that have been built by developers working in differing 
partnership arrangements with a local authority.   

Care villages work best with a single operator for the whole site.  
Examples were given of multiple care providers and a separate landlord 
and the consequent lack of synergy that emerged in provision not being 
joined up.  A number of operator solutions are possible on the Lowfield 
site.  For example the council could provide the operating staff for the 
Care Home but the community support provider within the other 
accommodation could be commissioned from an independent sector 
provider.  The landlord, depending on the model chosen could be from a 
third organisation.  In such a scenario there is potential for lack of 
coordination and confusion on the part of residents about who is 
responsible for what and who to contact when there is a problem.   

Good design is of crucial importance.  A clear message from the SMT 
exercise was that the (care) operator needs to be working with the 
architect from the very start to ensure that the site and the lay out of 
accommodation work to achieve the maximum possible synergy both 
from the perspective of the community and operational efficiency. 

Detailed pre-build market research of what facilities should be 
available in the community or social hub will be key to its success.  
Examples of community hubs in other locations were discussed and the 
difficulties experienced around sustainability and viability of services 
were highlighted.  The relationship between the community hub and the 
wider community has to be properly thought through.  Duplication or 
counterproductive competition could cause loss of sustainability.  
Questions around which facilities could work on the site to encourage 
involvement or participation from the local community, and what existing 
facilities in the locality would care village residents choose to use in 
preference to those on site, were particularly relevant when considering 
the location of the Lowfield site to the wider Acomb community. 

Page 107



The council currently favours the idea of connecting the Community Hub 
to the care home so that residents (and their relatives) can access its 
facilities.  The Hub would have a separate entrance for other users.  
Detailed market research will be necessary to gauge exactly what 
facilities might be wanted/needed on this specific site, given the close 
proximity of many key services and facilities in the surrounding Acomb 
community.  At present, the council would envisage the Hub including a 
community cafe, flexible community space/activities room, and perhaps 
a very small shop for essential items (bread, milk, newspapers).   

The mix and density on site must be carefully determined and 
needs to satisfy a number of key stakeholders.  Whilst there is a 
need for clarity around what will work most efficiently and effectively from 
an operator perspective, there is also a need to be clear about the 
appeal of each type of building to prospective residents – that is, what 
style of buildings would sell or rent best in order to make the 
development financially viable? This is very dependent on local market 
conditions.  Any prospective developer/partner would need to undertake 
a comprehensive market research exercise in order to determine 
precisely what is built on the site and to establish how much it might 
command for sale or rent.   

It is expected that the final design of the Lowfield site will have been the 
subject of extensive local market research and consultation and this will 
be what ultimately determines the precise nature of the mix and density 
of accommodation on site.  However, following on from the SMT 
exercise, further work on market assessment has been undertaken.  
This work confirms that the density of the site could be substantially 
increased without causing detriment to the look and feel of the care 
village.  This work also confirms that a mixture of apartments and 
bungalows on this site would be an attractive proposition for people 
living in Acomb and surrounding area.   

Building design needs to be flexible to ensure future proofing and 
adaptability.  Internal construction of rooms should be movable to allow 
room sizes to scale up and down Utilities should be designed into 
external walls so that dividing walls can be moved.  This would, for 
example, provide the flexibility to change between one and two 
bedrooms if future demand dictated.  Designed in flexibility, will allow a 
switch between care provision in the future should the balance of 
demand and provision change significantly. 

 

Page 108



Health partners need to be involved as soon as possible in helping 
shape the village design and input into the services delivered.  These 
health related services could include intermediate care to help people 
‘step-down’ from a stay in hospital, on site nursing care, or the location 
of an on-site GP  surgery. 

Other influencing factors on the Lowfield site 

Affordable Housing 

25% of the mix of accommodation, excluding the Care Home, would be 
designated as affordable housing (ie housing provided to specified 
eligible households whose needs are not met by the market).  These will 
be “pepper-potted” across the site and so indistinguishable from the 
other housing. 

Nomination Rights 

The residential Care Home would be registered with the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC).  There would be an expectation that CYC would 
have full nomination rights to the 2 x 45 registered care beds.  Should 
the council decide to tender for a partner then there is an expectation 
that an Allocations Panel consisting of key stakeholders (including 
council staff from Adult Social Care and Housing) would determine the 
suitability of prospective residents for the other on-site accommodation. 

Service Charges 

Services and charges should be kept to a minimum but would be 
determined after market analysis, local research and would be fully 
understood at the point of any tender award.  However, it would be the 
intention that any charges would be in relation to accommodation 
service and not to public amenities such as the community hub or the 
gardens.   

Outdoor Space 

The council recognises the importance of outdoor space to the success 
of the site.  It is important that there are enough landscaped and 
communal areas where residents can enjoy the better weather.  It is 
intended that private outdoor space (eg  patios and balconies) will be a 
feature of all types of accommodation.  Similarly the garden areas of the 
Care Home will be crucial for all residents and will be secure and safe 
and of a good size.  Community-allotments/gardens and greenhouses 
could also feature on the site. 

Page 109



Phasing 

Phasing of the build is an important consideration.  There may be a 
preference, both from the council and a developer, to build apartments 
and market them early in the development so as to generate a capital 
receipt.  There is also a requirement to build the Care Home in the first 
phase in order to facilitate the next phase of council care home closures, 
scheduled in the modernisation programme for April 2014. 

Following the information gained from the SMT exercise and the 
subsequent local assessment of market demand, build costs and 
potential sale there is considerable confidence that the non-residential, 
care elements of the Lowfield development could be self financing.  The 
exact mix, site density and spilt between sale, rent or shared ownership 
would determine the amount of surplus available to fund the Community 
Hub as well as producing some capital receipts.  Overall, the consensus 
from the SMT was that finance is available, and that architects, 
developers and operators are ready, enthusiastic and willing to work in 
partnership with City of York Council to deliver a care village that can 
help meet the needs and aspirations of York’s ageing population over 
the next 30-40 years. 

 

Page 110



P
age 111

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 120

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Annex C 
 

City of York Council 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 
 

 
 

1 Name and Job Title of person 
completing assessment 

Chris Weeks, Project Manager - EPH Review 

2 Name of service, policy, function or 
criteria being assessed 

Policy regarding the future provision of 
accommodation for older people, especially residential 
care.  

3 What are the main objectives or aims 
of the service/policy/function/criteria?  

The provision of the right care in the right place at the 
right time This is expected to be achieved through  

1. Re-providing up-to-date fit for purpose 
residential accommodation for those who are 
in residential accommodation at the moment 
and have no other option for car 

2. Investing in supporting older people to stay in 
their own homes and live independent lives for 
as long as possible. 

4 Date  09/06/ 2011 

 

Stage 1: Initial Screening 

5 What evidence is available to suggest that the proposed service/policy/function/criteria 
could have an adverse impact on quality of life outcomes1 for people (both staff and 
customers) with protected characteristics? Document the source of evidence, (e.g. 
past experience, anecdotal, research including national or sectoral, results of 
engagement/consultation, monitoring data etc) and assess relevance of impact as:     
Not relevant / Low / Medium / High. 

Protected Characteristic  Not relevant L/M/H Source of evidence that there is or is 
likely to be adverse impact 

  Cust Staff Cust Staff Customers Staff 

a Race X X   Consultation 
with 
communities of 
Interest and 
EAG – Please 
see report to 
Cabinet on 1 
November 2011 
for key 
messages. 

Consultation with 
staff 

                                            
1 See appendix 1 

Page 121



 
 

 
 

b Religion/Spirituality/ 
Belief                        

X X   Consultation 
with 
communities of 
Interest and 
EAG – Please 
see report to 
Cabinet on              
1 Nov 2011 for 
key messages. 

Consultation with 
staff 

c Gender                                            X   L/M Consultation 
with 
communities of 
Interest and 
EAG – Please 
see report to 
Cabinet on              
1 Nov 2011 for 
key messages. 
 

EPH staff profile 
shows that 98% of 
the current 
workforce are 
women.  Fawcett 
Society studies 
regarding women’s 
employment 
prospects show that 
they decline in a 
down turn in the 
economy. 

d Disability                                            X H  National studies 
show that older 
and significantly 
frail residents 
may face 
poorer 
prospects in 
terms of health  
and wellbeing 
Consultation 
with 
communities of 
Interest and 
EAG – Please 
see report to 
Cabinet on                 
1 Nov 2011 for 
key messages. 

Consultation with 
staff 

e Sexual Orientation                           X X   Consultation 
with 
communities of 
Interest and 
EAG – Please 
see report to 
Cabinet on                
1 Nov 2011 for 
key messages. 

 

Consultation with 
staff 

Page 122



 
 

 
 

f Age                                                     H H National studies 
show that older 
and significantly 
frail residents 
may face 
poorer 
prospects in 
terms of health  
and wellbeing 
Consultation 
with 
communities of 
Interest and 
EAG –  
Please see 
report to 
Cabinet on                 
1 Nov 2011 for 
key messages. 

EPH staff profile.  
Fawcett Society 
studies regarding  
women’s 
employment 
prospects show that 
they decline in a 
down turn in the 
economy 

g Pregnancy/ 
maternity  

X X   Consultation 
with 
communities of 
Interest and 
EAG – Please 
see report to 
Cabinet on                
1 Nov 2011 for 
key messages. 

Consultation with 
staff 

h Gender 
Reassignment 

X X   Consultation 
with 
communities of 
Interest and 
EAG – Please 
see report to 
Cabinet on                
1 Nov 2011 for 
key messages. 

Consultation with 
staff  

i Marriage and Civil 
Partnership  

X X   Consultation 
with 
communities of 
Interest and 
EAG – Please 
see report to 
Cabinet on             
1 Nov 2011 for 
key messages. 

Consultation with 
staff  

Page 123



 
 

 
 

j Carers of older and 
disabled people 

  M M Information in 
our corporate 
Carer’s 
Strategy shows 
that there may 
be adverse 
effects on the 
carers of older 
and frail people 
if they do not 
settle in their 
new 
environment. 

Information in our 
corporate Carer’s 
strategy, as well as 
information from the 
York Carers’ Centre, 
shows that middle-
aged women who 
are carers 
themselves find it 
difficult to find and 
keep any type of 
employment. 

If you assess the service/policy/function as not relevant across ALL the characteristics, 
please proceed to section 11.  
If you assess the service/policy/function as relevant for ANY of the characteristics, continue to 
Stage 2, Full Equality Impact Assessment. 
 
 
 
 

Stage 2: Full Equality Impact Assessment 

6 Are there any concerns that the proposed or reviewed service/policy/function/criteria may 
be discriminatory, or have an adverse impact on members of the public, customers or staff 
with protected characteristics?  If so record them here 

a Public/     
customers 

Yes – possible negative effects on health, security and well-being on        
frail residents. 

b Staff Yes – older women especially those who are also carers in their home 
environment with limited ability to move and find other jobs. 

If there are no concerns, go to section 11.  
If there are concerns, go to section 7 and 8 amend service/policy/function/criteria to mitigate 
adverse impact, consider actions to eliminate adverse impact, or justify adverse impact.  

7 Can the adverse impact be justified? E.g. in terms of community cohesion, other legislation, 
enforcement etc. NB. Lack of financial resources alone is NOT justification!   

Customers – Yes. There are studies that show that frail residents may suffer detriment if moved 
from current homes.  However, our quality assurance studies as well as the results of 
consultation showed that the current EPHs, whilst in reasonably good condition, are 40-50 years 
old and no longer meet current residents’ needs and also are not fit for the future. Their size and 
design make it more difficult for staff and other practitioners to care for people with dementia and 
high dependency care needs.  
Staff – Yes because staff consultation shows that above all else they want to improve the care 
environment for our customers and also are obliged by changes in national policy to deploy 
resources differently. 
 

8 What changes will you make to the service/policy/function/criteria as result of information in 
parts 5&6 above? 

There will be no changes to the proposed policy of reprovision. However, we shall put in place a 
number of remedial actions, which are listed in item 10 below. 

Page 124



 
 

 
 

9 What arrangements will you put in place to monitor impact of the proposed 
service/policy/function/criteria on individuals from the protected characteristics?   

EPH Review Project Board (with reps from Care Management, operational EPH management; 
Commissioning & Contracts; and Human Resources & Trade Unions) – will oversee the 
consultation over the review proposals, and subsequent implementation of Members’ decisions. 
 
Assessment & Safeguarding Care Managers and EPH Managers will monitor the impact of any 
changes on individual residents. They will also track feedback from relatives and, where 
appropriate request independent advocates looking out for the interests of individual residents.  
Commissioning & Contracts Managers will monitor the quality of service provided in whatever 
model of service provision is decided upon by Members. 
 
EPH Managers, Human Resources, and Trade Unions will support EPH staff through any change 
process that flows from the Members’ decision on this EPH Review. 
 

10 List below actions you will take to address any unjustified impact and promote equality 
of outcome (as in appendix 1) for staff and other people with protected characteristics. 
Consider action for any procedures, services, training and projects related to the 
service/policy/function/criteria which have the potential to promote equality in outcomes as 
in appendix 1.   

Action Lead When by? 

Customers  
We have developed a ‘Moving Homes Safely’ 
protocol. The document describes the process 
that will be followed when a care home faces 
planned closure, and its residents need to be re-
assessed and moved to a new home. The 
document is written in Plain English and outlines 
for residents and their relatives what will happen 
at each stage of the process, which includes:   
Re-assessment; Choosing a new home; Moving 
to a new home; Reviewing the move; and who 
will be involved in supporting them along the 
way.  Age UK, Older Citizens Advocacy York 
(OCAY) and the York LINk Readability Panel 
has commented on the protocol to ensure that, 
from a resident’s perspective, the process and 
document are clear and make sense. 
We shall also consult on the protocol with the 
EAG at the ‘Help us to get it right’ day in 
November 2011. 
 
Staff 
The modernisation programme if agreed will 
take in the order of three years to implement.  
This timescale combined with current vacancies 
and requests for early retirement indicate that 
there will be no need for compulsory 
redundancies. We will work closely with EPH 
Managers and staff, the Trade Unions and 
Human Resources to ensure that there is a fair, 

 
Graham Terry 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Graham Terry 

 
Until the project has 
been completed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Until the project has 
been completed 

Page 125



 
 

 
 

open and transparent process for dealing with 
staff moves between current homes, and into 
the new care homes, when built. 
 
11 Date EIA completed  

Author: Chris Weeks 
Position: Project Manager, EPH Review 
Date: 17/10/11        

12 Signed off by Graham Terry, Asst Director - Adults, Children & Education 

I am satisfied that this service/policy/function has been successfully equality impact 
assessed. 
Name: Pete Dwyer 
Position: Director - Adults, Children & Education 
Date: 18.10.11 

Please send the completed assessment for feedback to evie.chandler@york.gov.uk or to 
heather.johnson@york.gov.uk 
Once your EIA has been competed we shall also add it to the corporate register of EIAs. We use 
the register to publish an annual EIA report on the council’s site.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 126



 
 

 
 

Appendix 1 - Quality of Life indicators 
(aka ‘The 10 dimensions of equality’) 

 

We must ensure there is no adverse impact in terms of: 

 

q Longevity, including avoiding premature mortality.  

q Physical security, including freedom from violence and physical and sexual 
abuse.  

q Health, including both well-being and access to high quality healthcare.  

q Education, including both being able to be creative, to acquire skills and 
qualifications and having access to training and life-long learning.  

q Standard of living, including being able to live with independence and 
security; and covering nutrition, clothing, housing, warmth, utilities, social 
services and transport.  

q Productive and valued activities, such as access to employment, a positive 
experience in the workplace, work/life balance, and being able to care for 
others.  

q Individual, family and social life, including self-development, having 
independence and equality in relationships and marriage.  

q Participation, influence and voice, including participation in decision-
making and democratic life.  

q Identity, expression and self-respect, including freedom of belief and 
religion.  

q Legal security, including equality and non-discrimination before the law 
and equal treatment within the criminal justice system. 

 
 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
Cabinet 15th May 2012 
 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services 

 

The Oliver House Elderly Persons Home Site 

Summary 

1. This report seeks member’s decision as to the future use of the former 
Elderly Persons Home (EPH) at Oliver House, which is becoming 
available as part of the EPH review. This site is a valuable high profile 
city centre property, both in terms of its financial value and strategic 
value, with potential for both sale and alternative use of the site.  

Background 

2. Oliver House is a former 45 bed EPH, which closed on 31st March 2012. 
A site plan is attached at Annex 1. An additional area of land occupied 
by garaging is also identified. This comes under the HRA, but could be 
included as part of the uses being considered. 

3. The closure of Oliver House has come about as a result of the EPH 
review, which identified that the current homes did not provide modern 
residential facilities for older people. Members have approved the 
provision of new facilities at Fordlands, the former Lowfields School site 
and Haxby Hall and the closure and disposal of Oliver House as part of 
phase 1 of the programme of development. 

4. It is important to note that the financial business case that underpins the 
EPH review assumes that we will use the capital receipt from Oliver 
House to finance the new facilities that are being developed and any 
proposal regarding the use of the site needs to be able to deliver either a 
capital receipt of £450k or a revenue stream that would enable CYC to 
borrow £450k and pay back the loan. This revenue stream would need 
to be at least £41k pa. 

5. If the property were to be disposed of without either a capital receipt or 
an ongoing revenue stream then an alternative source of capital or 
revenue would need to be identified to deliver the EPH review. 

Agenda Item 8Page 129



 

6. The site is both financially valuable and strategically important, lying as it 
does within the city walls, in a largely residential area, sitting in close 
proximity to the Priority St Centre with its concentration of voluntary and 
community sector provision and with existing use as a C2 property 
(Residential Institutions. Hospitals, Nursing Homes, Residential Schools 
and Training Centres. Use for the provision of residential 
accommodation and care to people in need of care). 

7. Strong interest in the property has been received from various quarters, 
with a range of options for future use and ownership which are 
presented here for decision.  

Localism Act 

8. The Localism Act creates a duty for all Councils to maintain a list assets 
which are of value to the community. The introduction of the assets of 
community value provisions was delayed when the Bill became law as 
the government had not released detailed guidance on how to establish 
schemes for identifying those assets and how to set up mechanisms to 
allow expressions of interest.  

9. It is however possible that the Oliver House site, will fall within the scope 
of this legislation. The Localism Act does not create a right to buy assets 
of community value. It does though give a window for community groups 
to express an interest in making such a purchase. Once the appropriate 
moratorium period has expired the landowner is free to dispose of the 
asset as they think fit. 

Options to Sell or Retain 

10. CYC have an option to sell the property or to retain the property and 
lease it out in order to earn rental income.  Selling the property would 
guarantee this aspect of the capital funding of the EPH review 
programme however property values at this time are relatively low due to 
the economic downturn and it is likely that we would not get as much for 
the site as we would if we wait for the economy to pick up.  

11. The property is currently valued at between £450k and £475k. If it were 
to be packaged with the adjoining garages it would be worth 
substantially more (in the region of £700-750k). The site has not been 
put on the open market but an offer has been received for the property 
from York St John University (YSJU) details of which are included in 
confidential Annex 3.  They intend to use the site for student 
accommodation from September 2012 and would require an immediate 
decision. If this is not forthcoming they would withdraw the offer. They 

Page 130



 

are also interested in a 5 year lease on the property, the details of which 
are set out later in the report. 

12. York CVS are also interested in purchasing the site. Early indications are 
that for some of the partners could secure sufficient funding through a 
mortgage. There are also specialist voluntary sector property owners 
who take on buildings in this way. 

13. York CVS have also expressed a desire for a community asset transfer, 
however the need to dispose of this asset to support the funding of the 
EPH review means that if this option is chosen prudential borrowing of 
£450k will be required and ongoing revenue funding of £41k will need to 
be identified to repay this. 

14. Other prospective purchasers may be interested in the site if we decide 
to sell. 

15. If we decide to retain the property we could lease the property to earn 
rental income. It is estimated that a commercial rent for the property 
could be in the region of £50k pa which would be adequate to meet the 
requirements of the EPH review. We could decide to sell the site at a 
later date and use the capital receipt to repay the existing borrowing, 
though this would be constrained by the length of any lease we enter 
into. 

Potential Future Uses 

16. Consultation has been undertaken with a range of internal and external 
stakeholders including York CVS, YSJU, Corporate Finance, Housing, 
and Adult Provision and Modernisation. The following options for future 
use of the site have emerged. 

17. Health and Social Care Hub 

A number of Voluntary Sector organisations in York are interested in 
developing a voluntary sector hub in the centre of York, focussed on 
improving access to support for older and disabled people.  This would 
involve co-locating a number of organisations who are keen to work 
collaboratively together. These organisations, led by York Independent 
Living Network, which is a user led organisation, are currently 
formulating a business plan. Attached at Annex 2 is their outline 
proposal and at Annex 3 their financial proposal. If this were successful 
this would support the important role of the voluntary and community 
sector in providing early intervention and prevention support which will 
complement health and social services.  This is in line with the national 

Page 131



 

and local Personalisation Agenda and with the continuing transformation 
of services within the Council to offer more choice and control to 
residents in need of social care support, and to support more people 
through community based resources. It will enable better co-ordination 
across the voluntary sector, provide an environment to encourage 
innovation together and simplify the points of contact for residents to 
seek the help they need.  The proposal sets out potential future use of 
Oliver House to provide  
 

• Renal Unit - The York Hospital Trust also have a requirement to 
relocate the renal unit, and part of this requirement are individual 
rooms.  This might be accommodated as part of this proposal. 

 
• Autism Hub - A CYC capital bid for the setting up of an autism hub 

has recently been successful and suitable premises are currently 
being sought.  

 
• Community Sector Office provision and meeting space – Due to 

the expiry of the commercial lease on existing offices at Holgate 
Villas a number of health and social care organisations will need to 
relocate.  

 
• A comprehensive information service and practical health and 

social care resources for the public 
 

• Interview rooms for one-to-one advice and counselling work 
 

• A community cafe with supported employment placements 
 

• Assessment facilities for people requiring adaptation equipment 
 

18. Student Accommodation 
 
YSJU are interested in using the existing building for student 
accommodation in the short/medium term (for up to 5 years).  This is 
part of the residential accommodation strategy for the University as their 
student population will be growing by 1500/2000 over the next few 
years. YSJU are currently working on the development of a number of 
brownfield sites for accommodation, but need an incremental approach 
to this strategy to manage the risk, due to potential fluctuation in student 
numbers. 

Page 132



 

Therefore for this September 250 additional student beds will be needed 
and Oliver House is a potential part of the solution.  The building would 
need to be refurbished to meet their requirements. The extent of the 
refurbishment will have an impact on the viability of any scheme and any 
rental which could be paid.  All the refurbishment will be funded by YSJU 
but in order to undertake the necessary works in time for September 
deadline YSJU require a positive decision on the 15th May 2012. If this 
decision date cannot be achieved YSJU will withdraw their offer.  
 

19. Affordable Housing 

The site is an ideal location for affordable housing and adjacent to the 
Prospect House council flats. These are very popular and an extension 
of affordable housing to the Oliver House site and the garage court 
would contribute towards meeting the shortage of affordable homes in 
York.  
 
Within the overall ‘affordable housing’ description there are many 
options in house type, mix, tenure and ownership/management. These 
range from the council funding, building and managing new homes using 
resources from the Housing Revenue Account, to private sector 
institutional investment funding.  
 
Several housing associations have funding secured from the Homes and 
Communities Agency to deliver 770 homes between 2011-2105 on 
unspecified sites across the Leeds City Region. The site could 
accommodate houses or apartments or a mix of both. A higher density 
would be achieved from a flatted scheme, but a high density of houses 
would be possible too as the site is in an area of terraced streets.  
 
A viability appraisal and feasibility study would be needed to test the 
housing options, especially as the use of this site by CYC would have 
the impact of a reduced or even nil capital receipt for the site. However, 
any reduced capital receipt would be considered in the wider context of 
savings and benefits that meeting affordable housing needs will bring.  
 

20. Funding would also need to be found for any development which may 
have an influence on the mix/type of accommodation provided on the 
site. An exercise to look at institutional investment in housing 
developments has not yet commenced. 

 
 
 

Page 133



 

Evaluation of Options 
 

21. Option 1 – Health and Social Care Hub 
The property will be let to a Voluntary Sector Management Group for 
a term of 20-25 years at a commercial rent with a 5 yearly review of 
the rent to cover the cost of the prudential borrowing in lieu of a 
capital receipt. The groups who would use the site currently pay 
sufficient rent to meet the costs but would need to secure some 
investment funding to convert the building for their use. This could 
come from borrowing or grant funding. 
 

Advantages: 

a. Satisfy an identified need for a voluntary sector social care facility in 
the city centre 

b. Improve provision for vulnerable people needing social care services 
c. Enable the relocation of organisations currently leasing space in 

Holgate Villas and elsewhere, where the future availability of the 
accommodation may be uncertain. 

d. Potential to offer accommodation for an autism hub and renal unit. 
e. CYC would retain long term ownership of the site and could still sell 

the property in the future if the scheme did not come to fruition or was 
not viable in the longer term.  

f. Allow York CVS time to explore potential purchase options 
 

Disadvantages: 

a. The business case has yet to be finalised, therefore there is a risk that 
the project may not be delivered.   

b. There will be a delay in receiving rental income whilst the property is 
refurbished and grants are applied for. CVS are indicating that a full 
rent may not be forthcoming for at least 6 months and may take as 
long as 18 months.  This could be accommodated within the financial 
model for the EPH review as long as rental income was in place by 
2014/15.  

c. It is likely that planning permission will be needed for change of use 
consent 

d. Risk of the scheme becoming unviable in future years  
e. A separate scheme for the garaging site will be required. 

 
 
 
 

Page 134



 

22. Option 2 – Student Accommodation 
 The property would be let to YSJU for a term of 5 years, with the option to 

break at the end of the 3rd year. YSJU have indicated that they would be 
able to meet the required level of rental income with the proviso of a 6 
months rent free period to fund the refurbishment. 

 Advantages: 

a. Provide much needed student accommodation 
b. Planning consent is not required for change of use to student 

accommodation. 
c. Opportunity for the property to be included in a broader review of 

Council assets, which will involve the review of the whole of the 
Council’s asset portfolio. 

d. Will allow the property to be disposed in three to five years time, when 
it anticipated that market conditions will have improved. 

 
 Disadvantages: 

a. Short term solution – would meet the funding requirements of the EPH 
review for 5 years but the future capital receipt would still need to be 
allocated to the EPH review. 

b. Possible resistance from local residents. 
c. In the short term, it could preclude the redevelopment of the garaging 

unless this site is redeveloped separately. 
 

23. Option 3 – Affordable Housing 
 

Advantages: 
 

a. Satisfy an identified need for more affordable homes in the city. 
b. Enable redevelopment of the whole site including garaging. 
c. Compatible with neighbouring land uses. 

 
Disadvantages 
 

a. Possible reduced capital receipt for the property 
b. Timescale uncertain  
 

24. Option 4 – Sale 
 

Advantages: 
 

a. Capital receipt obtained to contribute to the funding of the new EPHs. 

Page 135



 

b. Can be achieved in a relatively short timescale. Enquiries have already 
been received from prospective developers for what is a prime city 
centre development site. 

 
Disadvantages: 
 
a. Selling the property now may not maximise the capital receipt 

compared to waiting until market conditions improve. 
b. Loss of opportunity to deliver important Council Plan objectives 

 

Consultation  

25. This report has been written in consultation with York CVS, YSJU, 
Corporate Finance, Housing, Adult Provision and Modernisation, and the 
Member for Corporate Services. In the time available it has not been 
possible to undertake any consultation about future use of the site with 
local residents. 
 

Council Plan 
26. The four options will contribute to the Council Plan in the following ways. 

Option1 – Build strong communities and protect vulnerable people. 
Option 2 – Build strong communities. 
Option 3 – Build strong communities and protect the environment. 
Option 4 – This would dependent upon the future use of the site. 
 

Implications 
 

27. Finance - A capital receipt of £450k is assumed in the business case of 
the EPH review, providing part of the funding required. The capital 
receipt is projected to be realised in 2014/15  If this asset is disposed of 
for £450k, the EPH business case requires prudential borrowing in the 
longer term of £12.14m at a revenue cost of £1.093m pa. 
 
If Oliver House was not disposed of and there was no capital receipt to 
contribute to the EPH business case prudential, this would increase the 
borrowing in the long term to £12.59m and a revenue cost of £1.132m 
pa, an increase of £41k pa. If the property were leased to either YSJU or 
a Voluntary Sector Management Group then they would pay all the costs 
associated with refurbishing/adapting the premises and CYC would 
receive a rent.  This income stream would be used to cover the 
increased revenue cost of the EPH review. 
 

Page 136



 

If Oliver House was subject to a community asset transfer, then CYC 
would need to identify alternative capital or revenue funding to fund the 
EPH review. This would also be the case if the capital receipts were sold 
for less than the estimated £450k. 
 

Legal  - When selling land or granting a lease for more than seven years 
the Council is generally obliged to secure the best consideration 
reasonably obtainable unless the Secretary of State has approved a 
disposal at a lower value (which may be by way of specific or general 
consent). The Council would normally demonstrate compliance with 
these rules by marketing the land and disposing of it to the highest 
bidder. “Best consideration” can though be demonstrated through 
appropriate professional valuation advice and the Secretary of State has 
produced guidance in respect of such valuations. 

 
If Option 1 is chosen it would therefore be lawful to grant a lease for 20 
to 25 years to a Voluntary Sector Management Group at a commercial 
rent subject to the rent level being confirmed by a valuer as representing 
best consideration. 
 
Disposals by way of a lease for less than seven years are not governed 
by the same rules. The Council must though bear in mind its fiduciary 
obligations to tax payers and its obligation to make reasonable 
decisions. The Council must also take note of the state aid rules. It is 
assumed that the suggested lease to YSJU described in option 2 would 
be at a market rent and this would deal with those points. 
 
Option 3 could give rise to both best consideration and state aid issues. 
These would need to be considered as any such proposal was being 
developed but a general consent from the Secretary of State would 
almost certainly deal with any best consideration issues and there are 
exemptions which can be used to ensure that any state aid is lawful.  
 
Option 4 of a straightforward sale would presumably follow a marketing 
exercise and this would deal with both best consideration and state aid 
issues. 
 

Property - All implications are included in this report 

Human Resources - None 

Page 137



 

Risk Management 

27. The risks associated with the recommendation are outlined in paragraphs 
18-24 of the options section. 

Recommendations 

28. Approve the granting of a 20 year lease to a Voluntary Sector 
Management Group, at a commercial rental to be confirmed through a 
formal valuation, and to be reviewed every 5 years. This would cover the 
cost of prudential borrowing in lieu of a capital receipt, with a subsequent 
review of selling the property. The lease will be on full repairing and 
insuring terms. It will also be contracted out of the security of tenure 
provisions of the Landlord and Tenant Act. 

29. Reason: This option will achieve the income stream required to cover the 
increased revenue cost of the EPH review, and contribute to the priorities 
set out in the Council plan whilst retaining the asset in the long term. 

 
Contact Details 
 
Author: 
 
Tim Bradley 
Asset Manager 
Property Services 
 

Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report:  
Tracey Carter  
Assistant Director of Finance, Asset 
Management and Procurement 

Cabinet Member 
Responsible for the Report: 
 
Cllr Julie Gunnell 
Cabinet Member, 
Corporate Services 

 
 
 
Report 
Approved √ 

Date 3 May 2012 

 

    
Specialist Implications Officers 
Louise Branford-White -Technical Finance Manager 
Andrew Docherty – AD Governance and ICT  
 
Ward Affected: 
Guildhall   
 

All  
 

 

Page 138



 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: File no. E00639/B01 held in Asset and Property 
Management. 
 
Annexes: 
Annex 1 - A plan showing the location of the site. 
Annex 2 – Outline proposals for the Health and Social Care Hub 
Confidential Annex 3 – Financial Proposals from YSJU and York CVS 
 
 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



/
SCALE 1:1,250

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
City of York Council 100020818

Resources
Property Services

Drawing No.Originating Group:

DRAWN BY: DATE:

0.14 Ha
1385.4 sq metres
0.34 Acres

0.23 Ha
2274.8 sq metres
0.56 Acres

(Both Parts)

Oliver House Elderly Persons Home

GR 31/01/2012

E00639_3

ANNEX 1

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 2 
 
Outline proposal for Oliver House 

 
A number of voluntary sector organisations in York have expressed an 
interest in Oliver House and are keen to work in partnership with City of 
York Council to explore the suitability of this site to deliver a range of 
integrated services. 
  
These services will contribute to the strategic aims of the local  
authority, particularly in relation to enabling older people and disabled 
residents to live full, inclusive and independent lives. Supporting 
employers to grow and develop within the city centre also forms an 
important component of the York Economic Strategy. 
  
In order to develop this concept, the following organisations ask City of 
York Council’s Cabinet to consider the future use of Oliver House as a 
Specialist Community Resource that will provide access to a range of 
health and social care services in a single central location. 
  
Organisations supporting this proposal… 
  
York Mind 
York Independent Living Network 
York Citizens Advice Bureau 
York Council for Voluntary Service 
York Carers Centre 
York Blind & Partially Sighted Society 
York LINk 
York Carers Forum 
Relate 
Foundation 
Age UK York 
Independent Living Scheme 
Wilf Ward Family Trust 
York Older People's Assembly 
United Response 
North Yorkshire & York Credit Union 
Family Mediation Service 
The Healing Clinic 
Lives Unlimited 
York Childcare 
York Women's Counselling Service 

Page 143



Alzheimer's Society - York & Selby 
The Change Foundation 
York Race Equality Network 
 
Collectively, these organisations will seek to refurbish the building to 
provide a variety of facilities that are fit for purpose which could include; 
 

● A comprehensive information service and practical health and 
social care resources for the public 

● Office accommodation for a number of voluntary organisations and 
social enterprises, with shared back office functions to minimise 
operational costs and maximise efficiencies 

● Interview rooms for one-to-one advice and counselling work 
● A community cafe with supported employment placements 
● Flexible spaces for community activities including an autism hub, 

providing services for both adults accessing services and for 
transition customers 

● Assessment facilities for people requiring adaptation equipment 
● affordable, accessible meeting space for the voluntary and 

statutory sectors 
 
In return for local authority commitment to this project, the voluntary 
sector organisations will seek long term investment and hope to secure 
funding from a variety of sources to renew and enhance the property. 
The building will be refurbished to inclusive design standards and 
incorporate environmental technology to reduce energy costs and 
increase sustainability. 
 
By bringing together groups with similar aims, it is anticipated that 
services will be integrated and streamlined, allowing organisations 
based in Oliver House to develop a model of best practice and to create 
exemplar facilities within the city. 
 
Benefits for City of York Council 
 
The creation of a Specialist Community Resource will simplify 
signposting to voluntary organisations for local authority staff, an 
essential component of the new HealthWatch contract and create a 
‘one-stop shop’ for people to get good quality information about support 
options available to facilitate the personalisation agenda. 
 
The central location, near the new West Offices Headquarters, will 
enable stronger working relationships to develop between the council 

Page 144



and specialist health and social care organisations to facilitate innovative 
service delivery. This will assist the City of York Council to address 
issues arising from an ageing population and increasing care needs at a 
time of ongoing reductions in state funding.  
 
The creation of this new community facility reflects the Council’s 
commitment to partnership working with local communities and would be 
an ideal flagship project for the Co-operative Council network, giving 
local people choice and control over the services they use. This would 
cement York’s position as leading innovation in action nationally. 
 
The creation of shared, flexible space will enable existing groups to 
develop new and creative ways of delivering support. In line with the 
Personalisation agenda, the facility will respond to existing market data, 
and undertake research, to ensure the hub provides the new services 
people demand, increasing individual’s choice and control in accessing 
the support they want.  
 
There are expectations that the voluntary and community sector will pick 
up support for people with low and moderate support needs as the 
council’s eligibility criteria reduces from moderate to critical and 
substantial. Through supporting voluntary and community organisations 
with secure and sustainable facilities, this will free up the resources 
needed within the sector to focus on the challenges ahead. Enabling 
groups to work together and identify gaps in service will lead to 
increased preventative work. This is essential if a social care funding 
crisis is to be averted. 
 
Along with the Priory Street Centre, the building will enable existing 
community and voluntary organisations in the area to pilot opportunities 
around the development of Community Contracts. Tapping into existing 
groups like the Micklegate Residents Action Group, the Bishophill Action 
Group, and the We Are Your Emporium collective, and developing 
learning from the current timebanking pilot in Westfield, the building 
provides a hub for ongoing community development activity. 
 
The building will also provide the foundations for an Autism Hub, 
currently being developed by commissioners in Adults, Children and 
Education. As this service is likely to be commissioned from a voluntary 
or social enterprise provider, this will enable that provider to develop 
strong partnerships with the wider sector. 
 
 
 

Page 145



Benefits for Voluntary and Social Enterprise Organisations 
 
Shared back office functions will reduce administration costs and enable 
a greater investment in frontline service delivery. Similarly, joint working 
will highlight any areas of duplication, creating greater efficiencies and 
an increased capacity to provide universal and preventative services. 
 
The building’s close proximity to Priory Street Centre and Clements Hall 
will create a greater sense of a ‘Voluntary Quarter’ in York, and enable 
these complimentary venues to work together to maximise sustainable 
income streams. 
 
A number of voluntary organisations based at Holgate Villa, and at risk 
of losing their existing central premises, could be relocated. This 
development will secure their future, enabling them to continue to 
provide valued services within a central location. Organisations based at 
Holgate Villa include… 
 
York Blind & Partially Sighted Society 
York LINk 
York Older People's Assembly 
North Yorkshire & York Credit Union 
Alzheimer's Society - York & Selby 
Alzheimer's Society - Regional office 
Family Mediation Service / Child Contact Centre 
Action for Advocacy 
  
Benefits for Individuals 
 
A Specialist Community Resource will reduce confusion for individuals in 
times of need, and enable people to access a range of services in one 
place. People will have more awareness of the services available to 
them. 
 
Other Benefits 
 
Micklegate has recently seen a number of shop closures, and the area 
needs revitalising. Increased footfall through this area, either into town or 
to the station from people working in and accessing the resource, will 
provide a much-needed boost to local businesses. 
 
Bishophill is a quiet residential area. Use of the building as a health and 
social care and community hub will bring minimum disruption to the local 
community, and provide a focal point for existing community activity. 

Page 146



Initial discussions with a number of local residents indicates they are 
supportive of this proposal. 
 
Potential models for the development 
 
The organisations looking to move this project forward will consider a 
variety of financial models, including a Community Asset Transfer, rent, 
leasehold or purchase arrangements. However, the viability of these 
options will need further consideration at the business planning stage. 
An initial approach will be made to Joseph Rowntree Foundation’s small 
grants fund for funding to complete a full options appraisal. This will also 
raise awareness of the project within Joseph Rowntree Foundation. 
 
Options and financial models for Oliver House 
 
Option 1 - Council retain and maintain the building, tenants pay rental 
income on the property. 
 
Existing rented offices in the city attract a range of rental incomes per 
square metre, based on market rates, target audience and quality of 
accommodation. The table below uses existing rental charges in the city 
to show the potential rental income from Oliver House; 
 
 Holgate Villa 15 Priory 

Street 
17 Priory 
Street 

West 
Offices 

cost / sqm £111 p/a £120 p/a £105.60 
p/a 

£160 

service charge / sqm included 
(repairing and 
insuring 
lease) 

£65.60 
p/a 

£65.60 
p/a 

unknown 

possible income 
based on existing 
footprint of OH - total 
area inc garages 
0.56 acres  

£251,526 £271,920 £239,289 £362,560 

 

Page 147



Option 2 - Council lease the building to a management group, who are 
responsible for running and maintaining the building. 
 
The management group could be a consortium of existing voluntary 
organisations and social enterprises. There are also voluntary 
organisations who specialise in taking on and running community 
spaces, who may be interested in taking the building on. 
 
Option 3 - Council sell the building to a management group who secure 
the asset for voluntary, community and social enterprise use. A suitable 
legal vehicle for doing this will be identified, possibly something like a 
Community Benefit Society, or BenCom. 
 
This can be financed through a mixture of loan and grant finance, 
including a mortgage with a specialist voluntary sector lender, such as 
Unity Trust Bank or Charity Bank. The management group will develop a 
20 year business plan to pay back all loans attached to the building. This 
improves the sustainability of the sector long term, enabling them to 
focus on meeting local needs. Currently Holgate Villa VCSE tenants pay 
in excess of £100,000 p/a in rent. A £500,000 repayment loan spread 
over 20 years at a 10% AIR would total £57,900 p/a. 
 
Overarching ideas - Community Asset Transfer. 
 
City of York Council can dispose of Oliver House to a properly 
constituted community group at preferential rates in various ways 
including freehold, a long lease, a shorter lease or a licence to occupy. 
The constituted group then takes on responsibility for running and 
maintaining the facility for the benefit of the local community and/or 
communities of interest within the city. 
 
The partners will work to develop a detailed fundraising strategy for 
either refurbishment or rebuild costs. Possible options include; 
 

● Department of Health Social Enterprise Investment Fund 
● Big Lottery Funding (Awards for All, Reaching Communities) 
● Applications to relevant grant funding bodies  

○ Tudor Trust (innovative responses to community needs) 
○ Henry Smith (health) 
○ Esmée Fairbairn (addressing gaps in provision) 
○ Garfield Weston (general giving, including welfare, health, 

environment) 
○ Hedley Foundation (encouraging development and change) 

Page 148



● Registering on the Big Give website 
● Crowdfunding through Crowdcube, pleasefund.us or similar, 

making use of all partners social media networks 
● Loan and grant funding from Keyfund 
● Fundraising and income generating activities organised through 

the partnership 
 
Conventional cost benefit analysis does not capture the true value for 
the city of this project.  Valuing hidden costs and benefits to the city will 
ensure the most effective and efficient use of valuable and scarce 
resources.   
 
Another consideration for the council is a lack of affordable and 
accessible start up space for emerging voluntary, community, and social 
enterprise organisations. If they are minded to do so, there may be 
opportunities to work with the local authority in securing such space 
within this development, or through working with existing venues to 
make most effective use of the space available.   
 
Should our request not be successful in securing Oliver House, we 
would be interested in working with the local authority to develop plans 
for use of other vacant, accessible properties as they become available.  
 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 151
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
Cabinet 15 May 2012 
 
Report of the Cabinet Member for Corporate Services 
 
Exploring opportunities for the Future of the Guildhall 

 

Summary 

1. The purpose of this report is to : 
 
• provide Cabinet with a summary of the recent options 

appraisal and heritage significance / views analysis study  
undertaken for the Guildhall complex – the complete reports 
are available (in the members library and on line with this 
report)  

 
• confirm Cabinet support for running a Royal Institute of British 

Architects RIBA Open Ideas Competition where the timetable 
would see the results available in December 2012 to coincide 
with the first moves in the new council office. 

 
Background 

2. Cabinet resolved on 4 December 2011 to minimise the council’s 
future use of the Guildhall and authorised the director of City Strategy 
to investigate options for the future of the Guildhall. 

 
3. This generated some debate in The Press (30/1/12) which 

necessarily confirmed the strength of local feeling about this 
important and historic public building in the City. 

 
4. Following a tender exercise in autumn 2011, architects Purcell Miller 

Triton PMT were commissioned to undertake an assessment of 
heritage significance, a views analysis and an informed options 
appraisal of the Guildhall complex*.  The study was funded by 
Yorkshire Forward,  English Heritage and CYC and has delivered on 
the brief objectives – setting out : 
 

Agenda Item 9Page 153



 

• The Heritage Significance of the Guildhall Complex 
• A views analysis with respect to the Guildhall’s location on 

the Riverside. 
• An options appraisal highlighting opportunities for possible 

future uses / configurations. 
 

5. *For the purposes of the study we defined the Guildhall complex as : 
 

• The Guildhall itself (the medieval Hall) 
• The Council Chamber, committee rooms and ancillary 

offices 
• The C20th office annex and hutments. 
• The surrounding spaces including the Guildhall Yard and the 

Riverside. 
 

6. The Guildhall and associated riverside committee rooms are listed 
grade I and the council chamber and associated offices are listed 
grade II. 

 
7. The headline findings : 
 

• Overall the fabric of the buildings is of national significance, 
but the Guildhall itself was extensively re-built post-war 
following the bomb damage so it is not a pristine medieval 
guildhall. 

• The complex has very high communal value and 
significance reflecting its integral role in the History of the 
City. 

• The Guildhall is an important part of the York Riverside and 
is seen in views from City Bridges and across / along the 
river. 

• There are some genuinely exciting opportunities and 
possibilities for creative re-use  and the potential for 
redevelopment of parts of the site where there are lower 
levels of heritage significance in the existing fabric. 

Page 154



 

Summary of Key Issues 

8. Planning for the future of the Guildhall complex is critical for the 
council where the costs of continuing to operate the buildings are 
significant, and where the future use options for the majority of the 
office floorspace and the intensity of use of meeting rooms beyond 
the move the new HQ are uncertain. 
 

9. The ‘do nothing option’ simply does not exist, because of  the future 
cost  to the council and the need to secure beneficial use for this key 
heritage asset and to ensure that there is no longer term deterioration 
in condition. 
 

10. The council must therefore plan pro-actively to secure the future of 
the complex.  The relationship with the Mansion House is recognised 
and has been integral to the options appraisal study. 

 
11. Where ‘the guildhall’ is actually a complex of buildings  the options 

appraisal clearly splits the guildhall complex into 4 elements : 
 

• The Guildhall itself (the medieval Hall) 
• The Council chamber, committee rooms and ancillary offices 
• The C20th office annex and hutments. 
• The surrounding spaces including Guildhall Yard and the 

Riverside. 
 

12. The study highlights the strengths and weakness of each aspect 
 

• The Guildhall itself – a large capacity city centre venue but 
with poor ancillary facilities / cross circulation / poor thermal 
and acoustic performance.  Very significant and to be 
retained with upgrading needed. 

• The Council chamber / committee rooms and ancillary 
offices -a purpose built council chamber and imposing 
meeting rooms with the layout , capacity and gravitas 
necessary to best facilitate formal meetings – but suffering 
from poor IT facilities / thermal / acoustic performance and 
below standard physical accessibility / legibility.  Very 
Significant and to be retained, but improvements are needed 
to improve the facilities. 

• The C20th office annex and hutments – office 
accommodation adjacent to the other elements and in a 
prime city centre location – relatively poor quality and limited 

Page 155



 

flexibility – no distinct access.  Not significant apart form the 
River frontage, some opportunity fro re-development. 

• The surrounding spaces including Guildhall Yard and the 
Riverside.  The Riverside setting is a key asset  and there is 
a longstanding council aspiration for a Riverside Walkway.  
The Guildhall Yard should be seen as a City space. And the 
York Boat Yard which is owned by the Council currently has 
restricted access.  A holistic approach would add value to 
the whole area. 

 
An RIBA Open Ideas Design Competition 
 
13. A meeting with the RIBA competitions office (based in Leeds) has 

confirmed that an RIBA Open Ideas competition – see annex 1 
- is likely to attract significant interest and almost certainly attract 
interest from high profile practices and potentially including 
international interest. 

 
14. The key benefit of an open ideas competition is as a design 

exercise to stimulate ideas and encourage ‘blue Sky thinking’ to 
explore the opportunities afforded by this unique setting. 
 

15. The ‘Open Ideas’ format allows for exhibition of creative thinking, 
but with no commitment to proceed beyond the competition stage 
by the council. 
 

16. There is a cost to running such a competition, and this is set out at 
annex 1.  However the RIBA format is the industry standard and 
the RIBA brand is nationally and internationally recognised.  The 
cost to the council could be reduced through sponsorship 
contributions from across the City. 

 
17.  Informal discussions with potential partners have indicated 

support in principle for sponsoring a competition to make it a 
‘City’ competition as opposed to a ‘Council’ competition.  
Contacts should be individually followed up if this approach is 
agreed.  A recent RIBA Housing Design Competition in Salford 
involved partners including Council / NHS / University / BRE. 

 
18.  York Boat have confirmed a willingness to engage with a process 

that considers the future of the whole area, including the York 
Boatyard and buildings, where the potential to look at the area 

Page 156



 

holistically is clearly ‘good planning’.  This is clearly on a without 
prejudice basis. 

 
19.  The competition has the potential to attract media coverage, 

especially in the design / architectural / planning / property 
journals and to raise the profile of the City.  A clear demonstration 
of the potential of this part of the City could significantly increase 
interest in the Guildhall complex which may be key to securing 
investment in its future.  
 

20.  The competition  brief would directly respond to the council’s 
aspirations to be a leading environmentally friendly City and a 
centre for conservation excellence by specifically asking for 
entries to consider how new elements could combine with 
effective retro fit to the existing fabric to achieve a zero carbon 
development. 

 
21.  There is also significant interest in economic development terms 

for securing a location for high quality serviced office 
accommodation in the City centre for creative / digital businesses 
to capitalise on York’s leading broadband offer.  The guildhall 
offers a great location and the competition brief could specifically 
include this. 

 
22.  Key here is seeing the ‘Connectivity’ as both physical – 

achieving a better integration between the site and the wider city 
and realising the wider ambition of a riverside walkway.  But also 
ensuring that the competition showcases the City’s digital 
connectivity potential as part of a world class business network. 
 

Consultation 

23. The RIBA Open Ideas competition option has been discussed 
informally with : 

 
• the RIBA competitions office – to confirm the suitability. 
• CYC Property Asset management team 
• York Boat as being directly affected and as a CYC tenant. 
• Potential sponsor organisations 

 
 

24. There is agreement and support for the idea which would enable a 
wider debate across the City about the future of the Guildhall 

Page 157



 

complex, where entries can be exhibited (in the Guildhall itself) 
and for a process which should see imaginative solutions 
proposed which both respect the central role of the Guildhall in 
City life and its status as a listed building, and reinforce this with 
modern and vibrant new use patterns and better connectivity to 
the Riverside as a key city asset. 

 
Options Appraisal 

 
25.  If the options for the future of the Guildhall as set out in the PMT 

report are to be carefully considered and progressed.  The 
question is how best to do this? 

 
26.  This could be done in a more traditional way by directly 

commissioning further and more detailed feasibility studies to 
build on the options appraisal work already undertaken. 

 
27.  However, appointing a project team to undertake a detailed 

feasibility to take forward the suggestions in the options appraisal 
would require a clear CYC lead and would also require some 
decisions to be taken now re requirements, specifically for the 
council chamber and ancillary offices / meeting spaces, and the 
other requirements. 
 

28.  This option would also require the identification of a specific 
project budget  

 
29.  The option to launch an RIBA open ideas competition would cost 

approx.  £35,000 and has the following advantages : 
 

• Management of the process by RIBA competitions office in 
accordance with RIBA standards securing  

 
• National and potentially international interest and the 

opportunity to benefit from a range of innovative design ideas 
and approaches for the most beneficial use of this key part of 
the City on a without prejudice basis. 

 
• Significant publicity about the project which has the potential to 

translate into interest in taking a project forward. 
 
 

Page 158



 

• The clear potential to enhance York’s reputation as being open 
for business and receptive and responsive to high quality 
contextual contemporary design. 

 
• A relatively low cost option which allows other considerations 

to progress in parallel. 
 
30.  The ability to link the ideas and principles of physical 

connectivity with digital connectivity as a means of building on 
York’s dual strengths of world class heritage and world class 
digital connectivity can be exploited. - York was founded on the 
basis of being a key location for communications routes – there is 
a clear aspiration to build its future success on digital 
connectivity. 

 
Options 

31.  Option 1 – to note the options appraisal work carried out by PMT 
and agree the proposal to proceed with an RIBA Open Ideas 
Competition. An officer group working would prepare a detailed 
brief for the RIBA Open Ideas Competition to be launched in 
September 2012. 

 
32.  Option 2 – to note the options appraisal work carried out by PMT 

and commission further detailed studies as suggested to 
investigate the potential for future uses and ownership options by 
directly commissioning additional feasibility work. 

 
33.  Option 3 – to note the options appraisal work and take no further 

action. 
 
Analysis 

34.  Option 1 – offers an approach which considers the future 
opportunities for the Guildhall complex in a more innovative and 
open way and which may generate interest in a long term solution 
– initially at low cost to the council.  Although some additional 
work may still be required on specific aspects relating to the 
council’s future use requirements. 

 
35.  Option 2 – offers a route to securing the future of the Guildhall 

complex which requires a greater level of direct involvement by 
the council immediately and funding for additional studies. 

Page 159



 

36.  Option 3 – acknowledges the work to date but takes not further 
action to secure the future of the Guildhall complex. 

 
Council Plan 

37.  The  (option 1) proposal will deliver on the Council Plan objective 
of  holding an RIBA design competition and deliver on the 
objective of promoting the highest standards of sustainable 
contemporary design in the City to complement our outstanding 
architectural legacy.  The location on the City Riverside and 
adjacent to the award winning (in 2001) City Screen development 
to the east of the Guildhall can be used to maximum advantage. 

 
Implications 

38. The report has the following implications: 

• Financial – running and RIBA competition would cost the 
council a maximum of £35,000, but these costs should be 
reduced where partners across the City contribute to these 
costs by sponsoring the competition.  Funding has been 
secures form the Delivery and Innovation Fund. 

• Human Resources (HR) – There are no HR implications – the 
competition is effectively run by the RIBA competitions office 
based in Leeds with the Head of Design Conservation and 
Sustainable Development as the main council contact.  

• Equalities – There are no direct Equalities implications – 
Accessibility will be key to the future use requirements 

• Legal – Although there is no obligation to proceed with the 
winning entry the Council need to ensure that the competition is 
run in a way that gives it the option to proceed. The application 
of EU procurement rules will therefore need to be taken into 
account in the management of the competition. The legal rights 
of the tenants of  the York Boat site will need to be respected in 
moving forward with any proposal and their involvement at this 
stage is clearly sensible.   

• Crime and Disorder – There are no Crime & Disorder 
implications – any future scheme would have to meet 
appropriate standards. 

• Information Technology (IT) – There are no direct IT 
implications 

• Property – The council own the Guildhall complex and York 
boat yard.  The option proposed is to pro-actively consider the 

Page 160



 

future of the complex, by seeking innovative solutions for its 
retention/ redevelopment. 

• Other – There are no other implications 

Risk Management 

39.  There is a real risk to the council’s reputation of not securing the 
future of the Guildhall and of significant ongoing costs and 
liabilities accruing where a viable future use is not secured. 

 
Recommendations 

40. Cabinet are asked to agree option 1 as set out in the report above. 

 Reason – To facilitate the exploration of options for the future of the 
Guildhall in an innovative and cost effective way – that will generate 
publicity for the City and the site; facilitate a level of consultation and 
with the potential for securing interest in progressing a solution. 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 
David Warburton 

 
Chief Officers Responsible for the 
report: 

Head of Design 
Conservation and 
Sustainable Development 
 
Tel No.01904 551312 
 
Cabinet Member 
responsible for report: 
Cllr J Gunnell, Cabinet 
Member for Corporate 
Services 

Mike Slater 
Assistant Director for City Development 
and Sustainability  
 
Report 
Approved √ Date 04 May 2012 

    

 
Specialist Implications Officer(s):  N/A 
Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All üüüü 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
 
 

Page 161



 

Background Papers: 
 
PMT Options appraisal report available online / in members library. 
 
 
Annexes 
 
1. RIBA open ideas competition format 
2.  York Guildhall Options Appraisal and heritage significance / views 

analysis study  undertaken for the Guildhall complex (attached 
online to the report and copies in the members’ library) 

 

Page 162



                 ANNEX 1 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 Registered Company Number 04604947 
VAT Registration Number 232 351 891 

RIBA Competitions        
5th Floor, The Studio 
32 The Calls 
Leeds LS2 7EW UK 
Tel +44 (0)113 234 1335 
riba.competitions@ 
inst.riba.org 
www.architecture.com 

 

The Open Ideas Competition 
 
Introduction  
 
The RIBA has a dedicated unit to help clients and procurement professionals select 
the best designer or design solution for their particular projects.  Established for over 
25 years, RIBA Competitions has an international reputation for organising selection 
processes that encourage excellence in design in architecture, landscape architecture, 
urban design and the public realm.  RIBA Competitions has managed bespoke design 
competitions for a diverse range of clients, project types (buildings, structures, public 
realm/artworks) and budgets.  The impartial nature of the service ensures that design 
professionals compete with one another on an equal and fair basis, with RIBA 
Competitions acting as the designated point of contact between the client, the RIBA 
Adviser and competitors.  Competitive processes organised by RIBA Competitions 
can dovetail with and satisfy the requirements of European Union procurement 
legislation.   
 
A list of RIBA Competitions’ past clients, testimonials and case studies is available via 
www.architecture.com/competitions 
 
 
The Open Ideas Competition 
 
Ideas competitions carry no commitment by the client to appoint a winning designer. 
An Ideas Competition is used primarily as a design exercise to stimulate ideas and 
encourage ‘blue-sky thinking’ by exploring specific areas of architecture, planning, 
engineering and design. 
 
An Open Ideas Competition format provides any eligible design professional with the 
opportunity of applying for the competition brief and submitting a design proposal.  
The competition may be open to architects and/or people from related disciplines 
(such as landscape architects, urban designers, engineers, public artists etc).  Where 
appropriate, students of these design disciplines can also be encouraged to apply.  
Designs are judged anonymously and a first, second and third prize is awarded.  
Where there is a possibility that the client may commission the winning designer in 
the future, then it may be appropriate to introduce a second stage involving interviews 
with a shortlist before a winner is selected. 
 
If there is a possibility of the project being taken forward post-competition 
then EU procurement regulations may apply.  Responsibility for compliance 
with EU procurement legislation rests solely with the client body.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 163



 

 

 

 
Competition Format 
 
1. Competition publicised 

RIBA Competitions publicises the competition in the architectural press, via the 
RIBA website and social networking links.  Other relevant trade journals may also 
be targeted. The launch information directs applicants to RIBA Competitions for 
further information. 

 
2. Brief available 

Anyone eligible to enter from the design disciplines indicated would be able to 
take part in the competition and submit a design, upon payment of a 
documentation fee (usually around £75.00 + VAT, with a reduced fee for 
students).  Income from these fees is retained by RIBA Competitions and is used 
to offset the time and expenses associated with the open competition format.   
 
RIBA Competitions is able to co-ordinate production of the competition brief. 
An indication of the likely charge for a web based brief is provided in the Costs 
section. 
 

3. Design period 
Approximately eight weeks is usually given for the design phase.  Within the 
design period, competitors are given the opportunity to raise written questions on 
the brief, via RIBA Competitions.  Replies to all questions are circulated to all 
competitors (to ensure all participants have access to the same information). 

 
4. Submission of designs 

Designs are submitted in a given format and by a given deadline.  Stage one 
schemes are generally submitted and assessed anonymously.  Submissions 
generally take the form of A1 or A2 design boards accompanied by a short written 
report.  Architectural models do not form part of a standard submission. 
 

5. Assessment 
The Jury Panel (see below) meets to assess the (anonymous) entries and make 
their selection.  A first, second and third prize is then selected.   
 
In RIBA Competitions copyright always rest with the author of the design.  
However images of any design may be used for promotional purposes associated 
with the competition 
 
 

Jury Panel, appointment of an RIBA Adviser & Jury Report 
 
The Jury Panel should be named at the time of the competition launch, or at least the 
make-up of the Panel should be stated.   The Panel should be kept to a reasonable 
number (ideally no more than seven people) and provide a broad representation of 
skills and expertise.  RIBA Competitions will provide you with a tailored shortlist of 

Page 164



 

 

 

architects for you to select an adviser.  The adviser is a critical part of the process, 
providing you with an independent viewpoint and an appreciation of a wide spectrum 
of possible approaches to your project.  The appointed RIBA Adviser is usually 
invited to be a voting member of the Jury Panel. 
 
At the conclusion of the competition a Jury Report is sent to all competitors.  The 
report provides evidence of a fair process of judgement, a record of decisions made 
and reasons for them.  A draft Jury Report is prepared by the RIBA Adviser in 
conjunction with RIBA Competitions and circulated for client and panel approval 
before issue.  
 
 
Scope of Services / Additional Service Packages 
 
We would work with you to tailor the scope of services to meet your competition 
requirements.  RIBA Competitions is also able to provide a range of additional PR 
and marketing opportunities - further details of which can be provided on request. 
 
 
Timetable 
 
We would work with you to establish a competitive process to fit your timescale.  An 
Open ideas competition typically takes about 18 weeks from competition launch to 
selection of a winner.   
 
Based on an Open Ideas Design Competition route  
 
Prepared for City of York Council draft Timetable V3 
 
Nominations for role of RIBA Adviser 

 

w/c 16 April 2012 

Appoint RIBA Adviser June/July  2012 

 
Finalise Competition Brief/Website 
 

August 2012 

Competition Launch  w/c 10 September 2012 

 
Submission Deadline Tuesday 6 November 2012 

 
Assessment of Stage One 
Designs/Shortlist Identified  
 

w/c 12 November 2012 

 

Page 165



 

 

 

Shortlist notified  w/c 19 November 2012 

 
Exhibition of Shortlisted Designs / 
Public Consultation  

w/c 26 November 2012 

 
Final Interviews / Presentations 
 

w/c 10 December 2012  

Result  December 2012 

 
 

Page 166



Pu
rc

el
l M

ill
er

 T
rit

to
n 

LL
P, 

29
 M

ar
yg

at
e,

 Y
or

k 
 Y

O
30

 7
W

H
yo

rk
@

pu
rc

el
lm

ill
er

tr
itt

on
.c

om
   

 w
w

w
.p

ur
ce

llm
ill

er
tr

itt
on

.c
om

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2

TH
E 

G
U

IL
D

H
A

LL
, Y

O
RK

   
 O

PT
IO

N
S 

A
PP

RA
IS

A
LPage 167



A
ll 

ri
g
h
ts

 i
n
 t

h
is

 w
o
rk

 a
re

 r
e
se

rv
e
d
. 

 N
o
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 m
a
y 

b
e
 

re
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

st
o
re

d
 o

r 
tr

a
n
sm

it
te

d
 i

n
 a

n
y 

fo
rm

 o
r 

b
y 

a
n
y 

m
e
a
n
s 

(i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 w

it
h
o
u
t l

im
it
a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
p
h
o
to

co
p
yi

n
g
 o

r 
p
la

ci
n
g
 o

n
 a

 w
e
b
si

te
) 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 p

ri
o
r 

p
e
rm

is
si

o
n
 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 o

f 
P
u
rc

e
ll 

M
ill

e
r 

Tr
it
to

n
 L

LP
 

e
xc

e
p
t 

in
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
s 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
p
yr

ig
h
t,

 D
e
si

g
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

a
te

n
ts

 A
ct

 1
9
8
8
. 
 A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s 

fo
r 

p
e
rm

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

 a
n
y 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

d
d
re

ss
e
d
 t

o
 P

u
rc

e
ll 

M
ill

e
r 

Tr
it
to

n
 L

LP
 a

t 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s@
p
u
rc

e
llm

ill
e
rt

ri
tt

o
n
.c

o
m

.

U
n
d
e
rt

a
ki

n
g
 a

n
y 

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
se

d
 a

ct
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 w
o
rk

 
m

a
y 

re
su

lt
 
in

 
a
 
ci

vi
l 

cl
a
im

 
fo

r 
d
a
m

a
g
e
s 

a
n
d
/o

r 
cr

im
in

a
l 

p
ro

se
cu

ti
o
n
. 

 A
n
y 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 u
se

d
 i

n
 t

h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 

su
b
je

ct
 t
o
 t
h
ir
d
 p

a
rt

y 
co

p
yr

ig
h
t 
h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 r
e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

lic
e
n
ce

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

o
p
yr

ig
h
t 
o
w

n
e
r 
e
xc

e
p
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

a
se

 o
f 
w

o
rk

s 
o
f 
u
n
kn

o
w

n
 a

u
th

o
rs

h
ip

 a
s 

d
efi

 n
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
p
yr

ig
h
t,

 D
e
si

g
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

a
te

n
ts

 A
ct

 1
9
8
8
. 

 A
n
y 

p
e
rs

o
n
 w

is
h
in

g
 t

o
 a

ss
e
rt

 r
ig

h
ts

 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 w

o
rk

s 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
 a

s 
w

o
rk

s 

o
f 

u
n
kn

o
w

n
 a

u
th

o
rs

h
ip

 s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ta

ct
 P

u
rc

e
ll 

M
ill

e
r 

Tr
it
to

n
 L

LP
 a

t 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s@
p
u
rc

e
llm

ill
e
rt

ri
tt

o
n
.c

o
m

. 
   

  

P
u
rc

e
ll 

M
ill

e
r 

Tr
it
to

n
 L

LP
 a

ss
e
rt

s 
it
s 

m
o
ra

l 
ri
g
h
ts

 t
o
 

b
e
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
 a

s 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
r 

o
f 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

C
o
p
yr

ig
h
t,

 D
e
si

g
n
s 

a
n
d
 P

a
te

n
ts

 A
ct

 1
9
8
8
.

©
 P

u
rc

e
ll 

M
ill

e
r 

Tr
it
to

n
 L

LP
 2

0
1
1

LH
/A

H
/l

kc
/2

3
3
0
0
4

Page 168



F
O

R
E
W

O
R

D

T
h
e
 Y

o
rk

 G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

co
m

p
le

x 
is

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

o
w

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

cc
u
p
ie

d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

it
y 

o
f 
Yo

rk
 C

o
u
n
ci

l.
 I

n
 

a
d
va

n
ce

 o
f 

m
o
vi

n
g
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
w

 h
e
a
d
q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 a
t 

W
e
st

 O
ffi
 c

e
s,

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
is

 c
o
n
si

d
e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 u

se
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
ce

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

it
s 

a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y.

 

To
 i

n
fo

rm
 t

h
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 P
u
rc

e
ll 

M
ill

e
r 

Tr
it
to

n
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

it
y 

o
f 

Yo
rk

 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
to

 p
re

p
a
re

:

•
A

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
S

ig
n

ifi
 c

a
n

ce
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

s 
a
n
d
 h

is
to

ri
ca

l 
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

co
m

p
le

x,
 w

h
a
t 

su
rv

iv
e
s 

to
d
a
y 

a
n
d
 h

o
w

 s
ig

n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s;

•
A

K
e
y
 V

ie
w

s 
A

n
a
ly

si
s 

to
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
n
d
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 

p
ri
n
ci

p
a
l 
vi

e
w

s 
fr

o
m

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

va
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
;

•
A
n

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

A
p

p
ra

is
a
l 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 

b
y 

th
e
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
f 

th
e
 

co
m

p
le

x 
a
n
d
 

it
s 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 a
s 

se
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

S
ig

n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 a
n
d
 K

e
y 

V
ie

w
s 

A
n
a
ly

si
s.

 T
h
e
 

O
p
ti
o
n
s 

A
p
p
ra

is
a
l 

e
xp

lo
re

s 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
fo

r 
in

n
o
va

ti
ve

 n
e
w

 u
se

s 
th

a
t 

a
ls

o
 a

d
d
re

ss
 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

re
tr

o
fi 
tt

in
g
 t

h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s 

fo
r 

e
n
e
rg

y 
e
ffi
 c

ie
n
cy

. 
T
h
e
 O

p
ti
o
n
s 

A
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
a
ls

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi 
e
s 

w
a
ys

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 p

u
b
lic

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
a
n
d
 i
ts

 

se
tt

in
g
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
lly

 t
h
e
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 O

u
se

. 
 T

h
e
 O

p
ti
o
n
s 

A
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
h
a
s 

a
ls

o
 t

a
ke

n
 i
n
to

 

co
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

le
va

n
t 

e
xi

st
in

g
 s

tu
d
ie

s 
a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s,
 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 Q

u
in

q
u
e
n
n
ia

l 
In

sp
e
ct

io
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
7
; 

th
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
Im

p
a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 A

cc
e
ss

 A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
7
 a

n
d
 C

it
y 

O
f 
Yo

rk
 L

ig
h
t 

P
la

n
 2

0
0
6
.

E
x
e
cu

ti
v
e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 O

p
ti

o
n

s
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l

T
h
e

fi 
n
d
in

g
s 
o
f t

h
is

 s
tu

d
y 

fo
r 
re

u
se

 o
f t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

co
m

p
le

x 
a
n
d
 w

id
e
r 
si

te
 a

re
 s
u
m

m
a
ri
se

d
:

•
T
h
e

G
u

il
d

h
a
ll
 i

s 
d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

n
ci

lla
ry

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
ile

ts
, 

ki
tc

h
e
n
 a

n
d
 a

cc
e
ss

 

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
st

 w
in

g
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

it
 c

a
n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

n
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e
 v

e
n
u
e
 f

o
r 

p
u
b
lic

 

a
n
d
 c

iv
ic

 e
ve

n
ts

, 
le

ct
u
re

s 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
ce

s,
 p

ri
va

te
 f

u
n
ct

io
n
s 

w
it
h
 f

o
o
d
 a

n
d
 d

ri
n
k,

 

e
xh

ib
it
io

n
s 

a
n
d
 s

m
a
ll 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ts

.

•
T
h
e

G
u

il
d

h
a
ll
 O

ffi
 c

e
s 

co
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a

cc
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 c

iv
ic

 d
u
ti
e
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

w
it
h
 d

e
si

g
n
a
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 o

ffi
 c

e
 a

cc
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
cc

e
ss

ib
ili

ty
 i

m
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i

n
cl

u
d
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
a
ss

e
n
g
e
r 

lif
t 

to
 a

ll 
fl 
o
o
rs

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

ve
d
 r

e
ce

p
ti
o
n
 s

p
a
ce

.

•
T
h
e

G
u

il
d

h
a
ll
 A

n
n

e
x
e
 a

n
d

 H
u

tm
e
n

ts
 a

re
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 f

o
r 

re
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

to
 f

o
rm

 a
 

vi
rt

u
a
l o

ffi
 c

e
 b

a
se

 a
n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 c
re

a
ti
ve

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

h
u
b
 w

it
h
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r
o
o
m

s,
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 

sp
a
ce

, 
te

n
a
n
te

d
 o

ffi
 c

e
 s

u
it
e
s,

 g
a
lle

ry
 a

n
d
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 l
o
u
n
g
e
.

•
E
xt

e
rn

a
l 
la

n
d
sc

a
p
e
, 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
ili

ty
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 r
e
co

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 

  
  

C
o

m
m

o
n

 H
a
ll

 Y
a
rd

. 

•
A
 w

id
e
r 

si
te

 a
n
a
ly

si
s 

to
 t

h
e
 Y

o
rk

 B
o
a
t 

Ya
rd

 a
n
d
 R

iv
e
rf

ro
n

t 
p
ro

p
o
se

s 
a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

th
e
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 r
a
is

e
d
 t

e
rr

a
ce

 a
cc

e
ss

e
d
 f

ro
m

 L
e
n
d
a
l 
B
ri
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

co
n
n
e
ct

in
g
 t

o
 a

 n
e
w

 b
o
a
t 

la
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
.

C
h
ri
st

o
p
h
e
r 

C
o
tt

o
n
 R

IB
A
 A

A
B
C

P
u
rc

e
ll 

M
ill

e
r 

Tr
it
to

n

2
9
 M

a
ry

g
a
te

, 
Y
O

R
K

Fe
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
2

1Page 169



C
o

n
te

n
ts

TA
B
LE

 O
F 

C
O

N
T
E
N

T
S
 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

  
 

 
4

K
e
y 

V
ie

w
s 

A
n
a
ly

si
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
0

Q
u
in

q
u
e
n
n
ia

l 
In

sp
e
ct

io
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
7
 

 
 

 
 

1
1

E
q
u
a
lit

y 
Im

p
a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

2
0
1
1
 a

n
d
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 A

cc
e
ss

 A
u
d
it
  

 
1
2

R
e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
7
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
it
y 

O
f 
Yo

rk
: 

Li
g
h
t 

P
la

n
  

 
 

 
 

 
1
6

O
p
ti
o
n
s 

A
p
p
ra

is
a
l 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
8

•
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2
2

•
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

O
ffi
 c

e
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
6

•
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

A
n
n
e
xe

 a
n
d
 H

u
tm

e
n
ts

 
 

 
 

 
2
6

•
C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3
0

•
S
it
e
 C

o
n
te

xt
 A

n
a
ly

si
s 

a
n
d
 U

rb
a
n
 O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
 

 
3
3

C
O

N
C
LU

S
IO

N
S
 A

N
D

 R
E
C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A
T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 
3
8

T
h

e
 G

u
il

d
h

a
ll

 c
o

m
p

le
x
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 R

iv
e
r 

O
u

se

2

Page 170



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

!
"
#$%
&
'
$$(
)
#*
+
(,
(-
#.
*+
%

/
'
.*
(

-0
%
1
+

!
2
3-
4
5
6
--

/
'
7$
8(
9
:
*&
(

;
+
<
*"
78
(!
"
#$%
&
'
$$(

6
<
<
+
=

>
?
?
?
,>
?
@
>
(;
0
"
<
A#
$(

B
CD
A+
.(
'
<
%
(;
&
'
E
F
+
7

G
'
<
.#
0
<

5
0
"
.+

/
'
7$
8(
9
:
*&
(;
+
<
*"
78
(

)
0
"
*&
+
7<
(H
'
<
1
+
(

#<
A0
7I
0
7'
*#
<
1
(

G
+
E
F
+
7.
(B
CD
A+
.

>
?
>
:
(+
=*
+
<
.#
0
<
(

#<
A0
7I
0
7'
*#
<
1
(

A0
E
E
#*
*+
+
(7
0
0
E
.

J0
'*
(5
#7+
(K
'7
%

)$#IL'8

)
#*
+
(I
$'
<
(L
#*
&
(*
&
+
(E
'
#<
(&
+
7#
*'
1
+
('
..
+
*.
('
<
%
(C
+
'
*"
7+
.(
E
'
7M
+
%

!
"#
$
%&
'
(
)
*
+
,
-

3Page 171



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
S

ig
n

ifi
 c

a
n

ce

H
is

to
ri

ca
l 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

 a
n

d
 A

rc
h

it
e
ct

u
ra

l 
C

h
a
ra

ct
e
r

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

w
a
s 

b
u
ilt

 b
y 

th
e
 l

o
rd

-m
a
yo

r,
 c

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

o
f 

th
e
 G

u
ild

 o
f 
S
t 

C
h
ri
st

o
p
h
e
r 

fr
o
m

 1
4
4
5
. 
T
h
is

 t
o
o
k 

p
la

ce
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
a
n
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

b
u
ild

in
g
. 

A
 c

h
a
p
e
l,
 k

it
ch

e
n
, 

b
u
tt

e
ry

, 
p
a
n
tr

y 
a
n
d
 m

a
is

o
n
 d

ie
u
 (

sh
e
lt
e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 

in
fi 
rm

) 
w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

 i
n
 a

ss
o
ci

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 1

5
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll,

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
se

 

h
a
ve

 s
u
rv

iv
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 M

a
n
si

o
n
 H

o
u
se

 w
a
s 

e
re

ct
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

ch
a
p
e
l i

n
 1

7
2
6
. 

A
 t
w

o
-s

to
re

y 
ch

a
m

b
e
r 

b
lo

ck
 w

a
s 

a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 s
id

e
 in

 1
8
1
0
. 
It

 w
a
s 

d
e
si

g
n
e
d
 b

y 
Pe

te
r 

A
tk

in
so

n
 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
e
r,
 t
h
e
 C

it
y 

S
te

w
a
rd

. 
T
h
e
se

 r
o
o
m

s 
a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 

th
e
 U

p
p
e
r 
a
n
d
 L

o
w

e
r 
C
o
u
n
ci

l C
h
a
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y 

m
o
ve

d
 f
ro

m
 o

ffi
 c

e
s 

o
n
 O

u
se

 B
ri
d
g
e
. 
In

 1
8
8
9
-1

8
9
1
 E

. 
G

. 
M

a
w

b
e
y,

 t
h
e
 C

it
y 

S
u
rv

e
yo

r,
 b

u
ilt

 t
h
e
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 G

o
th

ic
 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

ss
o
ci

a
te

d
 o

ffi
 c

e
s 

o
n
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 1

5
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

T
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 R
a
n
g
e
 w

a
s 

a
d
d
e
d
 c

.1
9
0
0
 o

n
 t
h
e
 e

a
st

 s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

tk
in

so
n
 B

lo
ck

 a
n
d
 f
u
n
ct

io
n
e
d
 

a
s 

ce
lls

 d
u
ri
n
g
 A

ss
iz

e
s.

 I
t 

a
ls

o
 i
n
cl

u
d
e
d
 o

ffi
 c

e
s 

a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
W

C
s.

 T
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 A

n
n
e
x,

 

a
ls

o
 e

re
ct

e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
9
0
0
, 

w
a
s 

u
se

d
 b

y 
th

e
 p

o
st

 o
ffi
 c

e
. 

It
 w

a
s 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 o

f 

th
e
 1

8
8
9
 o

ffi
 c

e
s.

 I
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
2
0
s 

th
e
 r

o
ck

e
ry

 in
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

 w
a
s 

e
st

a
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

g
a
ra

g
e
s 

e
re

ct
e
d
. 

S
a
d
ly

, 
th

e
 m

e
d
ie

va
l 
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

w
a
s 

h
e
a
vi

ly
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 a

 G
e
rm

a
n
 

B
a
e
d
e
ke

r 
ra

id
 in

 A
p
ri
l 1

9
4
2
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

ss
iz

e
s 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

ci
vi

c 
e
ve

n
ts

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

h
e
ld

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

h
e
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

In
 t

h
e
 1

9
6
0
s 

th
e
 r

e
p
a
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
st

o
re

d
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

w
a
s 

o
p
e
n
e
d
 b

y 
H

e
r 

M
a
je

st
y 

Q
u
e
e
n
 E

liz
a
b
e
th

 t
h
e
 Q

u
e
e
n
 M

o
th

e
r.

Yo
rk

’s
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

st
a
n
d
s 

o
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
st

 b
a
n
k 

o
f 

th
e
 R

iv
e
r 

O
u
se

, 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

e
n
d
a
l 
B
ri
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

O
u
se

 B
ri
d
g
e
. 

Fu
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
st

, 
a
lo

n
g
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
e
y 

S
tr

e
e
t 

si
d
e
, 

it
 i
s 

se
t 

b
a
ck

 b
e
h
in

d
 t

h
e
 

1
8
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 M

a
n
si

o
n
 H

o
u
se

 a
n
d
 i

s 
fr

o
n
te

d
 b

y 
a
 c

o
u
rt

ya
rd

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s 
‘C

o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

’. 
Fr

o
m

 C
o
n
e
y 

S
tr

e
e
t 
it
 is

 a
cc

e
ss

e
d
 v

ia
 a

 p
a
ss

a
g
e
w

a
y,

 f
o
rm

e
rl
y 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
. 

T
h
is

 l
a
n
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 

b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 m

e
d
ie

va
l 
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

fr
o
m

 b
e
h
in

d
 a

 g
a
te

w
a
y 

in
 t

h
e
 

n
o
rt

h
 e

a
st

 c
o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 y

a
rd

, 
e
m

e
rg

in
g
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 e

d
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 O

u
se

 o
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
st

 s
id

e
. 

O
ri
g
in

a
lly

, 
th

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ce

 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
e
 w

a
s 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 l
o
w

 a
rc

h
w

a
y 

in
 t

h
e
 e

a
st

 e
le

va
ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

it
se

lf

T
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
n
d
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
O

ffi
 c

e
s 

co
m

p
ri
se

 fi
 v

e
 m

a
in

 e
le

m
e
n
ts

:

•
T
h
e
 1

5
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll,

 a
 l
a
rg

e
 r

e
ct

a
n
g
u
la

r 
h
a
ll 

st
ru

ct
u
re

 i
n
co

rp
o
ra

ti
n
g
 s

m
a
lle

r 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

o
o
m

s 
a
t 
th

e
 w

e
st

e
rn

 e
n
d
 w

it
h
 c

e
lla

rs
 b

e
lo

w
. 
T
h
e
 w

a
lls

 a
re

 o
f 
m

a
g
n
e
si

a
n
 

lim
e
st

o
n
e
, 

w
it
h
 c

.1
9
6
0
 r

e
st

o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 P

o
rt

la
n
d
 o

o
lit

ic
 l
im

e
st

o
n
e
;

•
T
h
e
 A

tk
in

so
n
 B

lo
ck

 (
th

e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

b
lo

ck
),

 e
re

ct
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 w
e
st

 

co
rn

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 m

e
d
ie

va
l 
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

c1
8
1
0
. 

A
 t

w
o
-s

to
re

y 
b
lo

ck
 w

it
h
 c

e
lla

rs
, 

it
 r

e
p
la

ce
d
 

th
e
 o

ld
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
n
 O

u
se

 B
ri
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
ca

m
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r

o
o
m

s 
w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 

p
re

se
n
t 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

w
a
s 

b
u
ilt

 
1
8
8
9
-9

1
. 

T
h
e
 
ri
ve

rs
id

e
 
e
le

va
ti
o
n
 
co

m
p
ri
se

s 

m
a
g
n
e
si

a
n
 a

n
d
 P

o
rt

la
n
d
 li

m
e
st

o
n
e
s 

a
n
d
 m

ill
st

o
n
e
 g

ri
t 
sa

n
d
st

o
n
e
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

co
m

p
ri
si

n
g
 1

9
th

 a
n
d
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 b

ri
ck

w
o
rk

;

•
T
h
e
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 

O
ffi
 c

e
s 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r,
 b

u
ilt

 a
g
a
in

st
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
e
d
ie

va
l G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
8
9
-1

8
9
1
. 
T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 is

 o
f 
th

re
e
 m

a
in

 s
to

re
ys

 w
it
h
 a

 

su
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l 
b
a
se

m
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
 e

le
va

ti
o
n
 i
s 

o
f 

m
a
g
n
e
si

a
n
 l
im

e
st

o
n
e
, 

w
h
ile

 t
h
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 w

a
lls

 a
re

 o
f 
ca

lc
iu

m
 s

ili
ca

te
 b

ri
ck

w
o
rk

;

•
T
h
e
 P

o
st

 O
ffi
 c

e
 B

u
ild

in
g
, 
o
r 
‘G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

A
n
n
e
x’

, 
co

n
st

ru
ct

e
d
 c

.1
9
0
0
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 o

f 

th
e
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
O

ffi
 c

e
s.

 T
h
e
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 e

le
va

ti
o
n
 i
s 

b
u
ilt

 o
f 
st

o
n
e
 a

n
d
 i
s 

o
f 
fo

u
r 

st
o
re

ys
. 

T
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 e

xt
e
n
d
in

g
 e

a
st

 b
e
h
in

d
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

e
r 

is
 b

u
ilt

 o
f 

b
o
th

 r
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

a
lc

iu
m

 s
ili

ca
te

 

b
ri
ck

s 
a
n
d
 i
s 

o
f 

tw
o
 s

to
re

ys
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

w
a
s 

fi 
tt

e
d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 2
0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 t

o
 

se
rv

e
 a

s 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
o
ffi
 c

e
 s

p
a
ce

 t
o
 t

h
e
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
O

ffi
 c

e
s;

•
T
h
e
 s

in
g
le

-s
to

re
y 

S
o
u
th

 R
a
n
g
e
 e

xt
e
n
si

o
n
 b

e
h
in

d
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
1
0
 C

o
u
n
ci

l C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

B
lo

ck
, 

in
co

rp
o
ra

ti
n
g
 c

e
lls

 (
n
o
w

 s
tr

o
n
g
 r

o
o
m

s)
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

Li
b
e
ra

l 
D

e
m

o
cr

a
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

R
o
o
m

. 
T
h
e
 c

e
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 i
s 

a
 p

la
in

 b
ri
ck

 b
u
ild

in
g
, 

w
h
ile

 t
h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 r

o
o
m

 i
s 

a
 

sy
m

p
a
th

e
ti
ca

lly
 d

e
si

g
n
e
d
 m

a
g
n
e
si

a
n
 l
im

e
st

o
n
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
.

4

Page 172



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

S
ig

n
ifi

 c
a
n

ce

O
ve

ra
ll 

th
e
 m

e
d
ie

va
l 
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

is
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 (

i.
e
. 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l)

 s
ig

n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 d
u
e
 t

o
 i
ts

 a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 

h
is

to
ry

, 
g
ra

n
d
 c

iv
ic

 a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
ra

l 
ch

a
ra

ct
e
r 

a
n
d
 r

o
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 c

e
re

m
o
n
ia

l 
lif

e
 

o
f 

Yo
rk

. 
It

 i
s 

a
n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

e
xa

m
p
le

 o
f 

th
e
 E

n
g
lis

h
 m

e
d
ie

va
l 
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
n
d
 c

iv
ic

 b
u
ild

in
g
 

ty
p
e
. 
It

s 
fa

b
ri
c 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n
ve

ys
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y 

e
ve

n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ry
 o

f 
Yo

rk
 –

 t
h
e
 B

a
e
d
e
ke

r 

ra
id

 o
f 

2
9
 A

p
ri
l 
1
9
4
2
. 

E
xt

e
rn

a
lly

 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
1
0
 e

xt
e
n
si

o
n
 i
s 

o
f 

h
ig

h
 s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 d
u
e
 t

o
 i
ts

 

a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
ra

l 
d
e
si

g
n
 a

n
d
 a

ss
o
ci

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 P

e
te

r 
A
tk

in
so

n
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
e
r.
 T

h
e
 1

8
8
9
-1

8
9
1
 

C
o
u
n
ci

l o
ffi
 c

e
s 

a
re

 o
f 
m

e
d
iu

m
 s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
ig

h
 s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 

a
s 

th
e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

d
e
m

o
cr

a
cy

 i
n
 Y

o
rk

. 
It

 a
ls

o
 r

e
ta

in
s 

m
a
n
y 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 

fe
a
tu

re
s.

 T
h
e
 2

0
th

 

ce
n
tu

ry
 a

n
n
e
xe

s 
to

 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 s

o
u
th

 a
re

 d
e
e
m

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 o

f 
re

la
ti
ve

ly
 l
o
w

 s
ig

n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
a
rb

y 
h
u
tm

e
n
ts

 o
f 
n
e
u
tr

a
l 
si

g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

.

A
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 R

iv
e
r 

O
u

se
 i

ll
u

st
ra

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 G

u
il

d
h

a
ll

 w
it

h
 c

u
p

o
la

 a
n

d
 

th
e
 v

is
u

a
l 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

ce
 o

f 
th

e
 F

ri
a
ry

 w
a
ll

 b
y
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
rf

ro
n

t,
 D

ra
k
e
 

1
7

3
6

 (
b

a
se

d
 o

n
 F

ra
n

ci
s 

P
la

ce
 c

.1
7

0
5

)

A
e
ri

e
l 

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 R

iv
e
r 

O
u

se
 a

n
d

 G
u

il
d

h
a
ll

 C
o

m
p

le
x

5Page 173



6

Page 174



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

7Page 175



8

Page 176



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

9Page 177



K
e
y
 V

ie
w

s 
A

n
a
ly

si
s

S
ix

te
e
n
 k

e
y 

vi
e
w

s 
w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

b
e
st

 c
a
p
tu

re
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
n
d
 i

ts
 s

e
tt

in
g
. 

O
f 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
e
st

h
e
ti
c 

va
lu

e
 i

s 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

co
m

p
le

x 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

R
iv

e
r 

O
u
se

. 
T
h
is

 is
 b

o
th

 a
n
 h

is
to

ri
c 

re
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
 a

n
d
 a

n
 im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
e
xp

e
ri
e
n
ce

 f
o
r 

m
o
d
e
rn

 

vi
si

to
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
si

d
e
n
ts

 e
n
jo

yi
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

a
n
d
 i

ts
 b

a
n
ks

. 
It

 i
llu

st
ra

te
s 

th
e
 s

u
cc

e
ss

fu
l 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
re

 a
n
d
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

fo
rm

 a
n
d
 i

s 
a
 k

e
y 

m
e
a
n
s 

o
f 

o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 

th
e
 c

it
y.

 T
h
e
 c

lu
st

e
r 

o
f 

tr
a
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s 

b
e
h
in

d
 a

n
d
 a

d
ja

ce
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
d
d
s 

to
 t

h
e
 t

e
xt

u
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
te

re
st

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
tt

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 a

e
st

h
e
ti
c 

va
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 

a
s 

a
 w

h
o
le

.

K
e
y
 V

ie
w

s 
A

n
a
ly

si
s 

- 
v
ie

w
 p

o
in

t 
1

V
ie

w
 P

o
in

t 
1

 L
o

ca
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

1
0

Page 178



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

Q
u

in
q

u
e
n

n
ia

l 
In

sp
e
ct

io
n

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
7

T
h
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

, 
p
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y 
A
tk

in
s,

 c
o
n
fi 
rm

e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s 

w
e
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 

in
 f

a
ir
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
. 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

sh
o
rt

co
m

in
g
s 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 w
e
re

 

o
b
se

rv
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
, 
th

e
 m

o
st

 s
ig

n
ifi 

ca
n
t 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 h

ig
h
 l
e
ve

l 
ro

o
fs

 a
n
d
 r

a
in

 

w
a
te

r 
g
o
o
d
s.

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s 

a
re

 a
ff
e
ct

e
d
 b

y 
st

ru
ct

u
ra

l 
m

o
ve

m
e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 i

s 
n
o
t 

w
h
o
lly

 

su
rp

ri
si

n
g
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
ir
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
 l

o
ca

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 l

a
rg

e
 fl

 u
ct

u
a
ti
o
n
s 

in
 w

a
te

r 
le

ve
l.
 F

o
u
r 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

m
o
re

 s
p
e
ci

fi 
c 

st
ru

ct
u
ra

l 
co

n
ce

rn
 w

e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 s
p
e
ci

a
lis

t 
co

n
su

lt
a
n
cy

 

a
d
vi

ce
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

fr
o
m

 q
u
a
lifi

 e
d
 a

 s
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l 
e
n
g
in

e
e
r,
 e

xp
e
ri
e
n
ce

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 c

a
re

 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri
c 

b
u
ild

in
g
s.

 

Fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
ve

st
ig

a
ti
o
n
s 

in
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

h
ri
n
ka

g
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
ve

m
e
n
t 

p
a
tt

e
rn

s 
o
f 
th

e
 in

te
rn

a
l t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

e
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

 o
f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

sp
a
ce

 w
e
re

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.

  T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt

 a
d
vi

se
d
 t
h
e
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

 

w
a
s 

g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 s

ta
b
le

, 
b
u
t 

fl 
u
ct

u
a
ti
n
g
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
co

n
d
it
io

n
s,

 s
u
ch

 a
s 

ch
a
n
g
e
s 

in
 

re
la

ti
ve

 h
u
m

id
it
y,

 o
ft

e
n
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 fl

 u
ct

u
a
ti
o
n
s 

in
 t

e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

 a
n
d
 o

cc
u
p
a
n
cy

, 
w

e
re

 

h
a
vi

n
g
 a

 d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
e
ff
e
ct

, 
a
 s

e
ct

io
n
 o

f 
m

o
u
ld

e
d
 t

im
b
e
r 

h
a
d
 d

ri
e
d
 a

n
d
 f

a
lle

n
. 

 A
n
y 

m
a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
ct

 w
o
rk

 s
h
o
u
ld

 s
e
e
k 

to
 a

d
d
re

ss
 t
h
e
se

 c
o
n
ce

rn
s 

th
ro

u
g
h
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
 o

f 
im

p
ro

ve
d
 

th
e
rm

a
l 

e
ffi
 c

ie
n
cy

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

re
d
u
ct

io
n
 i

n
 h

e
a
t 

lo
ss

 a
n
d
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
 h

e
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

ve
n
ti
la

ti
o
n
. 

 I
m

p
ro

vi
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
co

n
d
it
io

n
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
n
efi

 t
 t

h
e
 v

ia
b
le

 u
se

 o
f 

th
e
 s

p
a
ce

. 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
ce

 r
e
g
im

e
s 

sh
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 f

o
r 

va
ca

n
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
s.

  
A
n
y 

co
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
ct

 p
re

se
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 m

a
jo

r 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s.

In
te

ri
o

r 
ti

m
b

e
r 

fr
a
m

e
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 G

u
il

d
 H

a
ll

1
1Page 179



E
q

u
a
li
ty

 I
m

p
a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n

t 
2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 A

cc
e
ss

 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

0
7

T
h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
A
ct

 2
0
1
0
 c

a
m

e
 i

n
to

 f
o
rc

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

st
 O

ct
o
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 

U
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

ct
 t

h
e
re

 

is
 a

n
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
ke

 E
q
u
a
lit

y 
Im

p
a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
ts

 (
E
IA

s)
 a

t 
th

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

st
a
g
e
s 

o
f 
a
n
y 

p
ro

je
ct

.

D
u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

 h
a
s 

th
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 f
e
a
si

b
ili

ty
 o

p
ti
o
n
s 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
:

•
E
lim

in
a
te

 u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

cr
im

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

h
a
ra

ss
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

co
n
d
u
ct

 

p
ro

h
ib

it
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 A

ct

•
A
d
va

n
ce

 e
q
u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 s

h
a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
e
d
 c

h
a
ra

ct
e
ri
st

ic
 

a
n
d
 t

h
o
se

 w
h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t

•
Fo

st
e
r 
g
o
o
d
 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 s

h
a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
e
d
 c

h
a
ra

ct
e
ri
st

ic
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
se

 

w
h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t

E
IA

s 
a
ss

e
ss

 th
e
 im

p
a
ct

 o
f t

h
e
 c
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 a

ct
io

n
s 
o
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 fr
o
m

 th
e
 p

ro
te

ct
e
d
 c
h
a
ra

ct
e
ri
st

ic
s 

id
e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
 in

 th
e
 A

ct
. O

n
e
 o

f t
h
e
 r
e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 fo

r 
th

is
 r
e
p
o
rt

 is
 a

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
ke

n
 a

t 
th

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

st
a
g
e
s 

o
f 
a
n
y 

p
ro

je
ct

.

T
h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s 

R
e
vi

e
w

 2
0
0
7
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
Fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

Lo
ca

l G
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi 
e
s 

Q
u
a
lit

y 
o
f 

Li
fe

 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 
a
ls

o
 
kn

o
w

n
 
a
s 

“t
h
e
 
1
0
 
d
im

e
n
si

o
n
s 

o
f 

e
q
u
a
lit

y”
, 
th

e
 f
e
a
si

b
ili

ty
 s

tu
d
y 

h
a
s 

ta
ke

n
 t

h
e
se

 in
to

 c
o
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 in

 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

a
n
a
ly

si
s 

a
n
d
 d

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
m

p
h
a
si

s 
to

 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 b
e
n
e
fi 
ci

a
l 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
:

•
P
h
ys

ic
a
l 

se
cu

ri
ty

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 
th

e
 
d
e
si

g
n
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

sa
fe

 
p
u
b
lic

 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ts

. 

•
H

e
a
lt
h
, 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 b

o
th

 w
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

cc
e
ss

 t
o
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y 
h
e
a
lt
h
ca

re
. 

•
E
d
u
ca

ti
o
n
, 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
cr

e
a
ti
ve

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

 h
u
b
 t

h
a
t 

ca
n
 

•
su

p
p
o
rt

 c
re

a
ti
ve

 s
ki

lls
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

a
cc

e
ss

 a
n
d
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 

ci
vi

c 
ro

le
 o

f 
d
e
m

o
cr

a
cy

•
S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 o
f 

liv
in

g
, 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 l

iv
e
 w

it
h
 i

n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
ce

 a
n
d
 s

e
cu

ri
ty

; 

cr
e
a
ti
n
g
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 
p
u
b
lic

 s
p
a
ce

s,
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
cc

e
ss

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 

ci
vi

c 
e
ve

n
ts

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 p
la

ce
s 

w
it
h
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 l
in

ks
 t

o
 t

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 a
n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

•
P
ro

d
u
ct

iv
e
 a

n
d
 v

a
lu

e
d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

. 

•
Pa

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o
n
, 

in
fl 
u
e
n
ce

 a
n
d
 v

o
ic

e
, 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i

n
 d

e
ci

si
o
n
-m

a
ki

n
g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
m

o
cr

a
ti
c 

lif
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 i
m

p
ro

ve
d
 a

cc
e
ss

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 
D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 
A
cc

e
ss

 
A
u
d
it
 
R
e
p
o
rt

 
(2

0
0
7
) 

id
e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
 
th

e
 
e
xi

st
in

g
 
a
cc

e
ss

 
p
ro

vi
si

o
n
s 

to
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

co
m

p
le

x 
ra

is
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
t 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

co
n
ce

rn
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s 
to

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 

a
re

a
s 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

sa
fe

ty
 r

e
la

te
d
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 s
u
ch

 a
s 

tr
ip

 h
a
za

rd
s 

a
n
d
 i

n
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
. 

T
h
e
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 

co
n
ta

in
e
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
o
u
ld

 e
n
a
b
le

 a
cc

e
ss

 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 a

n
 a

ss
is

te
d
 b

a
si

s 
a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

ch
ie

va
b
le

. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
h
ys

ic
a
l w

o
rk

s 
p
ro

je
ct

s,
 b

o
th

 s
h
o
rt

 a
n
d
 lo

n
g
 t

e
rm

, 
a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

ro
u
ti
n
e
 w

o
rk

s 
th

a
t 

sh
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

ve
 a

cc
e
ss

 a
n
d
 o

ff
e
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

o
n
 a

 m
o
re

 e
q
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 d

ig
n
ifi 

e
d
 b

a
si

s.

In
 t

h
e
 i

n
te

re
st

s 
o
f 

sa
fe

ty
, 

e
co

n
o
m

y 
a
n
d
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
ce

 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

d
is

ru
p
ti
o
n
 

to
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

it
 p

ru
d
e
n
t 

to
 c

o
n
su

lt
 a

n
y 

fu
tu

re
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

w
o
rk

s 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 A

sb
e
st

o
s 

R
e
g
is

te
r 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 c

a
rr

yi
n
g
 o

u
t 

a
n
y 

w
o
rk

s.

1
2

Page 180



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

T
h
e
 i
ss

u
e
s 

ra
is

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 d
o
cu

m
e
n
t 

sh
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 a

s 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

a
cc

e
ss

 i
ss

u
e
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s 

o
p
e
ra

te
d
 b

y 
Yo

rk
 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
to

 e
n
su

re
 a

 “
re

a
so

n
a
b
le

” 
a
p
p
ro

a
ch

 i
s 

a
p
p
lie

d
. 

W
e
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
co

m
m

e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
co

n
su

lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 lo

ca
l u

se
r 
g
ro

u
p
s,

 in
cl

u
d
in

g
 t
h
o
se

 

w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s 

b
e
 e

n
te

re
d
 in

to
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 c
o
n
fi 
rm

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s 

a
n
d
 g

a
in

 u
se

rs
 in

si
g
h
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 a

cc
e
ss

 i
ss

u
e
s 

id
e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

.

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 

 
to

 
li

g
h

ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 

st
o

n
e
w

o
rk

 
cl

e
a
n

in
g

 

in
 

M
a
n

si
o

n
 

H
o

u
se

 
p

a
ss

a
g

e
 

w
o

u
ld

 
cr

e
a
te

 
a
 

m
o

re
 

w
e
lc

o
m

in
g

, 
a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e
 

a
n

d
 

p
u

b
li

cl
y
 

in
v
it

in
g

 
sp

a
ce

. 

T
h

e
re

 
a
re

 
co

n
ce

rn
s 

 
a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 

g
ra

d
ie

n
t 

a
cr

o
ss

 
th

e
 

si
te

.
1
3Page 181



T
h

e
 G

u
il

d
h

a
ll

 O
ffi

 c
e
 a

cc
e
ss

 a
n

d
 e

n
tr

a
n

ce
 i
n

 v
e
ry

 u
n

sa
ti

sf
a
ct

o
ry

. 

T
h

is
 

co
u

ld
 

b
e
 

d
ra

m
a
ti

ca
ll

y
 

im
p

ro
v
e
d

 
b

y
 

re
p

la
ci

n
g

 
th

e
 

si
n

g
le

 
st

o
re

y
 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 
sh

o
w

n
 

h
e
re

 
w

it
h

 
a
 

n
e
w

 
g

la
z
e
d

 

w
e
lc

o
m

in
g

 
e
n

tr
a
n

ce
 
th

a
t 

a
ls

o
 
re

v
e
a
ls

 
th

e
 
h

is
to

ri
c 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s.

T
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
  

G
u

il
d

h
a
ll

 o
ffi

 c
e
 e

n
tr

y
 i

s 
v
e
ry

 u
n

sa
ti

sf
a
ct

o
ry

 a
n

d
 

n
o

t 
w

o
rt

h
y
 o

f 
su

ch
 a

n
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
C

iv
ic

 b
u

il
d

in
g

. 
 A

cc
e
ss

ib
il

it
y
 i

s 

v
e
ry

  
  

p
o

o
r.

1
4

Page 182



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

1
5

A
cc

e
ss

ib
il

it
y
 i
n

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 H
a
ll

 Y
a
rd

 i
s 

co
n

fu
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a
n

t 
to

 m
o

d
e
rn

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ct

a
ti

o
n

s 
. 
 I

t 
d

o
e
s 

n
o

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
 i
n

 a
 

p
o

si
ti

v
e
 w

a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 l
is

te
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s 

a
n

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 r

e
so

lv
e
 u

n
sa

ti
sf

a
ct

o
ry

 a
cc

e
ss

, 
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
x
 

w
a
y
-fi

 n
d

in
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 w

e
ll

 c
o

n
si

d
e
re

d
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 l

a
n

d
sc

a
p

in
g

 s
ch

e
m

e
. 

 T
h

e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 

o
f 

th
e
 g

a
ra

g
e
s 

m
a
y
 i

n
cr

e
a
se

 s
p

a
ce

 a
n

d
 h

e
lp

 

re
so

lv
e
 t

h
e
se

 i
ss

u
e
s.

Page 183



C
it

y
 O

f 
Y

o
rk

 L
ig

h
t 

P
la

n
 2

0
0

6

T
h
e
 a

im
s 

o
f 

th
e
 l
ig

h
t 

p
la

n
 i
s 

to
 f

o
cu

s 
o
n
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

a
ve

 t
h
e
 g

re
a
te

st
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
e
ff
e
ct

, 
a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 m

e
th

o
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 g

u
id

e
 f

o
r 

th
o
se

 

m
a
ki

n
g
 d

e
ci

si
o
n
s 

a
b
o
u
t 

n
e
w

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
a
t 

ca
n
 b

e
 o

ve
rs

e
e
n
 b

y 
th

e
 C

it
y 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s.

Li
g
h
t 

p
la

n
 e

m
b
o
d
ie

s 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

te
n
d
e
d
 s

o
ci

a
l 
a
n
d
 e

co
n
o
m

ic
 e

ff
e
ct

s.
 O

n
e
 o

ve
r-

ri
d
in

g
 

a
im

 i
s 

to
 e

n
h
a
n
ce

 t
h
e
 a

ft
e
r-

d
a
rk

 a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e
 c

it
y’

s 
e
xt

e
n
si

ve
 a

rc
h
it
e
ct

u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

ss
e
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 m
a
ke

 t
h
e
 c

it
y 

m
o
re

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e
, 

m
o
re

 v
is

u
a
lly

 c
o
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

 

a
n
d
 s

a
fe

r 
a
ft

e
r 

d
a
rk

. 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 n

ig
h
t-

ti
m

e
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e
 c

it
y 

is
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
cr

e
a
se

 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
a
ffl
 u

e
n
t 
e
ve

n
in

g
 v

is
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 h

e
lp

 in
 t
h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ve
n
in

g
 e

co
n
o
m

y 
–
 a

n
d
 

h
o
p
e
fu

lly
, 
co

n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 a

n
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
th

e
 e

ve
n
in

g
 e

co
n
o
m

y.
 H

o
w

e
ve

r,
 

th
e
se

 b
e
n
e
fi 
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 

co
n
fi 
n
e
d
 t

o
 v

is
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 t

o
u
ri
st

s,
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 r

e
si

d
e
n
ts

, 
im

p
ro

ve
d
 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
ce

 c
ri
m

e
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f
e
a
r 

o
f 
cr

im
e
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
m

e
s 

e
m

b
o
d
ie

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

in
cl

u
d
e
: 

•
S
ta

te
-o

f-
th

e
-a

rt
, 
se

n
si

ti
ve

ly
 r

e
a
lis

e
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
ct

u
ra

l l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

 o
f 
ke

y 
h
is

to
ri
c 

b
u
ild

in
g
s 

a
n
d
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

s,
 t

o
 f

a
ci

lit
a
te

 a
 u

n
iq

u
e
 v

is
u
a
l 

e
xp

e
ri
e
n
ce

 o
f 

Yo
rk

’s
 h

is
to

ri
c 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
.

•
Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t,

 r
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
it
y 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 s

a
fe

r,
 m

o
re

 

co
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

 e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 v

is
it
o
rs

 –
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

n
h
a
n
ce

 t
h
e
 o

ve
ra

ll 

p
e
d
e
st

ri
a
n
 a

m
b
ie

n
ce

 a
n
d
 n

a
vi

g
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y.

 

•
Li

g
h
ti
n
g
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 u
se

d
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 n
e
w

, c
o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 n

ig
h
t-

ti
m

e
 e

ve
n
ts

 o
r 
e
xp

e
ri
e
n
ce

s,
 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 ‘
lig

h
ti
n
g
 w

a
lk

’, 
in

te
ra

ct
iv

e
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 i
n
st

a
lla

ti
o
n
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

o
n
 e

t 

lu
m

ie
re

.

T
h
e
 L

ig
h
t 
P
la

n
 s

p
e
ci

fi 
ca

lly
 id

e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

p
re

se
n
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 R

iv
e
r 
O

u
se

 p
a
ss

in
g
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

it
y,

 c
re

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
 e

xt
ra

o
rd

in
a
ri
ly

 o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
ce

 a
m

id
st

 t
h
e
 c

it
y’

s 
fa

m
o
u
s 

n
a
rr

o
w

 

st
re

e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

in
 t

h
a
t 

it
s 

o
p
e
n
n
e
ss

 a
llo

w
s 

lo
n
g
 v

ie
w

s 
o
f 

lit
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

s 

a
n
d
 f
a
ca

d
e
s,

 w
h
ile

 i
ts

 m
o
re

 n
e
u
tr

a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
ra

l 
ch

a
ra

ct
e
r 
a
llo

w
s 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 g
re

a
te

r 

fr
e
e
d
o
m

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 
in

n
o
va

ti
ve

 i
n
st

a
lla

ti
o
n
 l

ig
h
ti
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
 l

ig
h
ti
n
g
 

o
f 

th
e
 b

ri
d
g
e
s 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

o
u
n
te

r-
b
a
la

n
ce

d
 b

y 
th

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
ct

io
n
 o

f 
se

ve
ra

l 

in
st

a
lla

ti
o
n
 p

ie
ce

s,
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 s

ym
p
a
th

e
ti
c 

a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
ra

l l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 o

f t
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll.

 

T
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 

a
re

 t
h
e
 s

p
a
ce

s 
a
n
d
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s 

o
f 

th
e
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
, 

a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

th
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 

sp
a
ce

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
n
e
ct

in
g
 p

a
ss

a
g
e
s 

a
n
d
 r

o
u
te

s 
a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

 

T
h

e
 R

iv
e
r 

O
u

se
 a

t 
n

ig
h

t 
- 

C
it

y
 o

f 
Y

o
rk

 P
la

n
 2

0
0

6

1
6

Page 184



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

T
h

e
 R

iv
e
r 

O
u

se
 a

n
d

 G
u

il
d

h
a
ll

 c
o

m
p

le
x
 a

t 
n

ig
h

t,
 C

it
y
 o

f 
Y

o
rk

 l
ig

h
t 

p
la

n
 2

0
0

6
.

1
7Page 185



O
p

ti
o

n
s 

A
p

p
ra

is
a
l

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 D

e
si

g
n

a
ti

o
n

s

T
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
n
d
 w

id
e
r 

st
u
d
y 

a
re

a
 f

a
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c 

co
re

 o
f 

ce
n
tr

a
l 

Yo
rk

 a
n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 Y

o
rk

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 

H
is

to
ri
c 

C
o
re

 C
o
n
se

rv
a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 

th
e
 C

it
y 

o
f 

Yo
rk

 A
re

a
 o

f 

A
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
Im

p
o
rt

a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
S
h
o
p
p
in

g
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

ct
e
r 

A
re

a
 a

s 
d
efi

 n
e
d
 b

y 

th
e
 Y

o
rk

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 

H
is

to
ri
c 

C
o
re

 C
o
n
se

rv
a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 A

p
p
ra

is
a
l.
 F

u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

tu
d
y 

A
re

a
, 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

e
d
ie

va
l 
G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
n
d
 

so
m

e
 o

f 
it
s 

e
xt

e
n
si

o
n
s,

 a
s 

ill
u
st

ra
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 d

e
si

g
n
a
ti
o
n
s 

p
la

n
 b

e
lo

w
. 
T
h
e
se

 d
e
si

g
n
a
ti
o
n
s 

re
fl 
e
ct

 t
h
e
 a

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l s

e
n
si

ti
vi

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
ilt

 h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
o
se

 c
o
n
st

ra
in

ts
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
e
n
su

ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
y 

ch
a
n
g
e
 i
s 

ca
re

fu
lly

 c
o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 
to

 
p
ro

te
ct

 
w

h
e
re

ve
r 

p
o
ss

ib
le

 
th

e
 
a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
ra

l,
 
a
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

a
n
d
 
h
is

to
ri
c 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 (
th

e
 e

vi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 v

a
lu

e
s)

, 
th

e
 v

ie
w

s 
o
f 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
s 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

a
e
st

h
e
ti
c 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
. 

 C
o
n
st

ra
in

ts
 t

h
a
t 

su
ch

 d
e
si

g
n
a
ti
o
n
s 

im
p
o
se

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 

to
 i
n
cl

u
d
e
:

•
R
e
m

o
va

l 
o
r 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri
c 

fa
b
ri
c,

 e
sp

e
ci

a
lly

 o
n
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s.

 

•
N

e
w

 d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
se

 s
ca

le
, m

a
ss

in
g
, m

a
te

ri
a
ls

, h
e
ig

h
t 
e
tc

 w
o
u
ld

 h
a
ve

 a
 n

e
g
a
ti
ve

 

im
p
a
ct

 u
p
o
n
 t

h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 u

rb
a
n
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

iv
e
rs

ca
p
e
.

•
D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

w
h
e
re

 f
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 

w
o
u
ld

 d
e
st

ro
y 

o
r 

re
m

o
ve

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 s
ig

n
ifi 

ca
n
t 

a
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
d
e
p
o
si

ts
.

T
h
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 h

is
to

ri
ca

l 
a
n
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
ct

u
ra

l 
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 i

s 

se
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

S
ig

n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 
e
a
ch

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 t

h
e
m

a
ti
c 

ca
te

g
o
ri
e
s 

fo
r 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 
e
vi

d
e
n
ti
a
l,
 h

is
to

ri
c,

 c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l,
 a

n
d
 a

e
st

h
e
ti
c,

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

o
w

n
sc

a
p
e
, 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

ss
ig

n
e
d
 a

 v
a
lu

e
. 
 O

ve
ra

ll,
 t
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

is
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 
th

e
 A

tk
in

so
n
 c

.1
8
1
0
 

e
xt

e
n
si

o
n
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 e
xt

e
rn

a
lly

, 
th

e
 1

8
8
8
-1

8
9
1
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
o
ffi
 c

e
s 

o
f 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

S
ig

n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l C
h
a
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
H

ig
h
 S

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 
th

e
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 A

n
n
e
xe

s 
o
f 
Lo

w
 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 ‘h

u
tm

e
n
ts

’ o
f 
n
e
u
tr

a
l S

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

. 
 T

h
e
se

 a
llo

ca
ti
o
n
s 

o
f 
si

g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 

h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 in

fo
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 e

va
lu

a
ti
n
g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s 

a
n
d
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 

h
a
s 

b
e
g
u
n
 w

it
h
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
xi

st
in

g
a
n
d
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 s

tu
d
ie

s 
a
n
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

th
a
t 

a
re

 t
h
e
re

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 g
u
id

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 

st
u
d
y 

a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a
t 

re
le

va
n
t 

co
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

fo
r 

ke
y 

p
o
lic

y 
is

su
e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
ili

ty
, 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
su

st
a
in

a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
co

n
se

rv
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 a

ss
e
t 

e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
 i

n
to

 t
h
e
 t

h
in

ki
n
g
. 

 S
it
e
 v

is
it
s 

a
n
d
 i

n
ve

st
ig

a
ti
o
n
s 

w
e
re

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 g

a
in

 fi
 r

st
 

h
a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
ss

u
e
s 

a
n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s,
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 s

p
a
ti
a
l 

ch
a
ra

ct
e
ri
st

ic
s.

  
A
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l u

se
s 

h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 a

ss
e
ss

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

sy
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c 

re
u
se

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s 

th
a
t 

cr
e
a
te

s 
a
 s

yn
e
rg

y 
o
f 

co
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 

ca
n
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
. 

 

T
h
e
 s

tu
d
y 

h
a
s 

lo
o
ke

d
 w

id
e
ly

 a
t 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
u
rb

a
n
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l 
sp

a
ce

s,
 b

ro
a
d
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s 

fo
r 

th
e
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a
cc

e
ss

, 
p
re

se
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
a
ce

s 
a
re

 m
a
d
e
. 
 A

 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

m
o
re

 a
m

b
it
io

u
s 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

si
te

 c
o
n
te

xt
, 
a
n
d
 

id
e
a
s 

fo
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
ri
ve

rs
id

e
 a

cc
e
ss

 a
n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 s
p
a
ce

 d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
.

T
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l i

s 
fo

rm
a
tt

e
d
 s

o
 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l u

se
 a

re
 d

is
cu

ss
e
d
, 

fo
llo

w
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
sa

ls
 f
o
r 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

si
te

 c
o
n
te

xt
.

1
8

Page 186



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
 O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

!
"
#$%
&
'
$$(
)
#*
+
(,
(-
+
.#
*'
/
+

!
"
#$
%
&
'
$
$
()
*
"
%
+
('
,
-
'

!
,
'
%
-
(#
($
#)
*
-
%
(.
"
#$
%
#/
!
)

!
,
'
%
-
(#
#0
($
#)
*
-
%
(.
"
#$
%
#/
!
)

!
,
'
%
-
(#
#(
$
#)
*
-
%
(.
"
#$
%
#/
!
)

1
9Page 187



O
p

ti
o

n
s 

A
p

p
ra

is
a
l

T
h
e
 O

p
ti
o
n
s 

A
p
p
ra

is
a
l 

h
a
s 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 u
se

s 
o
f 

th
e
 

G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

b
u
ild

in
g
s 

co
m

p
le

x 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
te

xt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 
ke

y 

vi
e
w

s 
a
n
a
ly

si
s 

a
n
d
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
ili

ty
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

sp
a
ti
a
l 
ch

a
ra

ct
e
ri
st

ic
s 

o
f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s.

  

T
h
e

fi 
ft

e
e
n
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

u
se

 a
s 

a
 la

rg
e
 c

it
y 

ce
n
tr

e
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l,
 s

o
ci

a
l a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

e
ve

n
ts

 s
p
a
ce

 c
a
n
 b

e
 s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
tl
y 

e
n
h
a
n
ce

d
 th

ro
u
g
h
 th

e
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
 o

f i
m

p
ro

ve
d
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
ili

ty
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
ci

lla
ry

 a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
ch

 a
 l

a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 t
o
ile

ts
 a

n
d
 a

 

co
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
ki

tc
h
e
n
. 

 T
h
is

 a
n
ci

lla
ry

 a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
o
ca

te
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

o
d
e
lle

d
 

h
is

to
ri
ca

lly
 le

ss
 s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
t 

so
u
th

e
a
st

 r
a
n
g
e
. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
la

rg
e
 e

ve
n
ts

 s
p
a
ce

 a
n
d
 

sm
a
lle

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
, 

co
n
fe

re
n
ce

 a
n
d
 e

xh
ib

it
io

n
 r

o
o
m

s 
to

 t
h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

n
ci

lla
ry

 

a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
is

 s
p
a
ce

 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 u
se

a
b
le

 a
n
d
 fi
 n

a
n
ci

a
lly

 v
ia

b
le

 a
s 

a
 

m
a
jo

r 
ci

ty
 c

e
n
tr

e
 e

ve
n
ts

 v
e
n
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
st

 q
u
a
lit

y.
  

T
h
e
 n

in
e
te

e
n
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

O
ffi
 c

e
s 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
ci

l C
h
a
m

b
e
r 
a
re

 d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

fu
n
ct

io
n
s;

 t
h
e
se

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 h

is
to

ri
c 

ch
a
ra

ct
e
r 

a
n
d
 f

a
b
ri
c 

is
 c

o
n
se

rv
e
d
, 

b
u
t 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
ili

ty
 i

m
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

in
se

rt
io

n
 o

f 
a
 p

u
b
lic

 l
if
t.

  
T
h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ce

 a
n
d
 r

e
ce

p
ti
o
n
 s

p
a
ce

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

n
h
a
n
ce

d
 a

n
d
 

a
n
ci

lla
ry

 o
ffi
 c

e
s 

re
ta

in
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l’s
 u

se
 i

n
 a

ss
o
ci

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

iv
ic

 d
u
ti
e
s 

a
n
d
 

e
ve

n
ts

. 

T
h
e
 t

w
e
n
ti
e
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

A
n
n
e
xe

 a
n
d
 H

u
tm

e
n
ts

 d
e
tr

a
ct

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c 

se
tt

in
g
 

a
n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s.

  
It

 i
s 

p
ro

p
o
se

d
 t

h
e
se

 s
it
e
s 

a
re

 r
e
d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 a
 v

ir
tu

a
l 
o
ffi
 c

e
 a

n
d
 

cr
e
a
ti
ve

 
b
u
si

n
e
ss

 
h
u
b
; 

th
is

 
w

o
u
ld

 
in

cl
u
d
e
, 

a
 
sh

a
re

d
 
re

ce
p
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
te

n
a
n
t 

lo
u
n
g
e
, 

co
n
fe

re
n
ce

 a
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 s

p
a
ce

s,
 a

 d
is

p
la

y 
g
a
lle

ry
, 

a
n
d
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

te
n
a
n
te

d
 o

ffi
 c

e
 

in
cu

b
a
to

r 
u
n
it
s.

  T
h
e
 a

n
n
e
xe

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 a

s 
a
 t
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y 
b
u
ild

in
g
, 
th

e
 h

u
tm

e
n
ts

 

co
u
ld

 b
e
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y 
w

it
h
 g

la
ze

d
 a

tr
iu

m
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
. 

 T
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 2

0
0
0
m

2
 

o
f 
n
e
w

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

 a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

si
s 

h
a
s 

a
ls

o
 in

ve
st

ig
a
te

d
 h

o
w

 c
o
n
n
e
ct

io
n
s 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
’s

 S
q
u
a
re

, 
M

a
n
si

o
n
 

H
o
u
se

 S
q
u
a
re

, 
th

e
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
, 

Yo
rk

 B
o
a
ty

a
rd

 a
n
d
 L

e
n
d
a
l 

co
u
ld

 b
e
 l

in
ke

d
 a

n
d
 m

a
d
e
 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

. 
 T

h
e
 s

tu
d
y 

h
a
s 

su
g
g
e
st

e
d
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y 

b
e
 a

 v
e
ry

 e
xc

it
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 a

cc
e
ss

 

fr
o
m

 L
e
n
d
a
l 

B
ri
d
g
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

g
a
rd

e
n
 s

p
a
ce

 a
 n

e
w

 s
ta

ir
 a

n
d
 l

if
t 

th
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 

d
e
sc

e
n
d
 t
o
 a

 r
a
is

e
d
 r
iv

e
rs

id
e
 t
e
rr

a
ce

 o
ve

r 
th

e
 p

re
se

n
t 
b
o
a
ty

a
rd

. 
 T

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 

fr
o
m

 Y
o
rk

 H
o
u
se

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s 

a
s 

a
 s

m
a
ll 

co
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
re

a
. 

 A
cc

e
ss

 t
o
 

a
 p

o
n
to

o
n
 l

a
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
a
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

ch
ie

ve
d
. 

 T
h
is

 r
a
is

e
d
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
 t

e
rr

a
ce

 

co
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
n
e
ct

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 F

ri
a
ry

 G
a
rd

e
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
n
 c

o
u
ld

 p
ro

vi
d
e
 l
e
ve

l 
ra

m
p
e
d
 a

cc
e
ss

 

d
o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
rs

id
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
tr

y 
to

 C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 l
in

k 
to

 M
a
n
si

o
n
 H

o
u
se

 

S
q
u
a
re

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
. 

 M
a
n
si

o
n
 H

o
u
se

 S
q
u
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s 

to
 b

e
 d

e
si

g
n
e
d
 a

s 
a
 c

re
a
ti
ve

 a
n
d
 

in
te

lli
g
e
n
t 

p
ie

ce
 o

f 
h
a
rd

 l
a
n
d
sc

a
p
in

g
, 

lin
ki

n
g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s 

ro
u
te

s 
a
n
d
 a

cc
e
ss

e
s 

th
a
t 

fe
e
d
 o

f 
it
.

2
0

Page 188



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
 O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

(G
/G

/2
2)

G
U

IL
D

 H
A

LL
39

6.
06

2m
²

N
O

 A
C

C
E

S
S

IN
S

ID
E

 S
A

F
E

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N
(S

C
A

LE
 1

:1
00

)

(G
/G

/3
5)

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
21

.4
75

m
²

(G
/G

/3
4)

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
10

.5
78

m
²

(G
/G

/3
1)

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
13

.0
05

m
²

(G
/G

/3
2)

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
38

.5
70

m
²

(G
/G

/3
9)

O
F

F
IC

E
38

.7
87

m
²

(G
/G

/3
3)

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
13

.5
48

m
²

(G
/G

/2
3)

M
E

E
T

IN
G

 R
O

O
M

48
.2

34
m

²

(G
/G

/2
5)

M
E

E
T

IN
G

 R
O

O
M

58
.5

33
m

²

(G
/G

/1
2)

M
E

E
T

IN
G

 R
O

O
M

23
.1

46
m

²

(G
/G

/1
8)

M
E

E
T

IN
G

 R
O

O
M

25
.1

93
m

²
(G

A
/B

/1
1)

T
O

IL
E

T
15

.0
25

m
²

(G
/G

/1
5)

O
F

F
IC

E
9.

51
6m

²

(G
/G

/5
)

O
F

F
IC

E
49

.2
43

m
²

(G
/G

/4
)

O
F

F
IC

E
30

.6
53

m
²

(G
/G

/6
)

O
F

F
IC

E
28

.1
04

m
²

(G
/G

/9
)

O
F

F
IC

E
35

.0
75

m
²

(G
/G

/1
0)

O
F

F
IC

E
30

.2
76

m
²

(G
/G

/1
4)

O
F

F
IC

E
16

.4
14

m
²

UP

(G
A

/B
/2

)
O

F
F

IC
E

(G
A

/B
/7

)
O

F
F

IC
E

(G
A

/B
/8

)
O

F
F

IC
E

(G
A

/B
/4

)

K
IT

C
H

E
N

W
C

S
T

O
R

A
G

E
8.

19
3m

²

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
33

.7
79

m
²

R
E

C
E

P
T

IO
N

72
.3

88
m

²

O
F

F
IC

E

W
C

4.
58

6m
²

P
R

IN
T

 R
O

O
M

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

O
F

F
IC

E

C
IR

C
U

LA
T

IO
N

11
.1

68
m

²

C
IR

C
U

LA
T

IO
N

20
.4

35
m

²
W

C
3.

10
6m

²

C
IR

C
U

LA
T

IO
N

19
.3

71
m

²

G
R

O
U

N
D

F
LO

O
R

P
LA

N

K
E

Y
 P

L
A

N
(S

C
A

LE
 1

:7
50

)

2
1Page 189



G
u

il
d

h
a
ll

T
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

is
 a

 b
u
ild

in
g
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 
it
s 

in
te

ri
o
r 

is
 r

e
m

a
rk

a
b
le

, 
a
n
d
 d

e
sp

it
e
 

th
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
si

d
e
ra

b
le

 p
o
st

-w
a
r 

re
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 i

t 
re

ta
in

s 
h
ig

h
 e

vi
d
e
n
ti
a
l,
 h

is
to

ri
ca

l,
 

cu
lt
u
ra

l 
a
n
d
 a

e
st

h
e
ti
c 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 
it
 h

a
s 

lit
tl
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

su
b
d
iv

is
io

n
, 

o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 i

n
 

re
fo

rm
in

g
 h

is
to

ri
c 

p
a
rt

it
io

n
 l

in
e
s 

th
a
t 

m
a
y 

h
e
lp

 i
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 i

s 
fo

rm
e
r 

u
se

 a
n
d
 

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t.

  
T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i

s 
cu

rr
e
n
tl
y 

u
se

d
 f

o
r 

a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
ve

n
ts

, 
fr

o
m

 c
iv

ic
 

re
ce

p
ti
o
n
s 

to
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
ce

s 
a
n
d
 l
e
ct

u
re

s,
 e

xh
ib

it
io

n
s 

a
n
d
 s

m
a
ll 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

 t
ra

d
in

g
 e

ve
n
ts

. 

It
 i
s 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
lly

 a
d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 M

a
n
si

o
n
 H

o
u
se

. 
 T

h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
b
ri
ck

 b
u
ild

in
g
s 

to
 

th
e
 e

a
st

 o
f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
re

 o
f 
le

ss
e
r 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 a
n
d
 h

a
ve

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

is
 a

 b
u
ild

in
g
 o

f 
g
re

a
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l,
 t

h
e
 s

u
cc

e
ss

 o
f 

it
s 

p
re

se
n
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

a
re

 

h
u
g
e
ly

 c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d
 b

y 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

is
su

e
s,

 s
u
ch

 a
s 

th
e
 l
a
ck

 o
f 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 

e
xt

e
rn

a
l a

cc
e
ss

; 
lim

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 in

a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 t
o
ile

t 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s;

 n
o
 c

a
te

ri
n
g
 f
a
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
h
o
st

in
g
 

la
rg

e
 e

ve
n
ts

; 
p
o
o
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

st
o
ra

g
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

p
a
ce

. 
 T

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

ls
o
 

su
ff
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 p

o
o
r 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
co

n
d
it
io

n
s;

 i
t 

is
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 p

o
o
rl
y 

in
su

la
te

d
 v

o
lu

m
e
 t

h
a
t 

u
n
d
e
rg

o
e
s 

ra
p
id

 h
e
a
t 

lo
ss

.

T
h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
 i
s 

to
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
s 

a
 l
a
rg

e
 m

u
lt
i-

p
u
rp

o
se

 e
ve

n
ts

 s
p
a
ce

, 

in
cr

e
a
si

n
g
 i
t 

vi
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b
le

 u
se

 b
y 

th
e
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
st

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
n
ci

lla
ry

 

a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, i

n
cl

u
d
in

g
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 t
o
ile

ts
 t
o
 a

cc
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 la
rg

e
 g

a
th

e
ri
n
g
s,

 a
 c

a
te

ri
n
g
 

ki
tc

h
e
n
 a

n
d
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r

o
o
m

s.

T
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

o
n
e
 b

y 
fo

rm
in

g
 a

 g
la

ze
d
 r

o
o
f 

a
tr

iu
m

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

e
a
st

 w
a
ll,

 

b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 s
ill

 l
e
ve

l,
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

n
ci

lla
ry

 e
a
st

 r
a
n
g
e
. 

 A
cc

e
ss

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 

sp
a
ce

s 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

e
a
st

 w
a
ll 

n
o
rt

h
 

b
a
y.

  
T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 l
o
ss

 o
f 

fa
b
ri
c,

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 s

im
ila

rl
y 

to
 

th
e
 c

o
rr

e
sp

o
n
d
in

g
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
st

 w
a
ll.

  
T
h
e
re

 a
re

 h
is

to
ri
c 

a
cc

o
u
n
ts

 o
f 

a
 d

o
o
r 

to
 a

 

b
u
tt

e
ry

 a
t 

th
is

 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
, 

b
u
t 

lit
tl
e
 v

is
ib

le
 e

vi
d
e
n
ce

. 
 A

n
 a

cc
e
ss

 a
t 

th
is

 p
o
in

t 
w

o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 

a
 l
e
ve

l 
a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 r
o
u
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 t

o
ile

ts
 a

n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r

o
o
m

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

sp
a
ce

, 
a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
 c

o
n
n
e
ct

io
n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 c

a
te

ri
n
g
 k

it
ch

e
n
 in

to
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll.

  
T
h
e
 

n
o
rt

h
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 a

tr
iu

m
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
ve

 a
n
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l d

o
o
r 

th
a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l 

a
cc

e
ss

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 a

tr
iu

m
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r

o
o
m

s 
a
t 

th
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 
th

e
 

G
u
ild

h
a
ll.

H
is

to
ri
ca

lly
 t

h
e
re

 G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

h
a
d
 a

 n
o
rt

h
 e

n
d
 m

in
st

re
ls

 g
a
lle

ry
 a

n
d
 l
ik

e
ly

 p
a
rt

it
io

n
 s

cr
e
e
n
 

b
e
lo

w
. 

 I
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 t

h
is

 f
e
a
tu

re
 b

e
 r

e
-c

o
n
st

ru
ct

e
d
. 

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 

sm
a
ll 

a
n
d
 u

n
w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 p

o
rc

h
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
p
la

ce
d
 w

it
h
 a

 la
rg

e
r 

m
o
re

 w
e
lc

o
m

in
g
 e

n
tr

a
n
ce

 

ve
st

ib
u
le

, 
to

 t
h
e
 w

e
st

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 d
e
si

g
n
a
te

d
 s

to
ra

g
e
 r

o
o
m

. 
 T

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
st

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

h
e
 

lo
b
b
y 

to
 t

h
e
 a

tr
iu

m
 a

n
d
 a

b
o
ve

 a
 v

ie
w

in
g
 g

a
lle

ry
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

p
a
ce

.

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

u
il
d

h
a
ll
 i
n

cl
u

d
e
:

•
A
d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
1
5
0
m

m
 r

ig
id

 f
o
a
m

 i
n
su

la
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
ve

 t
h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 r

o
o
f 
d
e
ck

in
g
, 

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
w

a
rm

 r
o
o
f 
ve

n
ti
la

ti
o
n
 v

o
id

 a
n
d
 r

e
-l

e
a
d
in

g
. 
 A

b
u
tm

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 g

u
tt

e
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 

b
e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 t

o
 a

vo
id

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ch

a
si

n
g
 o

f 
w

e
a
th

e
ri
n
g
 i
n
to

 m
a
so

n
ry

.

•
P
ro

vi
si

o
n
 o

f 
sl

im
-l

in
e
 d

o
u
b
le

 o
r 

se
co

n
d
a
ry

 g
la

zi
n
g
 u

n
it
s 

in
 m

in
im

a
l b

ro
n
ze

 f
ra

m
e
s 

se
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 v

e
rt

ic
a
l 
m

u
lli

o
n
s 

2
5
 m

m
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 1

9
5
0
’s

 g
la

zi
n
g
, 

te
rm

in
a
te

d
 

a
t 

th
e
 h

e
a
d
 a

t 
th

e
 h

ig
h
 l
e
ve

l 
fe

rr
a
m

e
n
ta

 b
a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 s
ig

n
ifi 

ca
n
tl
y 

re
d
u
ce

 h
e
a
t 

lo
ss

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

p
a
ce

. 
 (

A
 t

ri
a
l 
co

u
ld

 b
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 a

ss
e
ss

 v
is

u
a
l 
im

p
a
ct

).

•
C
o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

re
p
la

ce
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i

m
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

u
n
d
e
rfl

 o
o
r 

h
e
a
ti
n
g
 s

ys
te

m
. 

 A
 s

p
e
ci

a
lis

t 
h
is

to
ri
c 

b
u
ild

in
g
s 

h
e
a
ti
n
g
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r 

sh
o
u
ld

 e
va

lu
a
te

 

th
is

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h

•
C
o
n
si

d
e
r 

u
se

 o
r 

re
n
e
w

a
b
le

 e
n
e
rg

y 
su

ch
 a

s 
p
h
o
to

vo
lt
a
ic

 c
e
lls

 o
n
 t

h
e
 r

o
o
f.
  
 

T
h
e
se

 p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 w

o
u
ld

 c
re

a
te

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l f

o
r 

th
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

to
 b

e
 a

 h
ig

h
ly

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e
 a

n
d
 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 c

iv
ic

 e
ve

n
ts

 v
e
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 a

n
ci

lla
ry

 a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 h

ig
h
 

m
o
d
e
rn

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 h

is
to

ri
c 

ci
ty

. 
 T

h
e
 im

p
a
ct

 o
f 
th

e
 in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s 

to
 

a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
sa

l 
a
re

 m
in

im
a
l 
a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 o
n
 b

a
la

n
ce

 b
e
 b

e
n
efi

 c
ia

l 
to

 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 

u
se

 a
n
d
 fi
 n

a
n
ci

a
l 
vi

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll.

2
2

Page 190



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

2
3Page 191



2
4

G
u

il
d

h
a
ll

 s
p

a
ce

, 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
d

 f
o

r 
a
 c

o
n

ce
rt

 w
it

h
 1

0
0

 g
u

e
st

s.
A

cc
e
ss

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

u
il

d
h

a
ll

 w
il

l 
b

e
 a

 n
e
ce

ss
a
ry

 p
a
rt

 

o
f 

a
n

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 s

p
a
ce

s 
(c

u
rr

e
n

t 
n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

li
a
n

t 
ra

m
p

Page 192



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

2
5

T
h

e
 E

a
st

 r
a
n

g
e
 a

n
d

 y
a
rd

 o
ff

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 a
 g

la
z
e
d

 a
tr

iu
m

 s
p

a
ce

 -
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 a

cc
e
ss

 t
o

 t
o

il
e
ts

 a
n

d
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

 

ro
o

m
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e
 G

u
il

d
h

a
ll

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
o

n
 H

a
ll

 Y
a
rd

.

Page 193



T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

s 
w

o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 M

a
n
si

o
n
 H

o
u
se

 c
o
m

p
le

x;
 o

r 
it
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 o
p
e
ra

te
d
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

s 
a
 v

e
n
u
e
 i
n
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 r

ig
h
t.

  

G
u

il
d

h
a
ll
 O

ffi
 c

e
s 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

ro
ce

ss
io

n
a
l 

st
a
ir
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

O
ffi
 c

e
s 

a
re

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 h
a
ve

 o
n
ly

, 
lim

it
e
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
ch

a
n
g
e
. 

 A
n
y 

u
se

 o
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

a
s 

a
 c

o
u
n
ci

l 
ch

a
m

b
e
r 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 s

u
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
si

g
n
e
d
 j

o
in

e
ry

. 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 o

th
e
r 

ro
o
m

s 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
ve

 i
n
te

re
st

in
g
 f

e
a
tu

re
s 

a
n
d
 a

re
 o

f 

m
e
d
iu

m
 s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

.

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
is

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 a

cc
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 c

iv
ic

 d
u
ti
e
s 

a
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l.
  
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

o
 t

h
is

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 v

e
ry

 c
o
n
ce

rn
in

g
 

lim
it
a
ti
o
n
s 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

ss
e
d
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e
 l
a
ck

 o
f 

a
cc

e
p
ta

b
le

 m
e
a
n
s 

o
f 
a
cc

e
ss

, 
a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

te
ch

n
ic

a
l i

m
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 it

s 
e
ffi
 c

ie
n
t 

u
se

.

T
h
e
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s 

cr
e
a
te

s 
a
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
n
ci

lla
ry

 

su
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

cc
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
is

 i
n
cl

u
d
e
s 

o
n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 fl

 o
o
r 

a
 p

u
b
lic

ly
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 

w
e
lc

o
m

in
g
 r

e
ce

p
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 w

it
h
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
ve

 o
ffi
 c

e
. 

 T
h
is

 r
e
ce

p
ti
o
n
 s

p
a
ce

 

co
u
ld

 b
e
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

a
 l

a
rg

e
r 

se
a
ti
n
g
 i

s 
cr

e
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 r

iv
e
rf

ro
n
t 

vi
e
w

s.
  

Fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 

re
ce

p
ti
o
n
 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 a

 n
e
w

 l
a
rg

e
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 

p
a
ss

e
n
g
e
r 

lif
t 

b
e
 i
n
st

a
lle

d
, 

th
a
t 

co
n
n
e
ct

s 
ve

rt
ic

a
lly

 a
ll 

fl 
o
o
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
.

T
h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

o
ffi
 c

e
 a

n
d
 v

e
st

ry
 b

ri
efi

 n
g
 s

p
a
ce

 a
d
jo

in
in

g
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
m

b
e
r 
w

o
u
ld

 w
it
h
 r
o
o
f 
te

rr
a
ce

 

a
cc

e
ss

, 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 

co
u
n
ci

l 
u
se

.

T
h
e
 a

n
ci

lla
ry

 a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
 f
o
u
r 
se

p
a
ra

te
 ‘p

o
lit

ic
a
l p

a
rt

y’
 

b
ri
e
fi 
n
g
 r

o
o
m

s 
a
n
d
 o

ffi
 c

e
s.

  
R
o
o
m

s 
fo

r 
Pa

rt
 b

ri
efi

 n
g
s 

co
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 

b
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 h
u
b
 i
n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 fl
 o

o
r 

o
f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

O
ffi
 c

e
s.

  

It
 i

s 
p
ro

p
o
se

d
 t

h
a
t 

to
ile

t 
a
n
d
 v

e
rt

ic
a
l 

ci
rc

u
la

ti
o
n
 a

cc
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b

y 
sh

a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
se

d
 r

e
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

A
n
n
e
xe

, 
e
co

n
o
m

is
in

g
 o

n
 s

p
a
ce

 a
n
d
 a

llo
w

in
g
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 s

iz
e
d
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n

G
u

il
d

h
a
ll
 A

n
n

e
x
e
 a

n
d

 H
u

tm
e
n

ts

T
h
e
 t

w
e
n
ti
e
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

A
n
n
e
xe

 a
re

 d
e
si

g
n
a
te

d
 a

s 
o
n
ly

 s
o
m

e
 s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 H

u
tm

e
n
ts

 o
f 
n
e
u
tr

a
l s

ig
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

; 
b
o
th

 s
it
e
s 

h
a
ve

 a
 h

ig
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l f

o
r 

co
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 

ch
a
n
g
e
 i

n
 s

u
ch

 a
 w

a
y 

th
a
t 

b
ri
n
g
s 

b
e
n
efi

 c
ia

l 
u
se

 a
n
d
 i

s 
m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

lly
 s

ym
p
a
th

e
ti
c 

to
 

th
e
 h

is
to

ri
c 

se
tt

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
. 

 T
h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
n
e
xe

 b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s 

o
f 

m
e
d
iu

m
 

si
g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

 w
it
h
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 t
o
 a

e
st

h
e
ti
c 

to
w

n
sc

a
p
e
 v

a
lu

e
s 

a
n
d
 k

e
y 

vi
e
w

s 
o
f 

th
e
 r

iv
e
r,
 t

h
is

 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
.

T
h
e
 s

it
e
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

s 
w

ill
 i
n
 p

la
ce

s 
b
e
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 e

vi
d
e
n
ti
a
l 
si

g
n
ifi 

ca
n
ce

, 

b
e
in

g
 a

 f
o
rm

e
r 

Fr
ia

ry
. 

  
 

It
 i

s 
p
ro

p
o
se

d
 t

h
e
se

 t
w

o
 s

it
e
s 

a
re

 r
e
d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 a
 v

ir
tu

a
l 

o
ffi
 c

e
 a

n
d
 c

re
a
ti
ve

 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

 h
u
b
; 

th
is

 w
o
u
ld

 i
n
cl

u
d
e
, 

a
 s

h
a
re

d
 r

e
ce

p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

e
n
a
n
t 

lo
u
n
g
e
, 

co
n
fe

re
n
ce

 

a
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 s

p
a
ce

s 
th

a
t 

co
u
ld

 b
e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

h
ir
e
, 

a
 d

is
p
la

y 
g
a
lle

ry
, 

a
n
d
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

te
n
a
n
te

d
 o

ffi
 c

e
 in

cu
b
a
to

r 
u
n
it
s.

  
T
h
e
 a

n
n
e
xe

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 a

s 
a
 t
h
re

e
 o

r 
p
o
ss

ib
ly

 a
 

fo
u
r 

st
o
re

y 
b
u
ild

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

0
0
0
-1

3
0
0
 s

q
u
a
re

 m
e
tr

e
s 

o
f 
a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
; 

th
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

fl 
o
o
r 

ri
ve

r 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
 r

o
o
m

s 
co

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 f
o
rm

 a
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 f
a
ci

lit
y,

 p
ro

vi
d
in

g
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
0
0
 

sq
. 
m

 o
f 
a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 h

u
tm

e
n
ts

 s
it
e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r
e
d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 a

s 
a
 o

n
e
 o

r 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 g

la
ze

d
 a

tr
iu

m
 c

o
ve

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
e
 t

h
a
t 

le
a
d
s 

to
 L

e
n
d
a
l.
  
T
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

2
5
 -

 4
5
0
 s

q
. 

m
 o

f 
n
e
w

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

 a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

It
 i

s 
p
ro

p
o
se

d
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

 h
u
b
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

cc
e
ss

e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 l

a
n
e
 l

e
a
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

Le
n
d
a
l.
  

To
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 i
t 

is
 s

u
g
g
e
st

e
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

u
tm

e
n
ts

 s
it
e
 i
s 

se
t 

b
a
ck

 

to
 f
o
rm

 a
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 s

p
a
ce

 o
n
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

Fr
ia

ry
 s

it
e
. 

 T
h
is

 s
p
a
ce

 

2
6

Page 194



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

2
7Page 195



2
8

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r 

- 
th

is
 h

ig
h

ly
 s

ig
n

ifi
 c

a
n

t 
sp

a
ce

 w
il

l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 a

s 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
C

h
a
m

b
e
r,

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
il

it
y
 a

re
 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

.

Page 196



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

2
9

T
h

e
 G

u
il

d
h

a
ll

 A
n

n
e
x
e
 a

n
d

 H
u

tm
e
n

ts
 h

a
s 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

fo
r 

re
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
to

 f
o

rm
 a

  c
re

a
ti

v
e
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 h
u

b
.

T
h

e
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

H
u

tm
e
n

ts
 

o
n

 
th

e
 

si
te

 
o

f 
a
 

fo
rm

e
r 

F
ri

a
ry

 
h

a
s 

p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

fo
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.

Page 197



w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

sc
h
e
m

e
 p

re
se

n
ts

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

o
f 
fo

rm
in

g
 a

 r
a
m

p
e
d
 a

cc
e
ss

 

to
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
.

C
o

m
m

o
n

 H
a
ll
 Y

a
rd

C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

 i
s 

si
tu

a
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r,
 s

o
u
th

 e
le

va
ti
o
n
, 

o
f 

th
e
 M

a
n
si

o
n
 H

o
u
se

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 e

n
tr

a
n
ce

 f
ro

n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll.

  T
h
e
 p

ri
n
ci

p
a
l a

cc
e
ss

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

p
a
ce

 is
 f
ro

m
 S

t 

H
e
le

n
’s

 S
q
u
a
re

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 v

a
u
lt
e
d
 p

a
ss

a
g
e
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 M

a
n
si

o
n
 h

o
u
se

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ri
n
ci

p
a
l 

u
rb

a
n
 ‘g

ra
in

’ o
r 

d
ir
e
ct

io
n
 o

f 
st

re
e
ts

, 
b
o
th

 h
is

to
ri
c 

a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

is
 f
ro

m
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
’s

 S
q
u
a
re

, 

Le
n
d
a
l a

n
d
 C

o
n
e
y 

S
tr

e
e
t,

 s
o
u
th

 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
co

n
d
a
ry

 c
ro

ss
-r

o
u
te

s 

fr
o
m

 C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

, 
e
a
st

 t
o
 S

t 
M

a
rt

in
’s

 C
h
u
rc

h
, 

W
e
st

 t
o
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

O
ffi
 c

e
s 

a
lle

y 

a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 v

ia
 a

 s
ta

ir
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 p

a
ss

e
s 

b
e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

to
 t

h
e
 

o
p
e
n
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
t.

C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

 i
s 

a
 k

e
y 

sp
a
ce

 t
h
a
t 

n
e
e
d
s 

to
 b

e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 c
o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 a

s 
a
 c

re
a
ti
ve

 

la
n
d
sc

a
p
e
 d

e
si

g
n
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
ch

ie
ve

s 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

co
m

p
le

x 
o
b
je

ct
iv

e
s.

 I
t 

n
e
e
d
s 

to
 

ta
ck

le
 c

o
n
ce

rn
s 

o
f 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
ili

ty
; 

it
 n

e
e
d
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 w
o
rt

h
y 

u
rb

a
n
 s

p
a
ce

 a
n
d
 i
n
vi

ti
n
g
 

se
tt

in
g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

o
rt

h
 f
ro

n
t 

a
n
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
ce

 t
o
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll;

 i
t 

n
e
e
d
s 

to
 c

le
a
rl
y 

e
n
a
b
le

 w
a
y-

fi 
n
d
in

g
 a

cc
e
ss

 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

O
ffi
 c

e
s;

 it
 n

e
e
d
s 

to
 b

e
 b

e
a
u
ti
fu

lly
 li

t 
a
t 
n
ig

h
t,

 a
s 

sh
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
 

p
a
ss

a
g
e
 f
ro

m
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
’s

 S
q
u
a
re

 s
o
 t

h
a
t 

a
 m

o
re

 i
n
vi

ti
n
g
 s

p
a
ce

 i
s 

cr
e
a
te

d
. 
A
cc

e
ss

 s
h
o
u
ld

 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 f
o
r 

th
o
se

 w
h
o
 d

u
ri
n
g
 r

e
st

ri
ct

e
d
 h

o
u
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o
 u

se
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
 t

o
 a

cc
e
ss

 t
h
e
 r

iv
e
rf

ro
n
t.

 

T
h
is

 s
tu

d
y 

p
ro

p
o
se

s 
th

e
 g

a
ra

g
e
 i

s 
re

m
o
ve

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

p
a
ce

 s
o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
si

g
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

la
n
d
sc

a
p
e
 i
s 

g
iv

e
n
 m

o
re

 s
p
a
ce

 t
o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

re
so

lv
e
 t

h
e
 a

b
o
ve

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 

fo
r 

it
 t

o
 f
u
n
ct

io
n
 a

s 
a
 l
a
rg

e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 t

u
rn

in
g
 s

p
a
ce

. 
 I

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

o
ck

y 
b
e
 

re
vi

e
w

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
n
y 

la
n
d
sc

a
p
e
 d

e
si

g
n
 p

ro
p
o
sa

ls
. 

 T
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 e

le
va

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
re

 w
e
lc

o
m

in
g
 i
f 
it
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
se

rv
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

le
a
n
e
d
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

lit
 a

rc
h
it
e
ct

u
ra

lly
.

T
h
e
 u

se
 o

f 
C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
n
e
ct

 t
h
e
 r
iv

e
r 
fo

n
t 
a
n
d
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
’s

 S
q
u
a
re

 is
 d

is
cu

ss
e
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

si
te

 a
n
a
ly

si
s 

la
te

r 
in

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

.

T
h
e
 A

cc
e
ss

 A
u
d
it
 h

a
s 

id
e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
ce

rn
s 

w
it
h
 a

cc
e
ss

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

 

to
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
ri
si

n
g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

lo
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 p
re

se
n
t 

co
n
fi 
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

p
o
o
r 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

ils
.

3
0

C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

 :
 t

h
e
re

 i
s 

a
n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 r

e
so

lv
e
 t

h
e
 u

n
sa

ti
sf

a
ct

o
ry

 
a
cc

e
ss

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
p
re

se
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 L

is
te

d
 B

u
ild

in
g
s 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
w

a
y-

fi 
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

O
ffi
 c

e
s,

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 w
e
ll 

co
n
si

d
e
re

d
 

h
ig

h
 

q
u
a
lit

y 
la

n
d
sc

a
p
in

g
 

sc
h
e
m

e
. 

 
T
h
e
 

re
m

o
va

l 
o
f 

th
e
 

g
a
ra

g
e
s 

m
a
y 

im
p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

fo
r 

cr
e
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 d

e
lig

h
tf

u
l 

h
is

to
ri
c 

p
u
b
lic

 s
q
u
a
re

.

Page 198



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

3
1Page 199



A
e
ri

a
l 

sk
e
tc

h
 o

f 
u

rb
a
n

 s
p

a
ce

s 
a
n

d
 r

e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

n
n

e
x
e
 a

n
d

 h
u

tm
e
n

ts
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

si
te

.

3
2

Page 200



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

S
it

e
 C

o
n

te
x
t 

A
n

a
ly

si
s 

a
n

d
 U

rb
a
n

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

T
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

si
te

 a
n
a
ly

si
s 

h
a
s 

so
u
g
h
t 

to
 d

e
ve

lo
p
 t

w
o
 k

e
y 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 u

rb
a
n
 

co
n
te

xt
. 

 F
ir
st

, 
im

p
ro

vi
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 c

o
n
n
e
ct

io
n
s 

fo
rm

 L
e
n
d
a
l,
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
’s

 S
q
u
a
re

 a
n
d
 

C
o
n
e
y 

S
tr

e
e
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
la

n
e
s 

a
n
d
 y

a
rd

s 
to

 t
h
e
 r
iv

e
r 
fr

o
n
t.

  S
e
co

n
d
ly

, 
d
e
ve

lo
p
in

g
 

a
n
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 l
e
is

u
re

 s
p
a
ce

 a
lo

n
g
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 f

ro
m

 L
e
n
d
a
l 
B
ri
d
g
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

y 
to

 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
, 
p
ro

vi
d
in

g
 a

 n
e
w

 b
o
a
t 

e
m

b
a
rk

in
g
 ‘
je

tt
y,

 ’
a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

a
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
ce

 o
n
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

Fr
ia

ry
.

T
h
e
 e

xi
st

in
g
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 h

is
to

ri
c 

co
n
n
e
ct

io
n
s 

fr
o
m

 L
e
n
d
a
l 

a
n
d
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
’s

 S
q
u
a
re

 a
re

 

o
b
st

ru
ct

iv
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

it
y 

a
n
d
 h

in
d
e
r 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l u

si
n
g
 t
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c 

ro
u
te

s 
to

 e
n
ri
ch

 t
h
e
 c

it
y’

s 
ch

a
ra

ct
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

  
A
 la

rg
e
 a

n
d
 

d
o
m

in
a
n
t 

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

iv
e
rb

a
n
k,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s 

vi
su

a
lly

 c
ru

ci
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 a

n
d
 v

ie
w

s 
o
f 

th
e
 h

is
to

ri
c 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
in

g
s 

b
e
h
in

d
 t

h
e
m

 i
s 

b
lig

h
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 u

n
si

g
h
tl
y 

Yo
rk

 B
o
a
t 

Ya
rd

.

Yo
rk

 B
o
a
ts

 a
re

 a
n
 im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
b
u
si

n
e
ss

 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

ib
ra

n
t 
lif

e
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
ra

ct
e
r 
o
f 
th

e
 C

it
y 

o
f 
Yo

rk
; 

th
e
 b

o
a
ts

 p
ro

vi
d
e
 a

n
 e

xc
e
lle

n
t 

o
ff
e
r 

to
 v

is
it
o
rs

 t
o
 s

e
e
 Y

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
r.
  

T
h
is

 s
tu

d
y 

se
e
ks

 t
o
 d

e
ve

lo
p
 a

 m
o
re

 v
is

ib
le

 a
n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

fo
r 

th
is

 le
is

u
re

 o
ff
e
r 

b
y 

im
p
ro

vi
n
g
 

a
cc

e
ss

 t
o
 a

n
d
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 e

m
b
a
rk

a
ti
o
n
 p

o
in

t.
  T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
sa

l w
o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 Y

o
rk

 B
o
a
t 

se
rv

ic
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

o
ck

in
g
 y

a
rd

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
lo

ca
te

d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

.

T
h
is

 s
tu

d
y 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

 c
re

a
ti
ve

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 c

re
a
te

 a
 v

ib
ra

n
t 

ri
ve

rs
id

e
 l

e
is

u
re

 s
p
a
ce

 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 e
n
h
a
n
ce

 t
h
e
 e

n
jo

ym
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

su
cc

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e
 c

it
y.

  
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
xc

it
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
fi 
n
e
s 

o
f 

a
 

re
la

ti
ve

ly
 s

h
o
rt

 s
tu

d
y 

th
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
ri
g
h
ts

 a
n
d
 t
e
ch

n
ic

a
l f

e
a
si

b
ili

ty
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 

d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
se

q
u
e
n
t 

st
a
g
e
 o

f 
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t.

  
  
  
  

T
h

e
 G

u
il

d
h

a
ll

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 R

iv
e
r 

O
u

se

3
3Page 201



3
4

H
is

to
ri

c 
ro

u
te

s 
fr

o
m

 S
t 

H
e
le

n
’s

 S
q

u
a
re

 a
n

d
 L

e
n

d
a
l 

le
a
d

in
g

 d
o

w
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o

n
t 

th
a
t 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
d

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 a
 

p
u

b
li

c 
ri

v
e
r 

fr
o

n
ta

g
e
 s

p
a
ce

.

Page 202



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

3
5

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 l
o

n
g

 t
e
rm

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a
n

ce
 t

h
e
 R

iv
e
r 

O
u

se
 a

s 
a
 w

o
n

d
e
rf

u
l 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
ce

 t
h

a
t 

ca
n

 b
e
 e

n
jo

y
e
d

, 
a
 

m
a
jo

r 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 f

o
r 

e
n

h
a
n

ce
m

e
n

t 
is

 t
h

e
 Y

o
rk

 B
o

a
ts

 Y
a
rd

. 
 T

h
e
 Y

o
rk

 B
o

a
t 

la
n

d
in

g
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
lo

ca
te

d
 t

o
 a

 m
o

re
 p

u
b

li
cl

y
 n

o
ti

ca
b

le
 a

n
d

 

a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 s
p

a
ce

.

Page 203



 Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
 O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

L
e
n

d
a
l 
B

ri
d

g
e
 A

cc
e
ss

 t
o

 R
iv

e
rf

ro
n

t
Fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Le

n
d
a
l 

B
ri
d
g
e
 i

t 
is

 p
ro

p
o
se

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 g

a
te

d
 a

cc
e
ss

 b
e
 f

o
rm

e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

g
a
rd

e
n
 s

p
a
ce

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 a

 n
e
w

 s
ta

ir
 a

n
d
 p

a
ss

e
n
g
e
r 

lif
t 

th
a
t 

w
ill

 d
e
sc

e
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 r

iv
e
r 

te
rr

a
ce

 t
h
a
t 
is

 p
re

se
n
tl
y 

th
e
 b

o
a
ty

a
rd

. 
 T

h
is

 a
cc

e
ss

 

is
 v

e
ry

 w
e
ll 

lo
ca

te
d
, 
to

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
y 

vi
si

to
rs

 w
h
o
 c

ro
ss

 L
e
n
d
a
l B

ri
d
g
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s 

a
 g

o
o
d
 s

p
a
ce

 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t

o
 l
o
o
k 

d
o
w

n
 c

ro
ss

 t
h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

vi
e
w

.

A
cc

e
ss

 t
o
 t

h
e
 R

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
t 

te
rr

a
ce

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 b

ri
d
g
e
.

B
o

a
t 

Y
a
rd

 S
q

u
a
re

 a
n

d
 L

a
n

d
in

g
 A

cc
e
ss

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
is

 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 n

e
w

 r
a
is

e
d
 t

e
rr

a
ce

d
 s

p
a
ce

, 
le

ve
l 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

sh
o
ld

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
re

se
n
t 

Yo
rk

 B
o
a
ts

 b
u
ild

in
g
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s 

a
b
o
ve

 t
h
e
 k

n
o
w

n
 fl
 o

o
d
 l
im

it
. 

 T
h
is

 l
e
ve

l 
sp

a
ce

 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

 v
ib

ra
n
t 

le
is

u
re

 s
p
a
ce

, 
m

a
ki

n
g
 e

a
sy

 c
o
n
n
e
ct

io
n
s 

to
 t

h
e
 b

a
se

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

Yo
rk

 

H
o
u
se

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 a

d
ja

ce
n
t 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s,

 a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

th
e
 l
a
n
e
 t

h
a
t 

le
a
d
s 

b
a
ck

 u
p
 

to
 L

e
n
d
a
l.
  

T
h
e
 p

a
ve

d
 t

e
rr

a
ce

 w
ill

 e
m

b
a
n
k 

d
o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 

lo
w

e
r 

p
ro

m
e
n
a
d
e
 l
e
ve

l 
co

n
n
e
ct

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ce

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
. 

 F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

te
rr

a
ce

 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

n
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 r
o
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 Y

o
rk

 B
o
a
ts

 e
m

b
a
rk

a
ti
o
n
 

la
n
d
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
se

 a
re

 e
n
vi

sa
g
e
d
 a

s 
a
 m

o
d
e
rn

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 fl
 o

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
r,
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 a

 

u
n
iq

u
e
 w

a
y 

to
 s

e
e
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
t 

a
n
d
 b

ri
d
g
e
s.

F
ri

a
ry

 G
a
rd

e
n

Fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 B
o
a
t 

Ya
rd

 T
e
rr

a
ce

, 
a
 p

a
ss

a
g
e
 c

o
n
n
e
ct

io
n
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

w
a
re

h
o
u
se

 b
u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 ‘
Fr

ia
ry

 G
a
rd

e
n
’, 

th
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 r
a
is

e
d
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
ce

 f
ro

m
 

w
h
ic

h
 v

ie
w

s 
a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

ca
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
, 

a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

a
cc

e
ss

 v
ia

 a
 r

a
m

p
 b

e
h
in

d
 t

h
e
 

e
xi

st
in

g
 s

cr
e
e
n
 w

a
ll 

d
o
w

n
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
. 
 T

h
e
 F

ri
a
ry

 G
a
rd

e
n
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
n
e
ct

 

in
to

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 A

n
n
e
xe

 a
n
d
 H

u
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
e
 b

a
ck

 u
p
 

to
 L

e
n
d
a
l.

3
6

Page 204



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

L
e
n

d
a
l 
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 a
n

n
e
x
e
 b

u
il
d

in
g

Fr
o
m

 L
e
n
d
a
l i

t 
is

 p
ro

p
o
se

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 la

n
e
 is

 d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

it
 c

o
n
n
e
ct

s 
vi

a
 

a
 c

o
ve

re
d
 l
in

k 
to

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 F

ri
a
ry

 G
a
rd

e
n
.

W
a
te

r 
E
d

g
e

Fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 B

o
a
t 

Ya
rd

 T
e
rr

a
ce

 s
te

p
p
e
d
 a

cc
e
ss

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 

d
o
w

n
 t
o
 a

 w
a
te

r 
e
d
g
e
 w

a
lk

 t
h
a
t 
co

n
n
e
ct

s 
to

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
. 
 T

h
e
 

p
o
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

is
 s

p
a
ce

 b
e
in

g
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 F

ri
a
ry

 G
a
rd

e
n
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 

ra
m

p
e
d
 a

cc
e
ss

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

xp
lo

re
d
. 

 T
h
is

 l
o
w

 l
e
ve

l 
ri
ve

r 
si

d
e
 v

ie
w

 

o
f 
th

e
 Y

o
rk

 B
ri
d
g
e
s 

is
 a

 d
e
lig

h
tf

u
l 
e
xp

e
ri
e
n
ce

. 
 W

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

is
 i
n
 

fl 
o
o
d
 t

h
e
 u

se
 o

f 
th

is
 l
o
w

e
r 

w
a
lk

 w
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 p

o
ss

ib
le

.

C
o

m
m

o
n

 H
a
ll
 L

a
n

e
, 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 H
a
ll
 Y

a
rd

 a
n

d
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
’s

 S
q

u
a
re

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
sa

l 
is

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 s
o
m

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 a

cc
e
ss

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 w

a
te

r 
fr

o
n
t 

u
p
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

La
n
e
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

 a
n
d
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
’s

 S
q
u
a
re

. 
 T

h
is

 

w
ill

 b
ri
n
g
 b

a
ck

 i
n
to

 u
se

 o
n
e
 o

f 
Yo

rk
’s

 l
a
n
e
s,

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 i
n
 e

n
ri
ch

 t
h
e
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
te

re
st

in
g
 a

sp
e
ct

 o
f 
th

e
 c

it
y.

 

3
7Page 205



C
O

N
C

L
U

S
IO

N
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
 t

ra
n
sf

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 w
e
st

 o
ffi
 c

e
s 

w
ill

 

re
q
u
ir
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 
th

e
 r
e
u
se

 o
f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

co
m

p
le

x 
is

 d
e
ve

lo
p
e
d
. 

T
h
is

 s
tu

d
y 

h
a
s 

id
e
n
ti
fi 
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 t
h
e
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 u

se
 a

n
d
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll.

  
It

 h
a
s 

a
ls

o
 i
d
e
n
ifi 

e
d
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

o
ffi
 c

e
s 

n
e
e
d
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 r
e
sp

e
ct

 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 h

a
s 

su
g
g
e
st

e
d
 

b
o
th

 e
xt

e
rn

a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s 

to
 t

h
is

 e
n
d
, 

a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

re
co

n
fi 
g
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 im

p
ro

ve
d
 f
a
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l C
h
a
m

b
e
r 

fu
n
ct

io
n
. 
 T

h
e
 A

n
n
e
xe

 a
n
d
 H

u
tm

e
n
ts

 h
a
ve

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l f

o
r 

a
 s

p
e
ct

a
cu

la
r 

ri
ve

rs
id

e
 

cr
e
a
ti
ve

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

 u
se

 a
n
d
 v

ir
tu

a
l 
o
ffi
 c

e
s 

su
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 f
a
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

a
t 

w
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

u
se

 b
y 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l.

A
s 

a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 p

ro
je

ct
, 
th

e
re

 is
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 t
h
e
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s;

 

a
d
d
re

ss
 is

su
e
s 

o
f c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t;

 im
p
ro

ve
d
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
lit

y 
a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 s
it
e
; 

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

e
tt

in
g
 a

n
d
 u

rb
a
n
 la

n
d
sc

a
p
e
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

jo
in

t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

ci
ty

 p
o
lic

ie
s 

fo
r 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
ch

 f
o
r 

th
e
se

 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 t

o
 u

se
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 e

n
h
a
n
ce

 t
h
e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 m

it
ig

a
te

 l
o
ss

 t
o
 

h
is

to
ri
c 

fa
b
ri
c 

a
n
d
 a

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
y.

  
W

h
e
re

 p
o
ss

ib
le

 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 p

o
si

ti
ve

ly
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 

to
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 n

e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
s 

a
n
d
 s

p
a
ce

s 
h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 p

ro
p
o
se

d
.

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s 

Im
p
a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t –

 I
t i

s 
re

co
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 th

a
t a

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t c

o
ve

ri
n
g
 

a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
a
ct

iv
it
ie

s,
 f
ro

m
 f
o
rm

a
l p

u
b
lic

 c
o
n
su

lt
a
ti
o
n
s 

to
 d

ir
e
ct

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
te

ct
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s 

ta
ke

s 
p
la

ce
. 

T
h
e
 l
e
ve

l 
o
f 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
ke

n
 

w
ill

 d
e
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

ca
le

 o
f 
p
ro

je
ct

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
ve

lo
p
e
d
. 

  

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
C
o
n
d
it
io

n
s 

in
 t

h
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

–
 C

o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 s

p
e
ci

a
lis

t 

h
is

to
ri
c 

b
u
ild

in
g
s 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
e
n
g
in

e
e
r 

to
 t

e
ch

n
ic

a
lly

 a
ss

e
ss

 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s 

a
n
d
 b

e
n
efi

 t
s 

o
f 
e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

.

3
8

La
n
d
sc

a
p
e
 D

e
si

g
n
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 H

a
ll 

Ya
rd

 –
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

d
e
ve

lo
p
in

g
 a

 b
ri
e
f 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
sc

a
p
e
 

d
e
si

g
n
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 s

e
le

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a
 s

p
e
ci

a
lis

t 
la

n
d
sc

a
p
e
 d

e
si

g
n
e
r 

w
it
h
 e

xe
m

p
la

ry
 d

e
si

g
n
 

cr
e
d
e
n
ti
a
ls

.

G
u
ild

h
a
ll 

C
o
m

p
le

x 
–
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

d
e
ve

lo
p
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

tu
d
y 

so
 t

h
a
t 

vi
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

te
st

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
ve

lo
p
e
d
.

Li
g
h
ti
n
g
 –

 c
o
n
si

d
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l 
lig

h
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

a
s 

a
n
y 

p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
 

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t.

R
iv

e
r 

fr
o
n
t 

- 
co

n
si

d
e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

th
e
 v

ia
b
ili

ti
e
s 

o
f 

im
p
ro

vi
n
g
 c

o
n
n
e
ct

io
n
s 

to
 t

h
e
 r

iv
e
r 

fr
o
n
t 

b
y 

o
p
e
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
e
s 

fr
o
m

 L
e
n
d
a
l 
a
n
d
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
’s

 S
q
u
a
re

, 
co

n
si

d
e
r 

st
ra

te
g
ic

 p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 

fo
r 

th
e
 r

e
d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
Yo

rk
 B

o
a
t 

Ya
rd

 t
o
 f
o
rm

 a
 p

u
b
lic

ly
 a

cc
e
ss

ib
le

 s
p
a
ce

 t
h
a
t 

m
a
ke

s 

a
p
p
o
si

ti
ve

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
iv

e
r 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
 s

e
tt

in
g
 a

n
d
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

ss
e
ts

. 
S
tu

d
ie

s 
th

a
t 
w

ill
 

h
e
lp

 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
is

 i
n
cl

u
d
e
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
ri
g
h
t 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 

th
e
 s

it
e
 a

re
a
; 

th
e
 R

iv
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e
st

ri
ct

io
n
s 

a
n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 fl
 o

o
d
 l
e
ve

ls
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
.

Page 206



Yo
rk

 G
ui

ld
ha

ll:
  O

pt
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

3
9Page 207



4
0

Page 208



 
 

 

 

 

 
 
Cabinet 
 

 
15 May 2012 

 
Report of the Cabinet Member  for Leisure, Culture and Social Inclusion 
 
 
Developing a Thriving Voluntary Sector in the City of York 
 

Summary 

1. This paper outlines progress towards the production of a Voluntary 
Sector Strategy for the City of York. It summarises developments 
so far and details forthcoming consultation events leading to the 
development of the final strategy. 

2. The paper also makes recommendations around the future funding 
criteria and management arrangements for merged Voluntary 
Sector funding pots within the CANS directorate. 

Background 

3. York’s voluntary sector contributes enormously to the economic, 
social and cultural life of the City at every level. The renewed 
emphasis on localism and the focus upon neighbourhood working 
provides an ideal opportunity to capture the value of the Voluntary 
Sector within a clearly defined strategic document. 

4. Cabinet, through the City of York Council Plan 2012-2015, initially 
commissioned a Voluntary Sector Strategy focusing on ways and 
means whereby the Council might positively impact upon the 
sector. 

5. A detailed Position Paper was subsequently produced, outlining 
the current relationship between the Council and the voluntary 
sector and identifying opportunities for future collaboration and co-
production.   

6. As part of the consultation process the Cabinet Member for 
Leisure, Culture and Social Inclusion and the Director of 
Communities and Neighbourhoods attended an open meeting with 
voluntary sector representatives on 19th March. 

Agenda Item 10Page 209



 
 

7. The Council’s Position Paper was welcomed but there was a clear 
call for the creation of a Citywide Voluntary Sector Strategy and 
Action Plan (involving a wider range of public sector partners).  

8. Feedback from the consultation event indicated that the production 
of a Citywide Voluntary Sector strategy should help to inform the 
agenda of key strategic partnerships such as the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.   

9. Feedback also indicated that the final Voluntary Sector Strategy 
needed to be a relatively simple document with measurable, 
achievable outcomes as follows: 

A) Grant Funding and Commissioning 

The council will provide leadership, ensuring that the voluntary 
sector will be at the forefront of public agencies’ thinking when 
designing and commissioning services.  

• Recognising the important preventative work carried out by the 
voluntary sector, and the role that the voluntary sector plays in 
keeping people healthy, safe, well and as independent as 
possible. 

• Establishing clarity and transparency around public sector 
commissioning and grant making procedures for voluntary 
sector organisations. 

• Strengthening the fabric of front-line voluntary sector 
organisations, ensuring that they are tender-ready and able to 
supply or deliver services on behalf of public sector 
organisations.  

 
B) Localism Agenda 

Involving the voluntary sector in the facilitation of community 
participation, neighbourliness, social connections, and informal 
local activity that help disadvantaged areas and people. 

• Exploring the potential for the voluntary and community sector 
to deliver neighbourhood services and to act as social 
enterprises. 

• Harnessing opportunities to work with the voluntary sector and 
local residents to develop new neighbourhood based services 
and solutions to social problems. 

 

Page 210



 
 

C) Social Enterprise 

Exploring and strengthening relationships between the private, 
public and voluntary sectors. 

• Working with the voluntary sector to deliver new public service 
delivery models through the use of mutuals, co-operatives and 
social enterprise spin-outs, 

• Fostering a more enterprising culture within the voluntary and 
community sector and providing training in social 
entrepreneurship for more voluntary organisations 

• Encouraging voluntary sector organisations to develop new 
services and income streams. 

D) Volunteering 

Supporting the voluntary sector and other partners to achieve the 
highest standards when involving volunteers. 

• Developing projects to extend local and informal volunteering 
that have the potential to empower people in their communities 
and reduce social isolation. 

• Developing projects designed to support people into 
employment through volunteering, establishing stronger links 
between the voluntary and private sector. 

• Building a strong and effective Volunteer Centre for the City. 
 

Next Steps 

10. Cabinet is asked to endorse the above outcomes as the basis for 
further work on the strategy.  Next steps towards the completion of 
the finalised Voluntary Sector Strategy will then include a series of 
further consultation events, involving CYC, other public sector 
partners and voluntary sector representatives.  The intention is to 
secure City wide agreement on a Strategy and 3 year Action Plan 
by September 2012: 

• April:     Fairness Commission Debate: Communities and    
Volunteering  

•  May: Health & Wellbeing Board Citywide Consultation Event 

• June: Draft Citywide Strategy and Action Plan produced. 

• July: Further consultation with City wide partners around the 
  key objectives and actions contained in the strategy. 

Page 211



 
 

• Sept: Final sign-off of the Citywide Volunteering Strategy by 
  the WOW Partnership Board. 

 
CYC Voluntary Sector Funding 

11. The Council will clearly continue to play a key role in the 
development of the Citywide Voluntary Sector Strategy.  While this 
will progress over a number of months, there are key elements of 
the Council’s funding relationship with the Voluntary Sector which 
require immediate attention. 

12. Cabinet’s recent decision to pool several existing Communities 
and Neighbourhoods grant programmes (some former ward 
funding, core grants and play grants) into a single pot needs to be 
actioned over forthcoming weeks.  A tender process has been 
initiated to recruit an external partner to oversee the management 
of this combined funding pot.  (An update on this will be provided 
at the meeting.)  The broad parameters for this funding now need 
to be agreed so that detailed criteria can be established with the 
new management organisation, once established, and through 
further consultation with the voluntary sector. 

13. The following outline criteria are proposed, based around the 
Building Stronger Communities priority within the Council Plan: 

- Community Engagement:  Supporting initiatives which break 
down barriers between communities and individuals, meeting 
identified gaps (e.g. initiatives to promote racial harmony, 
supporting the LGBT community). 

- Inclusive Communities:  Supporting initiatives that address 
the needs of communities of interest identified in the JSNA and 
other relevant needs assessments including assessment 
undertaken by the communities themselves. 

- Stronger Voluntary Sector:  Promoting new, innovative 
volunteering initiatives at a neighbourhood and community of 
interest level - and investigating alternative, voluntary-sector led 
service delivery mechanisms. 

- Healthy, Sustainable Communities:  Supporting voluntary 
sector initiatives that may realise significant savings to Council 
services as a result of early intervention and prevention. 
Priorities will include financial inclusion initiatives and 
neighbourhood based support for isolated older people. 

Page 212



 
 

- Creating Communities where People Flourish: Supporting 
voluntary-sector led play opportunities and facilities throughout 
the City. 

14. Regular reports will be made by the management organisation to 
the Cabinet Member for Leisure Culture and Social Inclusion on 
grants made and on the performance of the organisations funded. 

15. Within the new approach outlined above, it is recommended that 
three voluntary sector infrastructure organisations in the City 
continue to retain a direct funding relationship with the Council, 
namely York CVS, York CAB and the Welfare Benefits Unit.  The 
nature of these organisations is to offer specialist, second tier 
support to all other voluntary sector organisations in the City or to 
all members of the public and it therefore makes sense for them to 
be commissioned directly by the Council. 

16. These organisations’ funding is currently fixed up to 30 September 
2012.  It is proposed that they receive 3 year funding agreements 
from that point reduced by 8% compared to current funding (the 
average sector reduction).  Detailed Service Level Agreements will 
be brought to the Cabinet Member for Leisure, Culture and Social 
Inclusion for approval. 

17. It is also proposed to make an ongoing commitment from the 
Council to supporting the core costs of the York CVS Volunteer 
Centre.  This would entail an additional commitment of £13k per 
annum for the next three years to York CVS. 

18. As the Voluntary Sector Strategy develops there may also be the 
potential for bids to Delivery and Innovation Fund to facilitate the 
development of new and innovative ways of working leading to 
more efficient and effective services. 

Consultation 

19. There has been extensive, ongoing consultation with the voluntary 
sector in York, both in terms of Council voluntary sector funding 
and the development of the wider Voluntary Sector Strategy. 

Options 

20. The Cabinet can accept the outcomes and funding criteria 
suggested or agree alternatives. 

Page 213



 
 

Analysis 

21. It is envisaged that the approach outlined above will develop the 
capacity and capability of the voluntary sector to engage with 
volunteers, support marginalised communities and explore new 
methods of cross sector collaboration and co-production. It would 
also retain an element of core support for critical second tier 
voluntary organisations in the City. 

Council Plan 

22. The planned approach outlined above would make a direct 
contribution to the following specific Building Stronger 
Communities outcomes listed in the draft City of York Council 
Plan: 

• Community Engagement  
• Inclusive Communities 
• Stronger Voluntary Sector 
• Healthy, Sustainable Communities 
• Creating Communities where Young People Flourish 

Implications 

23. Financial:  The pooled Communities and Neighbourhoods grant 
funding pot in 2012/13 will amount to £141 k.  It should be noted 
that the fee to the management organisation will be paid from this 
pot (to be determined through the procurement process).   

24. From 2013/14 a further £146k will be added to the pooled funding 
pot when existing funding agreements expire. 

25. In addition to the pot, £129k has already been committed in 
2012/13 to guarantee existing funding agreements up to 30 
September.   

26. The annual grants for the 3 organisations set out in paragraph 15 
from 1 October 2012 (pro rata for the remaining 6 months of 
2012/13) are as follows: 

• York CVS £17,860 + £13k in respect of the 
Volunteer Bureau 

• York and District CAB £61,983 
• Welfare Benefits Unit £11,804 

27. Equalities:  EIAs have been undertaken relating to the voluntary 
sector strategy and the proposed funding arrangements.  The 

Page 214



 
 

proposed new voluntary sector funding arrangements ensure that 
communities of interest are in charge of identifying their needs and 
in charge of solutions to meet them.  To enable this we have 
invested more resources to support an all inclusive service from 
York CVS and the CAB.  What is proposed here contributes 
towards the relevant outcomes of the Council Plan.  

28. It will be a requirement of all recipients of CYC funding to 
demonstrate and evidence their commitment to equalities 
outcomes in the work of their organisations.  An equality impact 
assessment has been undertaken and it was established that no 
negative implications arose from the recommendations contained 
in this report. 

29. Legal:  The Council has sufficient legal powers in the Localism Act 
and elsewhere to enable payment of these grants. 

30. There are no Human Resources, Crime and Disorder, Information 
Technology, Property, or other implications arising from this report 

Risk Management 

31. The potential risks of the planned future approach range from 
failure of the external voluntary sector funding management body 
to deliver the agreed service at the appropriate standard, to the 
closure of voluntary organisations previously in receipt of CYC 
core grant funding. These types of risks have been considered and 
will be dealt with carefully through the monitoring, assessment and 
agreement process put in place by the Council.  

32. Whilst the external provider would be responsible for overarching 
management of CYC voluntary sector funding, distinct lines of 
reporting and accountability to City of York Council against the key 
outputs and outcomes would be established. 

Recommendations 

33. Cabinet are asked to approve: 

• The above outcomes set out in paragraph 9 as the basis for 
further work on developing the strategy. 

• The outline criteria set out in paragraph 13 as the basis for 
developing detailed funding criteria for the combined voluntary 
sector funding pot.  

Page 215



 
 

• 3 year funding agreements for York CVS, York CAB and the 
Welfare Benefits Unit as set out in paragraph 15. 

Reason:  To strengthen the fabric of the voluntary sector in the city. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer responsible for the 
report: 

Adam Gray 
Senior Partnership Support 
Officer 

Neighbourhood 
Management Unit 
551053 
 

Charlie Croft 
Assistant Director (Communities, 
Culture and Public Realm)  
 
Report 
Approved ü 

Date 3.5.12. 

Cabinet Member responsible for the report:  
Cllr S Crisp 
Cabinet Member for Leisure,  
Culture and Social Inclusion 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)    N/A 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All ü 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
 
Background Papers:  File held by Adam Gray 

Page 216



 
 

 
 

 

  
 

   

 
Cabinet                                                                    
 

15 May 2012 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Crime & Community Safety 
 

POLICE REFORM AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACT 2011   

POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER - Update 

Summary 

1. The following report outlines the changes in legislation leading to policing 
and community safety being overseen by a Police and Crime 
Commissioner, supported by a Police and Crime Panel for each police 
force area.  It also outlines work that has been undertaken in York in 
preparation for these changes and puts forward proposals to continue to 
develop the framework for community safety delivery in York and North 
Yorkshire. 

Background 

2. The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 covers five distinct 
policy areas: police accountability and governance, alcohol licensing; the 
regulation of protests around Parliament Square,; misuse of drugs; and 
the issue of arrest warrants in respect of private prosecutions for 
universal jurisdiction purposes.  This report only focuses on the area of 
police accountability and governance and its impact on community 
safety. 
 

3. The Act replaces police authorities with directly elected Police and Crime 
Commissioners (PCC), with the aim of improving police accountability.  
PCCs will be elected in November 2012 for a four year term, subsequent 
elections will occur every fourth year on the first Thursday in May, in line 
with local and parliamentary elections.  

4. Existing police authority staff will transfer to the PCC who will determine 
their future.  The existing police authority Chief Executive will become 
the interim PCC Chief Executive and the PCC can appoint a deputy. 

5. Every police force in England and Wales, with the exception of the 
Metropolitan Police and City of London (where the mayor will act) will 

Agenda Item 11Page 217



 
 

 
 

have a PCC.  PCCs will produce a five year police and crime plan, set 
the force budget and determine the precept.  They will have a reciprocal 
duty to co-operate with Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) and will 
have to establish local co-operative arrangements with the Criminal 
Justice System. 

6. PCCs and CSPs will have due regard for each others’ priorities ie. Those 
set out in the Police and Crime Plan and within CSP Strategic 
Assessments and Partnership Plans.  PCCs will be scrutinised by a 
Police and Crime Panel made up of representatives from each Local 
Authority in the police force area.  Annex 1 sets out the role of the PCC 
and what that means nationally and for York. 

Administration of the elections 
 
7. The City of York’s Chief Executive has been designated as the Police 

Authority Returning Officer (or PARO) for the North Yorkshire Police 
Authority (NYPA) Area. The PARO is responsible for handling 
candidate’s nominations, ensuring consistent standards across the 
region and declaring the final result. She will work with the Returning 
Officers in each District to deliver an effective election 

 
8. Each individual local authority’s Returning Officer (RO) is responsible for 

running the election within their council boundary. Subject to any 
directions which the PARO may make the local RO will print ballot 
papers, issue postal votes, run polling stations and manage the count for 
their area.  
 

9. NYPA has an electorate of around 600,000 with 730 polling stations and 
approximately 90,000 postal voters. 

 
10. The voting system used in these elections will be the Supplementary 

Vote (see Annex 3), where each elector may express a first and second 
preference. 

 
11. Funding for the election is similar to parliamentary (both UK and 

European) where each Returning Officer (including the PARO)  is 
provided funds direct from the Home Office, the local authority incurs no 
cost and each Returning Officer must return accounts to the Home 
Office. 

 
12. This is a large and complex election with obvious difficulties caused by 

the November timing, a complex nomination process and a complex two 
stage counting process. Because the election would otherwise have 

Page 218



 
 

 
 

coincided with the annual canvass the last date for publishing the 
register this year has been brought forward to the 16th October.  This will 
prevent problems arising with people assuming that they are on the 
register but who would not have been had the register been published, 
as usual, in December.  
 

13. However, it presents its own challenges not least being the fact that 
elections staff will be simultaneously engaged in making arrangements 
for the canvass, the local elements of the election and the regional 
elements. 

 
Police and Crime Panel 
 
14. The Act requires the local authorities in each police force area to 

establish a police and crime panel (panel), as a joint committee, to 
scrutinise the commissioner.  The Act also prescribes many of the 
arrangements with regard to the panel and the way in which it conducts 
its business. 

 
15. According to the Home Office, “Panels are not a replacement for the 

police authority.  They will fulfil an important role in scrutinising the 
commissioner but we need to be clear that this reform is about 
reconnecting the police and the people.  This will be achieved through a 
directly elected police and crime commissioner not through the police 
and crime panel.  The panel will have an important scrutiny role in 
relation to the commissioner, however it is the commissioner who is 
taking on the role of the police authority and who the public will hold to 
account for the performance of their force.” 

 
16. The panel will have the following duties and powers which must be 

exercised in accordance with the Act and associated Regulations: 
 
• the power of veto, by two-thirds majority, over the commissioner’s 

proposed budget and precept; 
• the power of veto, by two-thirds majority, over the commissioner’s 

proposed candidate for chief constable; 
• the power to ask Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) 

for a professional view when the commissioner intends to dismiss a 
chief constable; 

• the power to review the commissioner’s draft police and crime plan 
and make recommendations to the commissioner who must take 
account of them; 

Page 219



 
 

 
 

• the power to review the commissioner’s annual report and make 
reports and recommendations at a public meeting, which the 
commissioner must attend; 

• the power to require any papers in the commissioner’s possession 
(except those which are operationally sensitive); 

• the power to require the commissioner to attend the panel to answer 
questions; 

• the power to appoint an acting commissioner (from within the 
commissioner’s staff) when the elected commissioner is incapacitated 
or suspended (until she/he is no longer incapacitated or suspended),  
or resigns or is disqualified (until a new commissioner is elected); and  

• responsibility for all complaints about the commissioner, although 
serious issues must be passed to the Independent Police Complaints 
Commission (IPCC). 

 
17. The Home Secretary has reserve powers to establish a panel and to 

appoint members to the panel, if any local authority fails to do so. 
 
Developing the panel arrangements  
 
18. Elected member representatives (leaders or community safety portfolio 

holders) from the nine local authorities in York and North Yorkshire have 
been overseeing the development of the arrangements for the North 
Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel, through a task group established by 
Local Government North Yorkshire and York. 

 
19. It is proposed that the nine local authorities each agree the formal panel 

arrangements, establishing it as a joint committee, and appoint their 
member(s) of the panel at or before their annual meetings in May 2012.  
This will allow time for the panel, before the commissioner is elected, to 
appoint co-opted independent members; agree the panel’s rules of 
procedure; be briefed on relevant issues; and agree the panel’s work 
programme for its first year.  Until the commissioner takes office on 22 
November 2012, following the election on 15 November 2012, the 
panel's powers will be limited to those necessary to prepare itself. 

 
20. The draft panel arrangements (Annex 2) have been prepared in 

consultation with officers of the nine local authorities and considered by 
the elected member task group established by Local Government North 
Yorkshire and York.  

 
 
 
 

Page 220



 
 

 
 

Panel membership 
 
21. In North Yorkshire and York, the panel will consist of ten councillors from 

the nine local authorities (at least one from each authority) and two 
independent members (not councillors) co-opted by the panel.  If a local 
authority has an elected mayor, she/he will automatically be a member 
instead of a councillor.  All twelve members will have equal voting rights.  
When co-opting the independent members, the panel must ensure that, 
as far as is reasonably practicable, the appointed and co-opted members 
together have the skills, knowledge and experience necessary for the 
panel to discharge its functions effectively. 

 
22. It is proposed that City of York Council will appoint two councillors 

reflecting its relative size, policing issues and unitary status. The North 
Yorkshire districts and the County Council will each appoint one 
representative. Discussion is still ongoing with regards the processes for 
chairing the panel. 

 
23. It is proposed that the lead local authority will facilitate discussions 

between the local authorities in order to enable the authorities to fulfil 
their duty to secure (as far as is reasonably practicable) that the 
appointed members represent the political make-up of the local 
authorities within the police area (when taken together).  It is also 
proposed that the nine authorities should aim to fulfil this duty as far as 
possible without resorting to additional co-options to the panel as 
increasing the size of the panel beyond the core 12 members would 
increase costs and reduce its effectiveness.  Any additional co-options 
would require the approval of the Home Secretary. 

 
Support for the Panel 
 
24. It is proposed that North Yorkshire County Council will be the lead local 

authority for the panel and, within the overall budget agreed annually by 
the nine local authorities, will support the panel and its members.  This 
support will led by a named lead officer supplemented as required by 
additional specialist officers (eg finance officers when advising the panel 
on the commissioner’s proposed budget and precept, legal officers when 
advising the panel on dealing with any complaints against the 
commissioner). 

 
25. It is proposed that the costs of the panel, including support for the panel, 

will be contained within the grant to be provided by the Home Secretary 
to the lead local authority.  The annual grant will be £53,330 plus £920 
towards expenses per panel member, subject to review by the Home 

Page 221



 
 

 
 

Secretary in future.  The LGA and Local Government North Yorkshire 
and York have both lobbied the Home Office to make a transparent level 
of funding available on a permanent basis to ensure that there is no 
burden on local authorities.  However, the Act requires that panel 
arrangements make provision about how the local authorities are to 
share the costs of the panel. 

 
26. To avoid councillors from different authorities being paid different rates of 

allowances, if any, for panel membership, it is proposed that the nine 
local authorities should ask the independent remuneration committee of 
the lead local authority to make a recommendation on behalf of all the 
local authorities. 

 
27. The Act requires that the panel arrangements set out how support and 

guidance will be given to elected members and officers of the nine local 
authorities in relation to the functions of the panel.  It is proposed that 
this will comprise initial briefing sessions for all elected members and 
relevant officers of the nine local authorities before the commissioner is 
elected and annual briefing sessions thereafter; together with written 
briefings issued at least three times a year. 

 

Potential impact of changes on York  

28. In preparation for the changes, key stakeholder organisations eg Local 
Government Association, National Community Safety Network, 
Association of Chief Police Officers and the Home Office are advising 
CSPs to position themselves to evidence a sound track record of delivery 
and fully evaluated initiatives aligned to their partnership priorities and 
plans. 

29. From April 2013, all community grant funding will be paid to the PCC 
alongside all other policing and related grants. PCCs may choose to 
commission all community safety services or to just utilise all funding to 
support policing. It is also anticipated that some YOT and DAAT funding 
which the council currently received direct will also be channelled 
through the PCC.  It is therefore critical the CYC evidences a sound track 
record of delivery and crime reduction and positions itself so that 
following the introduction of the PCC we can demonstrate that funding 
directed through our community safety partnership will deliver results. 

30. York has a well established CSP: Safer York Partnership (SYP) which 
has earned an excellent reputation with the Home Office for its 
implementation of an intelligence led business approach to tackle issues 
through multi-agency problem solving.  The partnership is governed by 

Page 222



 
 

 
 

an Executive Board comprised of senior representation from the five 
statutory partners: Local Authority, police, fire and rescue, police 
authority, primary care trust and probation.  The delivery structure is 
made up of multi-agency task groups addressing each of the priorities 
within the partnership plan: violent crime, serious acquisitive crime, anti-
social behaviour and business crime. 

31. Safer York Partnership implemented a National Intelligence Model based 
delivery structure in 2005 which focuses on victims, offenders and 
locations identified through multi-agency data and intelligence analysis 
and delivered through task groups aligned to each priority in the 
partnership plan.  Action plans record the initiatives and projects 
designed to tackle these priorities and track performance against the 
targets set out in the partnership plan.  All initiatives delivered through 
this process are fully evaluated on an annual basis. 

Impact of Changes on Community Safety Delivery for York & North 
Yorkshire 

32. When the Home Office first introduced Community Safety grant funding 
to the CSPs in 2002, some of that funding was specifically ring fenced for 
partnership development and capacity building.  In addition, other ring 
fenced grants were introduced to support the appointment of specialist 
posts such as anti-social behaviour co-ordinators, and domestic violence 
co-ordinators.   

33. In 2008, SYP undertook a significant staffing review which reduced the 
number of posts to enable those remaining to be mainstreamed within 
the Local Authority. A further directorate review in 2010/11 resulted in 
some changes to roles, responsibilities and realignment of directorate 
posts within an overarching Community Safety team.  Whilst SYP does 
rely on external income sources to support the team, the posts are 
funded by and sit within the local authority’s staffing structure. 

34. The York and North Yorkshire Community Safety Forum set up a task 
and finish group to look at how the CSPs might need to prepare for the 
changes in community safety and in particular the election of PCCs.  The 
group concluded that it was the role of each district to determine its own 
model for delivery of community safety in the future.  As a result, some 
districts have rationalised their staffing structure and others; Selby, 
Richmondshire and Hambleton have sought to collaborate and share 
resource. 

35. The Home Office is aware that many small CSPs rely on grant funding to 
sustain staff. Whilst they have encouraged merger of CSPs for some 

Page 223



 
 

 
 

years, the process by which this could be achieved was bureaucratic and 
required Home Secretary approval.  Hambleton and Richmondshire 
CSPs opted to merge in line with other shared services between the two 
local authorities. However, they still rely on Home Office grant funding to 
support posts even in the merged structure.  Under the new legislation, 
the PCC will be able to approve mergers between CSPs. However, this 
has to be at the request of the CSPs and cannot be forced by the PCC. 

A Partnership Delivery Model 

36. In 2010, Selby CSP recognised the limitation of sustaining a CSP 
delivery structure within the context of diminishing Home Office Grant 
funding.  Because of the geographical location of Selby, there was no 
natural option to merge with another CSP within North Yorkshire.  As 
Selby and York had worked closely when they formed the Central Area 
Basic Command Unit within the North Yorkshire police structure, there 
has been a long history of close work between the areas, although one is 
a Unitary and the other a district. 

37. In order to address funding issues and retain a local delivery structure, 
over the last 18 months SYP & Selby CSP have developed a partnership 
approach with SYP providing strategic support (at a cost) to Selby 
including representation at strategic (county/force wide) meetings, full 
data and intelligence analysis to support local problem solving, access to 
SYP’s delivery structure and staffing expertise, mediation and financial 
management of the Selby budget.  This has left the local Community 
Safety Officer in Selby, working directly with local partners to facilitate 
multi-agency problem solving and develop local responses to local 
priorities. 

38. Whilst initially, some concern was raised by the Selby CSP Board that 
Selby’s interests would be lost within the context of York Unitary 
priorities, this has not been the case.  Selby CSP operates as an entirely 
separate CSP and any joint work has been in the funding of initiatives 
pertinent to both CSPs in order to achieve economies of scale through a 
single purchasing process. With the exception of an increase in Burglary 
in September and October 2011, crime in Selby has continued to reduce 
and remained significantly lower than in the previous year.  The Safer 
Neighbourhood Commander and Inspectors all report a significantly 
better relationship and collaboration between the CSP and the Safer 
Neighbourhood Policing Teams and Selby Community Safety Officer is 
well engaged in driving partnership problem solving through the tactical 
tasking and co-ordination meetings held fortnightly by the police.  

Page 224



 
 

 
 

39. It is felt that a wider partnership approach with a single strategic body 
providing the strategic / intelligence functions with local, maybe joint CSP 
operational delivery structures underneath could provide an successful 
model for community safety across the force area and be attractive to the 
new PCC. 

Consultation 

40. The Head of Community Safety City of York Council chairs the National 
Community Safety Network (NCSN). This is a practitioner network 
providing support and information to 500 organisations engaged in 
community safety across the UK.  NCSN is represented on a number of 
Home Office working groups driving the transition programme for PCC 
and PCP preparation and has recently been awarded Home Office 
funding to develop the sharing off effective practice and peer support for 
practitioners in England and Wales.  In addition, York has representation 
on the Local Government Association Community Safety Board and 
Advisors Group.  Information received through these channels, has 
enabled SYP to position itself in a strong position to demonstrate value 
for money and effective delivery in preparation for the PCC. 

Options 
 
41. Option 1 – To appoint via annual council two council nominations to 

represent CYC on the Police & Crime Panel. 
 

42. Option 2 – To await the establishment of community safety delivery 
processes for York and North Yorkshire police force area after the 
election of PCC in November 2012 

 
43. Option 3 – To work with the CSPs in North Yorkshire in advance of the 

elections to develop an options paper setting out a framework for 
delivery of community safety in York and North Yorkshire that can be 
presented to the PCC post November 2012. 

 
Analysis 
 
44. At present, funding concerns within the district CSPs are prohibiting the 

development of long term sustainable solutions to delivery of local 
community safety priorities.  Whilst some partnerships are reducing their 
service provision to a minimum, others are developing exit strategies to 
reduce their commitment until any reserves have been fully exploited.  
Because the PCC will be a completely new appointment with a wide 
range of responsibilities, it is unlikely that the elected post holder will be 
in a position to develop new structures for some time after appointment. 

Page 225



 
 

 
 

This, combined with a predicted rise in crime due to the impact of 
continued economic recession, could place in jeopardy the partnership 
problem solving approach which has been achieved to date and 
significantly lose the focus on community safety leading to increases in 
crime and fear of crime. 

 
45. York’s track record in partnership working combined with the 

development of a partnership approach with Selby CSP, places it in a 
strong position to lead on work to develop proposals for the long term 
delivery of community safety across the county and city.  The 
relationship with Selby has demonstrated that local focus is not lost 
through taking a collaborative approach and that by broadening this 
approach there is potential to share resource between the districts, 
county and City of York. 

 
Council Plan 
 
46. The Council Plan refers to tackling crime and increasing community 

safety.  In the light of legislative changes and given that the PCC will be 
measured on force crime reduction, York (with 40% of the force’s total 
crime) has a crucial role to play in delivering community safety.  

 
Implications 
 
47. The implications arising from this report are: 
 

• Financial – The council currently received approximately £100k to 
support crime reduction initiatives and £17k from Selby CSP to 
support the staffing costs of Safer York Partnership.  From April 13 
this funding will be channelled through the PCC. It is also anticipated 
that some funding that the council currently received direct which 
support DAAT & YOT services will also be channelled through the 
PCC. 

• Human Resources (HR) - N/A 

• Equalities – Community Safety is delivered through the Safer York 
Partnership Community Safety Plan. This plan has undergone a full 
EIA and its content is inclusive of all communities within the city of 
York.    

• Legal  - New Structures are determined by the Police Reform and 
Social Responsibility Act 2011 

Page 226



 
 

 
 

• Crime and Disorder - This report relates entirely to tackling crime 
and disorder.   

• Information Technology (IT) NA 

• Property NA 

• Other NA 

 
Risk Management 
 

a. No known risks.  
 
Recommendations 

48. The Cabinet is asked to: 
 

a. Approve option 3, to work with the CSPs in North Yorkshire in 
advance of the elections to develop an options paper setting out a 
framework for delivery of community safety in York and North 
Yorkshire that can be presented to the PCC post November 2012. 
 

b. Determine who the two CYC appointments to the Police & Crime 
Panel should be and recommend to Annual Council for appointment. 

 
Reason: To ensure that Safer York Partnership’s experience and 
reputation as a successful CSP is not lost in the process of change to 
establishment of structures for the force area of York and North 
Yorkshire. 

 
Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 
Jane Mowat 
Head of Community 
Safety 
CAN’s 

 
Steve Waddington 
Assistant Director – Housing & Community 
Safety 

 

Page 227



 
 

 
 

Report 
Approved √ 

Date 27th April 12 

    
 
Wards Affected:  All All x 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Background Papers: 

 
 

Annex 1 – The Role of the PCC 
 

Annex 2 – Final Draft Panel Agreement 
 
Annex 3 - Supplementary Vote System 
 

 

Page 228



 
 

 
 

Annex 1 
The Role of the Police and Crime Commissioner  

 
 

Responsibility What this means What this means for 
York 

Setting the strategic 
direction and 
accountability of 
policing 

Being accountable to 
the electorate 
 
 
Setting strategic policing 
priorities 
 
 
Holding the force to 
account through the 
Chief Constable and 
consulting and involving 
the public 

Ensuring York’s 
community safety 
priorities are addressed 
 
Paying due regard to the 
priorities in the CSP plan 
 
 
Linking in to community 
contracts 

Working with partners 
to prevent and tackle 
crime and re-offending 

Ensuring the police 
respond effectively to 
public concerns and 
threats to public safety 
 
Promoting and enabling 
joined up working on 
community safety and 
criminal justice 
 
 
 
Increasing public 
confidence in how crime 
is cut and policing 
delivered 

Link to overview and 
scrutiny committee and 
local priorities within 
wards 
 
Ensuring the work of 
SYP continues including 
the established 
involvement with the 
wider criminal justice 
system (LCJB, YOT etc 
 
Continued proactive 
media of community 
safety achievements and 
successes 

Invoking the voice of 
the public, the 
vulnerable and victims 

Ensuring that public 
priorities are acted 
upon, victims and 
consulted and that the 
most vulnerable 
individuals are not 
overlooked 
 

Continuing work between 
NYP and CYC in relation 
to dealing with 
vulnerable victims 
 
 
 
 

Page 229



 
 

 
 

Complying with the 
General Equality duty 
under the Equality Act 

Support to the work 
being undertaken within 
CYC around Equalities 
excellence 

Contributing to 
resourcing of policing 
response to regional 
and national threats 

Ensuring an effective 
policing contribution 
alongside other partners 
to national 
arrangements to protect 
the public from other 
cross-boundary threats 
in line with the Strategic 
Policing Requirement 

Continuing work through 
SYP and the Prevent 
delivery structure in 
tackling organised crime 
groups and cross border 
criminality 

Ensuring value for 
money 

Responsible for the 
distribution of policing 
grants from central 
government and setting 
the precept raised 
through council tax 
 
Responsible for setting 
the budget, including 
the police precept 
component of council 
tax and how it should be 
spent 
 
Commissioning services 
from partners that will 
contribute to cutting 
crime 

Participation through 
membership of the PCP 
in relation to the use of 
funding in York and 
North Yorkshire 
 
 
As above 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ensuring that where 
commissioning and 
bidding processes exist, 
recognition is given to 
the track record of York 
in demonstrating value 
for money 
 
 

 

Page 230



ANNEX 2 

 1 

North Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel 
 

Panel Arrangements 
 
 
This Agreement is dated the         day of           2012.  
 
The Agreement is made between the following:  
 
The Council of the City of York of 
The County Council of North Yorkshire of 
The District Council of Craven of  
The District Council of Hambleton of  
The Borough Council of Harrogate of 
The District Council of Richmondshire of 
The District Council of Ryedale of 
The Borough Council of Scarborough of 
The District Council of Selby of 
 
In the Agreement the above Authorities are referred to together as ‘the Authorities’.  
 
1. 0 Background  
 
1. 1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (‘the Act’) introduces 

new structural arrangements for national policing, strategic police decision 
making, neighbourhood policing and police accountability.  

 
1. 2 The Act provides for the election of a Police and Crime Commissioner (‘PCC’) 

for a police force area, responsible for securing an efficient and effective 
police force for their area, producing a police and crime plan, recruiting the 
Chief Constable for an area, and holding him/her to account, publishing 
certain information including an annual report, setting the force budget and 
police precept and requiring the Chief Constable to prepare reports on police 
matters.  The PCC must co-operate with local community safety partners and 
criminal justice bodies.   

 
1. 3 The Act requires the local authorities in each police force area to establish and 

maintain a Police and Crime Panel (‘the Panel’) for its police force area.  It is 
the responsibility of the Authorities for the police force area to make 
arrangements for the Panel (‘Panel Arrangements’).   

 
1. 4 North Yorkshire and York is a multi authority police force area (‘the police 

force area’).  The Authorities, as the relevant local authorities within the area 
 must agree to the making and modification of the Panel Arrangements.  

 
1. 5 Each Authority and each Member of the Panel must comply with the Panel 

Arrangements.  
 
1. 6 The functions of the Panel must be exercised with a view to supporting the 

effective exercise of the functions of the PCC for that police force area.   

Page 231



ANNEX 2 

 2 

 
1. 7 The Panel must have regard to the Policing Protocol issued by the Home 

Secretary, which sets out the ways in which the Home Secretary, the PCC, 
the Chief Constable and the Panel should exercise, or refrain from exercising, 
functions so as to encourage, maintain or improve working relationships 
(including co-operative working); and limit or prevent the overlapping or 
conflicting exercise of functions.  

 
1. 8 The Panel is a scrutiny body with responsibility for scrutinising the PCC and 

promoting openness in the transaction of police business in the police force 
area.  

  
1. 9 The Panel is a joint committee of the Authorities.   
 
1. 10 The Authorities agree the Panel Arrangements.   
 
2. 0 Functions of the Police and Crime Panel 
 
2. 1 The Panel may not exercise any functions other than those conferred by the 

Act.  
 
2. 2 The functions of the Panel set out at paragraphs 2.3 - 2.8 below may not be 

discharged by a Committee or Sub-Committee of the Panel.  
 
2. 3 The Panel is a statutory consultee on the development of the PCC’s Police 

and Crime Plan and must: 
 
 a) review the draft Police and Crime Plan (and a variation to it); and, 
 b) report or make recommendations on the draft Plan which the PCC  
  must take into account.  
 
2. 4 The Panel must comment upon the Annual Report of the PCC, and for that 
 purpose must: 
 

a) arrange for a public meeting of the Panel to be held as soon as 
practicable after the Panel is sent an Annual Report under Section 12 
of the Act; 

 b) ask the PCC at that meeting such questions about the Annual Report 
  as the Members of the Panel think appropriate;  
 c) review the Annual Report; and, 
 d)  make a report or recommendations on the Annual Report to the PCC.  
 
2. 5 The Panel must undertake a review of a precept proposed by the PCC in 

accordance with the requirements set out in Schedule 5 of the Act, and will 
have a right of veto in respect of the precept in accordance with the Act and 
Regulations made thereunder.  

 
2. 6 The Panel must review, make a report to and make recommendations to the 

PCC in relation to the appointment of a Chief Constable by the PCC in 
accordance with the requirements set out in Schedule 8 of the Act and will 

Page 232



ANNEX 2 

 3 

have a right of veto in respect of the appointment in accordance with the Act 
and Regulations made thereunder.  

 
2. 7 The right of veto in paragraphs 2.5 and 2.6 will require that at least two-thirds 

of the persons who are Members of the Panel at the time when the decision is 
made vote in favour of making that decision.  

 
2. 8 The Panel must review, make a report to and make recommendations to the 

PCC in relation to the appointment of the PCC’s Chief Executive, Chief 
Finance Officer and the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner in 
accordance with the requirements set out in Schedule 1 of the Act.  

 
2. 9 The following functions must also be undertaken by the Panel but may be 

delegated to a Sub-Committee of the Panel: 
 
2. 10 The Panel shall receive notification from the PCC of any suspension of the 

Chief Constable, or any proposal to call upon a Chief Constable to retire or 
resign, and in the case of the latter must make a recommendation to the PCC 
as to whether or not the PCC should call for the retirement or resignation in 
accordance with the procedures set out in Schedule 8 of the Act.  

 
2. 11 The Panel must review or scrutinise the decisions or actions of the PCC in the 

discharge of his/her functions and make reports or recommendations to the 
 PCC with respect to the discharge of the PCC’s functions.  The Panel may 
 carry out investigations into the decisions of the PCC, and into matters of 
 particular interest or public concern.  

 
2. 12 The Panel must publish any reports or recommendations made by it to the 

PCC in a manner which the Panel will determine and must also send copies 
 to the Authorities.  

 
2. 13 The Panel may require the PCC or a member of his/her staff to attend the 

Panel to answer questions necessary for the Panel to undertake its functions, 
 provided that such questions shall not: 

 
 a) relate to advice provided to the PCC by his/her staff;  

 
b) in the view of the PCC: 

 
 i) be against the interests of national safety; 
 ii) jeopardise the safety of any person; or, 
 iii) prejudice the prevention or detection of crime, the apprehension 
  or prosecution of offenders, or the administration of justice; or, 

 
 c) be prohibited by any other enactment.  
 
2. 14 If the Panel requires the PCC to attend the Panel, the Panel may (at 

reasonable notice) request the Chief Constable to attend before the Panel on 
the same occasion to answer any question which appears to the Panel to be 
necessary in order for it to carry out its functions.  

Page 233



ANNEX 2 

 4 

 
2. 15 The Panel may require the PCC to respond in writing to a report or 

recommendation from the Panel to the PCC.  
 
2. 16 The Panel may suspend the PCC if he/she is charged with an offence 

carrying a maximum term of imprisonment exceeding two years.  
 
2. 17 The Panel will have any other powers and duties set out in the Act or 

Regulations made in accordance with the Act.  
 
3. 0 Membership 
 
3. 1 General 
 
3. 2 Appointments of elected members to the Panel shall be made by each of the 

Authorities in accordance with their own procedures and with a view to 
ensuring that the balanced appointment objective is met so far as is 
reasonably practicable.  The Lead Authority shall take steps to coordinate the 
Authorities with a view to ensuring that the balanced appointment objective is 
achieved.  The balanced appointment objective requires that the local 
authority Members of the Panel (which includes Members appointed by the 
Authorities and co-opted Members who are elected Members of any of the 
Authorities) should: 

 
 a) represent all parts of the police force area; 
 b) represent the political make-up of the Authorities; and,  
 c) taken together have the skills, knowledge and experience necessary 
  for the Panel to discharge its functions effectively.  
 
3. 3 In appointing co-opted Members who are not elected members of any of the 

Authorities the Panel must secure, so far as is reasonably practicable that the 
appointed and co-opted Members of the Panel, together have the skills, 
knowledge and experience necessary for the Panel to discharge its functions 
effectively.   

 
3. 4 The Panel shall consist of ten Members appointed by the Authorities in 

accordance with the requirements of fair representation as follows: 
 
3. 5 One Member appointed by each of: 

 
 a) the North Yorkshire County Council. 
 b) the District Council of Craven. 
 c) the District Council of Hambleton. 
 d) the Borough Council of Harrogate. 
 e) the District Council of Richmondshire. 

f) the District Council of Ryedale. 
 g) the Borough Council of Scarborough. 
 h) the District Council of Selby. 
 
3. 6 Two Members shall be appointed by the City of York Council.  

Page 234



ANNEX 2 

 5 

 
3. 7 The Panel shall also include two independent Members co-opted by the 

Panel.  
 
3. 8 The Panel may also resolve to co-opt further Members with the agreement of 

the Secretary of State provided that the number of co-opted Members 
included in the Membership of the Panel shall not exceed 10.  

 
3. 9 Panel Members will not be able to appoint substitute Members in the event 

that they are unable to attend a meeting.  
 
3. 9 Appointed Members 

 
3. 10 The Authorities shall each nominate an elected member to be a Member of 

the Panel, and in the case of the City of York, two Members shall be 
nominated.  If a nominated Member agrees to the appointment the Authority 
may appoint the Member as a Member of the Panel.   

 
3. 11 In the event that an Authority does not appoint a Member or Members in 

accordance with these requirements, the Secretary of State must appoint a 
Member to the panel from the defaulting authority in accordance with the 
provisions in the Act.  

 
3. 12 With a view to ensuring continuity of membership as far as possible, an 

appointed Member shall be a Member of the Panel for four years unless s/he 
ceases to be an elected Member, or is removed by their Authority.  

 
3. 13 An Authority may decide in accordance with their procedures to remove their 

appointed Member from the Panel at any point and on doing so shall give 
notice to (INSERT DETAILS).  

 
3. 14 An appointed Member may resign from the Panel by giving written notice to 

the Lead Authority on behalf of the Panel at (INSERT CONTACT DETAIL) 
and to their Authority at (INSERT CONTACT DETAIL).  

 
3. 15 In the event that any appointed Member resigns from the Panel, or is removed 

from the Panel by an Authority, the Authority shall immediately take steps to 
nominate and appoint an alternative Member to the Panel.  

 
3. 16 Members appointed to the Panel may be re-appointed to the Panel for a 

further term of four years provided that the balanced appointment objective is 
met by that re-appointment.  

 
3. 17 Co-opted Members 
 
3. 18 The following may not be co-opted Members of the Panel: 

 
 a) the PCC for the Police Area.   
 b) a member of staff of the PCC for the area.  
 c)  a member of the civilian staff of the Police Force for the area.  

Page 235



ANNEX 2 

 6 

 d) a Member of Parliament.  
 e)  a Member of the National Assembly for Wales.  
 f) a Member of the Scottish Parliament.  
 g) a Member of the European Parliament.  
 
3. 19 An elected member of any of the Authorities may not be a co-opted Member 

of the Panel where the number of co-opted Members is two.  
 
3. 20 If the Panel has three or more co-opted Members an elected member of any 

of the Authorities may be a co-opted Member of the Panel provided that at 
least two of the other co-opted Members are not elected members of any of 
the Authorities.   

 
3. 21 A co-opted Member shall be a Member of the Panel for four years.  
 
3. 22 The Panel shall put in place arrangements to ensure that appointments of  

co-opted Members are undertaken following public advertisement in 
accordance with the following principles: 

 
 a) The appointment will be made on merit of candidates whose skills,  
  experience and qualities are considered best to ensure the effective 
  functioning of the Panel; 
 b) The selection process must be fair, objective, impartial and consistently 
  applied to all candidates who will be assessed against the same pre 
  determined criteria; and, 
 c) The selection process will be conducted transparently with information 
  about the requirements for the appointment and the process being  
  publicly advertised and made available with a view to attracting a  
  strong and diverse field of suitable candidates.   
 
3. 23 A co-opted Member of the Panel may resign from the Panel by giving written 

notice to the Lead Authority on behalf of the Panel at (INSERT DETAILS).  
 
3. 24 The Panel must from time to time decide whether the Panel should exercise 

its power to change the number of co-opted Members of the Panel to enable 
the balanced appointment objective to be met, or be more effectively met, and 
if so, it must exercise that power accordingly.  

 
3. 25 The Panel may decide to terminate the appointment of a co-opted Member of 

the Panel if at least two-thirds of the persons who are Members of the Panel 
at the time when the decision is made vote in favour of making that decision 
at any time for the reasons set out below and on doing so shall give written 
notice to the co-opted Member: 

 
 a) if the co-opted Member has been absent from the Panel for more than 
  three months without the consent of the Panel; 
 b) if the co-opted Member has been convicted of a criminal offence but 
  not automatically disqualified; 

Page 236



ANNEX 2 

 7 

 c) if the co-opted Member is deemed to be incapacitated by physical or 
  mental illness or is otherwise unable or unfit to discharge his or her  
  functions as a co-opted Member of the Panel; or, 
 d) if the co-opted Member’s membership of the Panel no longer achieves 
  the meeting of the balanced appointment objective. 
 
3. 26 In the event that a co-opted Member resigns from the Panel or is removed 

from the Panel following a decision of the Panel, the Panel shall ensure that at 
least two independent co-opted Members remain appointed to the Panel, and 
in the absence of two such Members shall make arrangements to ensure that 
two co-opted Members are appointed.  

 
3. 27 Co-opted Members appointed to the Panel may be re-appointed for a 
 further term of four years provided that the balanced appointment objective 
 is met by that re-appointment.   
 
4. 0 Budget and Costs of the Panel 
 
4. 1 The annual costs of the Panel, reduced by the figure of any grant from the 

Home Office or any other source, shall be borne between the Authorities on 
the basis of population, and further also on the basis of the County Council 
and the respective District Council for a North Yorkshire District Area sharing 
equally the cost in respect of the population of that Area.  

 
4. 2 The population shall be determined by reference to the population data (mid-

year estimates) issued by the Office of National Statistics for the year in which 
this agreement is made, and reviewed in accordance with that data every four 
years.  

 
4. 3 A draft budget for the operation of the Panel shall be drawn up by the Lead 

Authority in February each year, and shall be approved by the Authorities  
(for example via Local Government North Yorkshire and York).  All costs will 
be contained within the budget.  

 
5. 0 Lead Authority  
 
5. 1 The County Council of North Yorkshire shall be lead authority for the Panel 

and shall provide such administrative and other support as will be necessary 
to enable the Panel to undertake its functions.  

 
6. 0 Rules of Procedure 
 

The Panel shall determine its Rules of Procedure which shall include 
arrangements in relation to the: 

 
 a) the appointment and removal of the Chairman; 
 b) the formation of sub-committees; 
 c) the making of decisions; 
 d) the arrangements for convening meetings; and, 
 e) the circulation of information. 

Page 237



ANNEX 2 

 8 

 
 
 
7. 0 Allowances 
 
7. 1 The payment of a responsibility allowance to Panel Members shall be 

considered and a recommendation sought from the Independent 
Remuneration Panel for North Yorkshire County Council as to whether the 
payment of such an allowance is appropriate.   

 
8. 0 Promotion of the Panel 
 
8. 1 The Panel arrangements shall be promoted by: 
 
 a) the establishment and maintenance of a dedicated open-access  
  website including information about the role and work of the Panel,  
  Panel Membership, all non-confidential Panel and sub-committee  
  meeting papers, press releases and other publications; 
 b) the issuing of regular press releases about the Panel and its work;  
  and, 
 c) the Authorities will each include information about the Panel on their 
  websites, and will also include a link to the Panel website.   
 
8. 2 Support and guidance shall be provided to executive and non-executive 

elected members and officers of the Authorities in relation to the functions of 
the Panel as follows: 

 
 a) by the provision of initial briefing sessions for elected members and 
  relevant officers of the Authorities before the election of the PCC, and 
  the provision of annual briefing sessions thereafter; and, 
 b) by the provision of written briefing notes for elected members and  
  relevant officers of the Authorities at least three times per year.  
 
9. 0 Validity of Proceedings 
 
9. 1 The validity of the proceedings of the Panel shall not be affected by a vacancy 
 in the Membership of the Panel or a defect in appointment.  
 
9. 2 The conduct of the Panel and the content of these arrangements shall be 

subject to the legislative provisions in the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011, and any Regulations made in accordance with that 
Act, and in the event of any conflict between the Act or Regulations, and 
these arrangements, the requirements of the legislation will prevail.  

 
 
INSERT SIGNATURE/EXECUTION CLAUSE  
 
 
 

Page 238



Annex 3 

 

Supplementary Vote System 
 
1. Under supplementary voting there are two columns on the ballot 

paper.  Column one is for votes to mark their first choice candidate, 
column two is for voters to mark (if they so wish) their second 
choice candidate. 

 
2. All first choice votes are counted, if one candidate has an absolute 

majority (ie: 50% +1) they are elected. However, if one candidate 
does not achieve a majority, the top two candidates continue to a 
second round count and all other candidates are eliminated. The 
ballot papers from those eliminated candidates are then reviewed 
and second choices votes for the remaining candidates are 
counted. Whichever candidate has the most votes after these 
second preferences votes have been allocated is declared elected. 

 
3. Every police force in England and Wales, with the exception of the 

Metropolitan Police and City of London (where the mayor will act) 
will have a PCC.  PCCs will produce a five year police and crime 
plan, set the force budget and determine the precept.  They will 
have a reciprocal duty to co-operate with Community Safety 
Partnerships (CSPs) and will have to establish local co-operative 
arrangements with the Criminal Justice System. 

4. PCCs and CSPs will have due regard for each others’ priorities ie. 
Those set out in the Police and Crime Plan and within CSP 
Strategic Assessments and Partnership Plans.  PCCs will be 
scrutinised by a Police and Crime Panel made up of representatives 
from each Local Authority in the police force area.  Annex 1 sets out 
the role of the PCC and what that means nationally and for York. 

 

Page 239



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes
	5 Forward Plan
	6 Secondary Education Provision on the East side of the City and the Future of Burnholme Community College
	Annex 1
	Annex 2
	Annex 3 - Data Annex
	Annex 4 - Comparison of Key Stage 4 Performance Data
	Annex 5
	Annex 6
	Annex 7

	7 Implementing the Review of the City of York Council™s Residential Care Homes for Older People
	EPH report - Annex A
	EPH Report - Annex B - CONFIDENTIAL ANNEXES
	EPH report - Annex C

	8 Oliver House Elderly Persons Home - Options for the future use of the Property
	Annex 1 Plan
	Annex 2 Oliver House Outline Proposal
	Confidential Annex 3 - Oliver House Offers

	9 Exploring Opportunities for the Future of the Guildhall
	RIBA Open Ideas format for cab report inc timetable
	York Guildhall Options Appraisal 24.02.12

	10 Developing a Thriving Voluntary Sector in the City of York
	11 Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 - Police and Crime Commissioner - Update
	Annex 1 Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act - PCC Update
	Annex 2 Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act - PCC Update
	Annex 3 Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act - PCC Update


